Revised Downtown Investment Authority

D Il\ Agenda
JAX Hybrid Virtual In-Person Meeting

DOWNTOWN Wednesday, September 15" at 2:00 p.m.

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

MEMBERS:

Braxton Gillam, Esq., Chairman Ron Moody, Board Member

Carol Worsham, Vice Chairman Todd Froats, Board Member

Jim Citrano, Secretary Craig Gibbs, Esq., Board Member
Bill Adams, Esq., Board Member Oliver Barakat, Esq. Board Member

BOARD MEMBERS EXCUSED: David Ward, Esq.
. CALL TO ORDER
1. PUBLIC COMMENTS*

. COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
A. August 18,2021 Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes
Resolution 2021-09-01: Disposition 330 E Bay
Resolution 2021-09-02: Live DT JAX
Resolution 2021-09-03: Invest DT JAX
Resolution 2021-09-05: Rivers Edge Performance Extension

mooOw

v. DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
A. July 29, 2021 Downtown Investment Authority Board Meeting Minutes
B. Resolution 2021-09-04: Sponsorship Delegation Authority
C. Resolution 2021-09-06: Craig Gibbs Recognition and Appreciation

V. NEW BUSINESS

VL. CEO INFORMATIONAL BRIEFING
A. Bi-monthly MOSH Negotiations Update

VIL. PRESENTATION
A. 15-Minute Willdan Market & Feasibility Study
B. 15-Minute Q&A Willdan

VIIL. CHAIRMAN REPORT

IX. ADJOURN

*Only individuals attending the meeting in-person will have an opportunity to provide public comments. Persons who cannot attend the meeting in-
person, but who wish to submit public comments regarding any matter on the agenda for consideration at the meeting, may do so by sending their
public comments via electronic mail to DIAPublicComments@coj.net prior to the start of the meeting. Public comments received prior to the meeting
will not be read during the meeting but will instead be forwarded to all DIA Board members for review in advance of the meeting and will remain a
part of the permanent record for the meeting itself. You are encouraged to submit public comments well in advance of the start of the meeting to
provide DIA Board members with adequate time to read them in preparation for the meeting.



2|Page
Downtown Investment Authority Agenda
Wednesday, September 15, 2021

PHYSICAL LOCATION

City Hall at St. James

117 West Duval Street

First Floor, Lynwood Roberts Room
Jacksonville, FL 32202

Visitors are encouraged not to enter City owned public buildings if they have: symptoms of COVID-19, a fever of 100.4
degrees Fahrenheit or higher, are currently undergoing evaluation for COVID-19 infection, a diagnhosis of COVID-19 in the
prior 10 days, or have had close contact with someone infected with COVID-19 during the prior 14 days. Any member of
the public entering City owned public building may choose to wear a mask inside the building.

VIRTUAL LOCATION

Interested persons desiring to attend this meeting virtually can do so via Zoom (including by computer or telephone)
using the following meeting access information:

Join Zoom Meeting
https://zoom.us/j/94074017448?pwd=WkIzbHNRRCt6cFBqLOMA4YKkNrMkxrQT09

Meeting ID: 940 7401 7448
Passcode: 642945

One tap mobile
+1 (301) 715-8592 (Washington D.C)
+1 (312) 626-6799 US (Chicago)

Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/aclhApg5D)



https://zoom.us/j/94074017448?pwd=WklzbHNRRCt6cFBqL0M4YkNrMkxrQT09
https://zoom.us/j/94074017448?pwd=WklzbHNRRCt6cFBqL0M4YkNrMkxrQT09
https://zoom.us/u/acIhApq5DJ
https://zoom.us/u/acIhApq5DJ

TAB IIILLA

AUGUST 18, 2021 COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
MEETING MINUTES




Downtown Investment Authority
Hybrid Meeting
JAX Wednesday, August 18, 2021 — 2:00 p.m.

DOWNTOWN

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Community Redevelopment Agency
MEETING MINUTES

DIA Board Members: Braxton Gillam, Esg., Chairman; Carol Worsham, Vice Chair; Jim Citrano,
Secretary; Oliver Barakat; Craig Gibbs, Esq.; Bill Adams, Esg. (non-voting; via Zoom)(Late In-Person
Arrival); Ron Moody; Todd Froats

DIA Board Members Excused: David Ward, Esq.

Mayor’s Staff: None

Council Members: None

DIA Staff: Lori Boyer, Chief Executive Officer; Steve Kelley, Director of Downtown Real Estate and
Development; Guy Parola, Operations Manager; Allan DeVault, Project Manager; Lori Radcliffe-Meyers,
Redevelopment Coordinator; Ina Mezini, Communication and Marketing Specialist; John Crescimbeni,
Contract and Regulatory Compliance Manager; Jackie Mott, Financial Analyst; Wanda Crowley, Financial
Analyst; and Xzavier Chisholm, Administrative Assistant.

Office of General Counsel: John Sawyer, Esq.

. CALL TO ORDER

Chairman Gillam called the CRA Board Meeting to order at 2:00 p.m.
Chairman Gillam announced each DIA Board Member and DIA staff present.

Lori Boyer, CEQ of DIA, clarified for Chairman Gillam that Board Member Adams would not be able to
vote via Zoom due to DIA Bylaws.

1. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Chairman Gillam opened the floor to public comment.

The following persons made in-person public comments, made public comments virtually through Zoom,
or provided comments that were read into the record by DIA Staff. Note: the subject matter of the
comment(s) indicated to the right of each person:

Dimitri Demopoulos Marina; Potential Projects in Downtown Jacksonville

1. COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING

A. JULY 29, 2021 COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING MINUTES

Having called for corrections or other edits by his fellow board members and after receiving none, Chairman
Gillam asked for a motion and second on the item.



Downtown Investment Authority
CRA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, August 18, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.
Page 2 of 15

Motion: Board Member Moody moved to approve the minutes as presented
Seconded:  Board Member Barakat seconded the motion

Vote: Aye:7 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0.

Chairman Gillam reorganized the agenda, moving Resolution 2021-08-01: Morris to the last item on the
agenda.

B. RESOLUTION 2021-08-03: SRX 50 SEATS

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY URGING THE
CITY COUNCIL TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF A J-BILL TO BE
CONSIDERED BY THE DUVAL DELEGATION, WHICH WOULD AMEND
CHAPTER 87-471, LAWS OF FLORIDA, AS AMENDED BY CHAPTER 2011-255,
2016-248 AND 2017-213, LAWS OF FLORIDA, TO ADD SPECIAL ZONES TO
JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA, SO AS TO PROVIDE AN EXCEPTION TO 8561.20(1),
FLORIDA STATUTES, FOR SPACE AND SEATING REQUIREMENTS FOR LIQUOR
LICENSES FOR RESTAURANTS IN THE COMBINED NORTHBANK CRA;
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AUTHORIZING THE DOWNTOWN
INVESTMENT AUTHORITY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EXECUTE ALL
DOCUMENTS AND OTHERWISE TAKE ALL ACTION NECESSARY TO
EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

Chairman Gillam gave the floor to Mr. DeVault to introduce the Resolution.

Mr. DeVault provided a brief presentation of the Resolution, which urges City Council to adopt a resolution
in support of a J-Bill to be considered by the Duval delegation to amend the minimum seating and space
requirements for restaurants in the combined Northbank CRA.

Board Member Adams provided a summary of the Strategic Implementation Committee’s discussion and
support for the Resolution.

Motion: Board Member Adams moved to approve Resolution 2021-08-03, as
recommended by the Strategic Implementation Committee
Chairman Gillam called for discussion.

Board Member Moody asked Mr. DeVault his thoughts on the impact this change would have. Mr. DeVault
stated that he was a part of the effort to reduce this requirement ten years ago in historic 5 Points, and
believes it helps support smaller businesses, especially in historic areas where there are smaller spaces.

Chairman Gillam called for a vote.
Vote: Aye:7 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0

THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0.



Downtown Investment Authority
CRA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, August 18, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.
Page 3 of 15

C. RESOLUTION 2021-08-04: NB TID INVESTMENT POOL EARNINGS

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY ACTING AS
THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF THE COMBINED
NORTHSIDE EAST AND NORTHWEST CRA’S REQUESTING THAT CITY
COUNCIL APPROPRIATE PREVIOUSLY UNAPPROPRIATED FY 20-21
INVESTMENT POOL EARNINGS TO FUTURE YEARS DEBT REDUCTION;
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Chairman Gillam gave the floor to CEO Boyer to introduce the Resolution.

CEO Boyer provided an overview of the Resolution, stating that it is a board action taking all Northbank
Investment Pool Earnings through the end of the fiscal year and recommending the appropriation of them to
future years debt reduction.

Board Member Froats provided a summary of the Finance and Budget Committee’s discussion and support for
the Resolution.

Motion: Board Member Froats moved to approve Resolution 2021-08-04, as
recommended by the Finance and Budget Committee

Chairman Gillam called for a vote.
Vote: Aye:7 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0.

D. RESOLUTION 2021-08-06: SS TID INVESTMENT POOL EARNINGS

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY ACTING AS

THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF THE SOUTHSIDE

COMMUNITY RED REQUESTING THAT CITY COUNCIL APPROPRIATE

PREVIOUSLY UNAPPROPRIATED FY 20-21 INVESTMENT POOL EARNINGS TO

FUTURE YEARS DEBT REDUCTION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
Chairman Gillam gave the floor to CEO Boyer to introduce the Resolution.

CEO Boyer stated that the Resolution is identical to the previous Resolution, except that it pertains to the
Southside CRA.

Board Member Froats provided a summary of the Finance and Budget Committee’s discussion and support for
the Resolution.

Motion: Board Member Froats moved to approve Resolution 2021-08-06, as
recommended by the Finance and Budget Committee

Chairman Gillam opened the floor for discussion.
Seeing none, Chairman Gillam called for a vote.

Vote: Aye:7 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0



Downtown Investment Authority
CRA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, August 18, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.
Page 4 of 15

THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0.

E. RESOLUTION 2021-08-05: NB T1D 20-21 BUDGET AMENDMENT

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY ACTING AS
THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF THE COMBINED
NORTHSIDE EAST AND NORTHWEST CRA’'S ADOPTING AN FY 20-21
AMENDED TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT (“TID”) BUDGET AS DETAILED IN
EXHIBIT ‘A’ ATTACHED HERETO FOR THE COMBINED NORTHSIDE EAST
AND NORTHWEST CRA’S PURSUANT TO SEC. 163.387, F.S. AND SEC. 106.341,
ORDINANCE CODE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Chairman Gillam gave the floor to CEO Boyer to present the resolution.

CEO Boyer provided an overview of the Resolution, which recommends the moving of funds to the proper
account from when they were mistakenly put in the Unallocated Planned Authorized Expenditures. Additionally,
the Resolution recommends moving the leftover funds from three REV Grants, whose financial obligations have
been met, over to a project entitled Banners and Banner Arm Replacement as well as Parks and Programming.

Board Member Froats provided a summary of the Finance and Budget Committee’s discussion and support for
the Resolution. CEO Boyer clarified that the Resolution is necessary because Accounting will require
documentation to move the misplaced funds to the proper account.

Motion: Board Member Froats moved to approve Resolution 2021-08-05, as
recommended by the Finance and Budget Committee

Chairman Gillam opened the floor for discussion.

Board Member Citrano asked what kind of improvements does the Parks and Programming fund support. CEO
Boyer responded that those dollars help fund programming for parks, such as providing music at events,
covering park design fees, and carrying out park studies.

Seeing no further discussion, Chairman Gillam called for a vote.
Vote: Aye:7 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0.

F. RESOLUTION 2021-08-07: SS TID 20-21 BUDGET AMENDMENT

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY ACTING AS
THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF THE SOUTHSIDE
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA (“CRA”) ADOPTING AN FY 20-21
AMENDED TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT (“TID”) BUDGET AS DETAILED IN
EXHIBIT ‘A” ATTACHED HERETO FOR THE SOUTHSIDE CRA, PURSUANT TO
SEC. 163.387, F.S. AND SEC. 106.341, ORDINANCE CODE; PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

Chairman Gillam gave the floor to CEO Boyer to present the Resolution.



Downtown Investment Authority
CRA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, August 18, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.
Page 5 of 15

CEO Boyer provided an overview of the Resolution, which recommends moving the leftover funds from two
REV Grants and a CRP, whose financial obligations have been met, as well as funds from Unallocated Planned
Authorized Expenditures, to the Rivers Edge financial obligation and Future Years Debt Reduction. CEO Boyer
added that the Board will be seeing more recommendations to move excess funds into Rivers Edge because the
payments are coming due.

Chairman Gillam asked why the Resolution was split into two separate Resolutions. CEO Boyer responded that
they are separate to make it more convenient for the Accounting system and avoid challenges in implementation.

Board Member Froats provided a summary of the Finance and Budget Committee’s discussion and support for
the Resolution.

Motion: Board Member Froats moved to approve Resolution 2021-08-07, as
recommended by the Finance and Budget Committee

Chairman Gillam opened the floor for discussion.

CEO Boyer gave the total financial obligations for the CRA Improvements. Discussion occurred regarding the
amounts and payment schedules.

Seeing no further discussion, Chairman Gillam called for a vote.
Vote: Aye:7 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0

THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0.

G. RESOLUTION 2021-08-08: SS TID 20-21 BUDGET AMENDMENT

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY ACTING AS
THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD OF THE SOUTHSIDE
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA (“CRA”) ADOPTING AN FY 20-21
AMENDED TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT (“TID”) BUDGET AS DETAILED IN
EXHIBIT ‘A” ATTACHED HERETO FOR THE SOUTHSIDE CRA, PURSUANT TO
SEC. 163.387, F.S. AND SEC. 106.341, ORDINANCE CODE; PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

Chairman Gillam gave the floor to CEO Boyer to present the Resolution.

CEO Boyer stated that this Resolution transfers funds from Southside CRA Future Years Debt Reduction to the
District (Rivers Edge).

Board Member Froats provided a summary of the Finance and Budget Committee’s discussion and support for
the Resolution.

Motion: Board Member Froats moved to approve Resolution 2021-08-08, as
recommended by the Finance and Budget Committee

Chairman Gillam opened the floor for discussion.

Seeing no discussion, Chairman Gillam called for a vote.

Vote: Aye:7 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0



Downtown Investment Authority
CRA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, August 18, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.
Page 6 of 15

THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0.
CEO Boyer introduced Ms. Wanda Crowley, the DIA’s new Financial Analyst.

H. RESOLUTION 2021-08-09: TERMINATION OF 1SP-0307-20

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”)
ADOPTING THE RETAIL ENHANCMENT AND PROPERTY DISPOSTION
COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATION TO TERMINATE NEGOTIATIONS WITH
SPANDREL DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS, THE HIGHEST RANKED PROPOSAL
TO [ISP-0307-20; REJECT ALL PROPOSALS RELATING TO ISP-0307-20;
TERMINATE 1SP-0307-20 (THE “NOTICE”); PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

Chairman Gillam gave the floor to CEO Boyer to present the Resolution.

CEO Boyer provided an overview of the Resolution, stating that it seeks to terminate the current
negotiations with Spandrel. Procurement concluded that Spandrel had departed enough from the original
response that it was considered a Material Departure and therefore necessitated a new Notice of Disposition.
Spandrel has indicated that they are still interested in the property and could recast their bid along with
others.

Board Member Barakat provided a summary of the Retail Enhancement and Property Disposition Committee’s
discussion and support for the Resolution, adding that the REPD Committee will meet again in September to
continue their discussion of the Disposition Terms.

Motion: Board Member Barakat moved to approve Resolution 2021-08-09, as
recommended by the Retail Enhancement and Property Disposition
Committee

Chairman Gillam opened the floor for discussion.

CEO Boyer confirmed that the Disposition Terms for a new RFP would be determined at a later date and
laid out the timeline for the RFP. The goal is to have the terms agreed upon in September. If it falls to
October, there will be a discussion about whether to let it go until January.

Chairman Gillam stated that he would like CBRE to attend a Board meeting and deliver a small report to
update Board Members on what they see changing in the downtown Jacksonville market. CEO Boyer
agreed and notified the Board that Willdan will be providing an update on the market feasibility study when
to the Board when the presentation is ready in September.

Mr. Chisholm clarified for Board Member Worsham that the September 2" meeting is scheduled for 3:30
p.m.

Chairman Gillam called for a vote.

Vote: Aye:7 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0

THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0.



Downtown Investment Authority

CRA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, August 18, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.

Page 7 of 15

l. RESOLUTION 2021-08-12: PORTER HOUSE MANSION

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”)
RECOMMENDING THAT CITY COUNCIL APPROVE A DOWNTOWN
PRESERVATION AND REVITALIZATION PROGRAM FORGIVABLE LOAN
PACKAGE FOR RENOVATIONS TO THE THOMAS V. PORTER HOUSE
BUILDING LOCATED AT 510 N JULIA ST (THE “PROPERTY””) PURSUANT TO A
REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH JWB REAL ESTATE CAPITAL (“JWB”)
OR ASSIGNS (“DEVELOPER?”); FINDING THAT THE PLAN OF DEVELOPMENT
IS CONSISTENT WITH THE DIA’S BUSINESS INVESTMENT AND
DEVELOPMENT PLAN (“BID PLAN”) AND THE NORTH BANK DOWNTOWN
AND SOUTHSIDE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA PLAN (“CRA PLAN”);
AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EXECUTE THE
CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS AND OTHERWISE TAKE ALL NECESSARY
ACTION IN CONNECTION THEREWITH TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF
THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Chairman Gillam gave the floor to Mr. Kelley to present the Resolution.

Mr. Kelley provided an overview of the Resolution, which is a recommendation to City Council for approval of
a DPRP Forgivable Loan for renovations to the Thomas V. Porter House Building located at 510 N Julia St.
JWB is proposing retail/restaurant space and office space, as well as a restaurant in the basement of the historic
property.

Board Member Adams provided a summary of the Strategic Implementation Committee’s discussion and
support for the Resolution, adding that concern was voiced over the program basing the administering of funding
on the usage of sell rates versus appraisal rates and what impact that might have on the viability of the fund.

Motion: Board Member Adams moved to approve Resolution 2021-08-012, as
recommended by the Strategic Implementation Committee

Board Member Barakat stated that he will need to submit a Form 8B.

Board Member Barakat asked for clarification on the Historic Preservation Trust Fund and about the source of
the funds for the DPRP loans. Mr. Kelley responded that the HPTF still exists for projects that are $100,000 or
less. DPRP loans are funded through the General Fund through City Council approval.

Board Member Moody stated his support.
Board Member Gibbs stated that he is in support.

Alex Sifakis, of JWB, stated for Board Member Citrano that the office space will not be for JWB offices. The
offices are currently in the process of being leased with a tenant.

Board Member Worsham stated her support.

Board Member Froats asked how far off was the purchase price from the market price. Chairman Gillam
responded that he believes it was a couple hundred thousand dollars off. Board Member Froats stated his support.
Mr. Sifakis provided a brief overview of the current projects that JWB has collaborated with the DIA on.

Chairman Gillam asked if there was any commitment or enforcement mechanism for the retail and the basement
restaurant. Mr. Kelley responded that it is reflected in the Intended Use, adding that if it is not used or activated
in that way it will be a Default under the agreement. Chairman Gillam asked if it would impact the Forgivable
Loans. Mr. Kelley responded that it doesn’t have a requirement for repayment, but that there is a Clawback
Provision in each of the loans. Though each loan stands alone, they run concurrently. CEO Boyer added that the



Downtown Investment Authority
CRA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, August 18, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.
Page 8 of 15

space must be built as restaurant space, and that it would not be a Default if a tenant were to lease it and then
leave because the restaurant space was completed and brought up to code.

Chairman Gillam called for a vote.
Vote: Aye:7 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 7-0-0.

J. RESOLUTION 2021-08-01: MORRIS

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY APPROVING
THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS, AS MORE FULLY IDENTIFIED IN EXHIBIT A,
FOR THE REDEVELOPMENT OF DUVAL COUNTY TAX PARCEL NUMBER
088967 0000 (“PROPERTY”) BY FUQUA DEVELOPMENT, LLC (“DEVELOPER?),
INCLUDING THE APPROVAL OF A MULTI-FAMILY RECAPTURED ENHANCED
VALUE GRANT (“RESIDENTIAL REV GRANT”); APPROVAL OF A RETAIL
RECAPTURED ENHANCED VALUE GRANT (“RETAIL REV GRANT?");
APPROVAL OF A MIXED-USE RECAPTURED ENHANCED VALUE GRANT
(“MIXED-USE REV GRANT”); APPROVAL OF A COMPLETION GRANT;
AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (THE *“CEO”) TO
NEGOTIATE A REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO EXHIBIT A
TERMS AND CONDITIONS; RECOMMENDING THAT CITY COUNCIL APPROVE
A REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO EXHIBIT A, TERMS AND
CONDITIONS; RECOMMENDING THAT CITY COUNCIL VACATE
APPROXIMATELY 0.12 ACRE OF RIGHT-OF-WAY AND 0.12 ACRE OF
DRAINAGE EASEMENT (“EASEMENT”); RECOMMENDING THAT CITY
COUNCIL APPROVE THE PURCHASE OF APPROXIMATELY 4.6 ACRES OF
UPLAND AND SUBMERGED LANDS FOR $6,040,680 TO FACILITATE WIDENING
AND RELOCATION OF MCCOYS CREEK AND CREATION OF A NEW CITY
PARK; AUTHORIZING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO TAKE ALL
NECESSARY ACTION TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS
RESOLUTION, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE FILING OF
LEGISLATION AND EXECUTION OF A REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT,
PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT, OR THEIR FUNCTIONAL EQUIVALENTS;
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Chairman Gillam gave the floor to CEO Boyer to present the Resolution.

CEO Boyer provided a presentation on the McCoy’s Creek Capital Improvement Project as it relates to the
Morris project development proposal.

e The property is located between the river and Riverside Avenue at the Acosta Bridge ramp.

e The McCoy’s Creek project is a flood control and stream restoration project which also has a link
of the Emerald Trail on it. The original capital project funded by the City was to widen the creek
and create walkways on either side.

e Itis possible to relocate the creek further east under the Acosta Bridge ramp which allows the creek
to be wider and provides better protection against erosion. In doing that, it would make the
development pad bigger.

e The development proposal shows the relocated creek with a proposed park between the creek and
the railroad track. The green to the right of the railroad track is not a part of the proposal.



Downtown Investment Authority
CRA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, August 18, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.
Page 9 of 15

Mr. Kelley provided the following overview:

The developer is requesting a REV Grant for the retail component of Phase 1, the residential
component of Phase 1, and the mixed-retail and residential components in Phase 2.

The DIA recommendation includes a REV Grant for the retail component, the multi-family
residential component, and a mixed-use component shown as Phase 2 residential.

The grocer and retail space are proposed in Phase 1, along with two residential buildings and a
parking garage.

Two mixed-use buildings are proposed for Phase 2 that include additional retail, a riverfront
restaurant space, and multi-family residential.

The development is being developed by three different development teams with the overall parcel
broken down into four different parcels, including the future park location to be developed by the
City.

Board Member Adams provided a summary of the Strategic Implementation Committee’s discussion and
support for the Resolution, noting that riverfront retail and riverfront accessibility for the public were major
points of discussion.

Board Member Froats asked for updates regarding riverfront retail. Mr. Steve Diebenow, representing
Fuqua, responded with the following:

Regarding resiliency, suggested that a conceptual grading plan is being developed that includes a
significant grade change from Riverside Avenue down to the river.

Stated that two amendments were made at the SIC meeting which are reflected in the Term Sheet.

1) Adding language to page 6, subsection c., stating “This percentage is subject to minor adjustment
with the approval of staff.”

2) Adding language to page 8, at the end of the second to last paragraph, stating “except as provided
above.”

Suggested that the riverfront will be activated by the residential buildings that sit on the riverfront.

Suggested that Fuqua cannot realize the true financial benefit of the project in Phase 2 until the
creek is relocated which is why they are hesitant to commit to specific types of users.

Stated that Fuqua has committed to one restaurant on the creek and one restaurant on the river.
Suggested that a marina would be difficult and require significant infrastructure investment.
Provided a revised conceptual site plan handout that differs from the site plan in the Term Sheet.

Provided a handout with a summary and outline of projected costs for construction of a 3,000 sq ft
restaurant.

Board Member Froats asked how the planned grocery store will impact the area with there already being a
grocer in the area. Mr. Diebenow responded that there is demand for another grocer and that it will have a
significant impact on helping activate the area.

Board Member Froats asked are the property taxes that are already being received considered when
calculating the ROI. Mr. Kelley confirmed that they are.



Downtown Investment Authority
CRA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, August 18, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.
Page 10 of 15

Board Member Worsham noted that the site plan handout is significantly different that the site plan in CEO
Boyer’s presentation and asked for clarification. Mr. Diebenow responded that the handout indicates where
the helipad is in relation to Zones A-D. The handout is a further refined site plan.

Board Member Worsham asked if the residential building could be swapped with the retail building labeled
“Shops.” Mr. Diebenow responded that it is possible but emphasized the difficulty, adding that the helipad
presents the best opportunity for modification, though there are significant challenges associated with that
as well.

Board Member Citrano asked whose idea it was to relocate the creek. CEO Boyer responded that the
relocation of the creek predates this project. The seller of the property previously discussed the potential
relocation of the creek with the City.

Board Member Citrano asked if the staff believes the creek relocation is to the benefit of the community.
CEO Boyer responded that the community would benefit greatly by gaining another public park, and that
Public Works prefers the relocation as well.

Board Member Citrano asked if the financial incentives are separated in to three separate REV Grants. CEO
Boyer responded that the developer requested to split the REV Grants by phase or type because there are
three different development entities involved. The REV Grant requires that they have a certain amount of
retail and restaurant in the Phase 2 portion. Phase 1 residential does not currently have a requirement in it
for retail or restaurant. The requirement is for a certain amount of residential and a certain amount of capital
investment. Board Member Citrano stated that the Board will need to have a larger discussion regarding
riverfront activation, restaurant locations and outdoor seating. Adding that, he would prefer a riverfront
restaurant in Phase 1, but is also okay with it being in Phase 2. The main concern is that the space for a
riverfront restaurant is accounted for.

CEO Boyer clarified for Board Member Gibbs that the DuPont study is primarily focused on publicly
owned property and how the park uses can be integrated. In response to whether riverfront restaurants will
be required on private property, CEO Boyer added that a zoning requirement would not be well-received.
Instead, it might be preferable to condition incentives.

Board Member Gibbs asked if there is potential for roof top restaurants. Mr. Diebenow responded that it is
being considered but doesn’t think it is feasible in the residential buildings. The cost is challenging.

Board Member Moody stated his support and asked what the timeframe would be for Phase 1. Mr.
Diebenow responded that (the commencement date of Phase 1 is three months following receipt of building
permits, but no later than March 31%, 2023*) the completion date for Phase 1 of the project in the Term
Sheet is September 2025. (The Phase 2 commencement date is triggered upon DDRB approval and receipt
of the building permit following the completion of the McCoy’s Creek relocation with substantial
completion required within 30 months following commencement*). Mr. Diebenow confirmed that they
have already committed to a riverfront restaurant in Phase 2.

Board Member Barakat asked for clarification regarding the valuation of the parcels. Mr. Kelley responded
that the parcels in total were valued at $60 per sq ft, and the internal allocation of values by Fuqua is based
on the economics of what can be derived from the development in one area versus another — an example
being the residential area versus the mixed-use area. CEO Boyer added that the REV Grant calculation is
independent from the calculation of the gap using the Operating Pro Forma.

*Added for clarification



Downtown Investment Authority
CRA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, August 18, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.
Page 11 of 15

Board Member Barakat stated that retail comes to $375 per sq ft per month, while residential rents are
averaging between $245 and $265 per month and emphasized that retail is desirable. Furthermore, the
community has consistently expressed a desire for retail and riverfront activation. Board Member Barakat
stated his concern for the developer’s lack of interest in providing retail in Phase 1.

Board Member Adams asked what happens if Phase 2 isn’t built. Chairman Gillam responded that the
developer does not receive the Phase 2 incentive package. CEO Boyer added that the REV Grants for Phase
1 and Phase 2 had to be separated so that the Phase 1 residential developer was not at risk from the actions
of the Phase 2 residential developer. Board Member Adams stated that he would no longer be in support of
the Resolution given this situation.

Chairman Gillam stated his appreciation for the developer’s interest in the property but also described the
City’s portion of the risks associated with the project. Furthermore, he would like to eliminate the liquidated
damages provision and see a requirement for a riverfront restaurant.

10-minute intermission.
Board Member Adams who was previously attending the meeting via Zoom, joined the meeting in-person.

Mr. Diebenow stated the developer believes they have satisfied the retail and riverfront activation
requirements, that the city is minimizing risk by utilizing a REV Grant instead of providing funds upfront,
and they are bound by a confidentiality agreement from disclosing the purchase price but ensured the price
is in line with the appraisal value and consistent with other riverfront properties.

Mr. Diebenow made the following proposal:

e Fuqua will develop a 3,000 sq ft restaurant in Phase 1 at a location to be determined. Cost would be
split between the DIA and Fuqua.

e The developer is at significant risk if Phase 2 doesn’t happen, and if the creek never gets relocated.

e The developer would remove the liquidated damages provision from the Term Sheet, but asks that
the Board gives the Staff authority to contemplate alternative remedies to deal with the risk.

e Regarding resiliency, the Developer has a storm water and flooding solution.
Board Member Citrano went on record stating that he filed a Form 8B before the meeting.

Mr. Diebenow stated that his client would like to resolve any disagreements at the present time and opposes
any delay.

Board Member Adams expressed that without additional details he would prefer to table the motion,
otherwise Call the Question.
Motion: Board Member Adams made a motion to Call the Question

Second: None

Board Member Barakat asked for clarification regarding the developer’s proposal. Mr. Diebenow
confirmed that his client is proposing 3,000 sq ft of retail space at the helipad or within one of the
residential buildings. Board Member Barakat stated that he is not inclined to support the current
Resolution.



Downtown Investment Authority
CRA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, August 18, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.
Page 12 of 15

Board Member Barakat asked for Mr. DeVault’s opinion regarding the best metric for a restaurant
requirement. Mr. DeVault responded that seating would be a good metric to consider, adding that,
for comparison, BB’s restaurant is 3,600 sq ft and seats 100 including outdoor seating. Mr. DeVault
encouraged a requirement that the restaurant be able to serve at least 100 meals at one time and
that 51 percent or more of sales come from food so that a special food service license can be
obtained. Mr. DeVault passed out a handout that includes a list of recommended restaurant
requirements. The list includes:

e Minimum of 2,500 sq ft in enclosed space

e Able to serve meals to 100 or more patrons at one time
e Must derive 51% or more of revenue in food sales

e Must have additional outdoor seating on the river

¢ Rooftop seating strongly encouraged

e Cannot block the view corridor

e Permitted in Zone A

Board Member Barakat stated that he is in support of the listed requirements and asked if the
Related restaurant requirement was 2,500 sq ft indoor and 2,500 sq ft outdoor. CEO Boyer
responded that it was not, the requirement was considerably smaller and would not qualify for the
liquor license. Board Member Barakat added that he believes the first, second, and fourth bullets
are the most important and stated his concern for the marketability of the helipad. With the option
of being on the helipad, the current proposal would not have his support.

Mr. Diebenow stated he has no issue with the requirements, though he does not know where the
location would be and hopes the board is willing to be flexible.

Board Member Citrano asked if the renegotiation of the liquidated damages would come back to
the Board for approval. CEO Boyer said that they would be something that staff resolves through
the negotiation of the redevelopment agreement, noting that Mr. Sawyer has stated he has never
seen liquidated damages in a City agreement and does not think they would be permissible.

Board Member Moody stated that he believes the development is a good place for a restaurant as
described in the listed terms.

Motion: Board Member Moody moved to Amend Resolution 2021-08-01 to include
a requirement that the Phase 1 development include a restaurant of 2,500 to
3,500 sqg ft; and comply with some of the requirements offered by Mr.
DeVault; and authorize the renegotiation of the liquidated damages

Second: Board Member Gibbs seconded the motion
Motion: Board Member Worsham offered a friendly amendment to Board Member
Moody’s motion, to include all the requirements offered by Mr. DeVault

Second: Board Member Moody seconded the motion



Downtown Investment Authority
CRA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, August 18, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.
Page 13 of 15

Mr. Diebenow clarified for Board Member Froats that the developer is requesting the City cover
50 percent of the cost, not to exceed a designated number. Board Member Froats responded that
he would not support $1M but would be in favor of a deal similar to the River City deal.

Board Member Barakat stated that without a specified location for the riverfront restaurant, he would not
be in favor.

CEO Boyer stated that the helipad could provide up to 2,500 sq ft of enclosed space with outdoor seating.
There is potential for up to 3,000 sq ft.

Chairman Gillam called for a vote.

Vote: Aye: 5 (Moody, Gibbs, Citrano, Worsham, Gillam
Nay: 3 (Adams, Barakat, Froats)
Abstain: 0

THE MOTION PASSED 5-3-0.

Board Member Gibbs asked for clarification on what the restaurant development would cost. Referencing
a handout which lays out the developer’s projected total cost provided by Mr. Diebenow, CEO Boyer
confirmed that a freestanding building is expected to total $2.2M. Though, if the restaurant is located inside
a building, the cost would be considerably less.

Mr. DeVault stated that he is not sure what costs would be associated with parking, but the soft costs as
laid out in the handout appear to be accurate.

Motion: Board Member Gibbs moved to amend the amended Resolution to include
that the City cover 50 percent of the cost up to $2M

Second: Board Member Moody seconded the motion

Board Member Froats stated concern for resiliency and exposure regarding the helipad. CEO Boyer
responded that the developer has indicated that the helipad is desirable due to its proximity to the river and
it not having an adverse impact on the multi-family development design. Some of the challenges associated
with the location according to Mr. Diebenow include:

e Building it up while maintaining good access to the Riverwalk
e Providing operational services service as commercial deliveries, waste management,

Board Member Froats stated his concern that Phase 2 is not completed and there is no retail space. Mr.
Diebenow responded that both the developer and the City are taking on significant risk if Phase 2 is not
completed.

Mr. Diebenow proposed that if the helipad does become the option, they would slide the restaurant back
and reroute the Riverwalk. Adding that, the property is high and neither a coastal hazard or a flood plain.

Board Member Worsham noted the difference between the two site plans. She is in support of a mixed-use
development on the river that brings activation but is hesitant with the little amount of site plan information
available.

Board Member Citrano asked how would the DIA cover the proposed shared cost? CEO Boyer responded
that it would be paid with a Completion Grant but that it would be challenging to differentiate the cost
associated with the restaurant from the cost associated with the building.



Downtown Investment Authority
CRA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, August 18, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.
Page 14 of 15

Board Member Barakat voiced his concern with the lack of information.

Board Member Adams voiced his concern with the lack of information.

Board Member Moody stated that this project is similar to the River City Brewery project.
Board Member Froats stated that the seller wants to sell the property for the capital gains tax.

Mr. Diebenow proposed a cap of $750,000 and removing the parking cost from what the City and the
developer split.

Chairman Gillam stated that he would prefer the process to not be rushed. The Board agreed to a Special
Meeting on September 2", in place of the previously scheduled REPD Workshop.

Motion: Board Member Moody offered a friendly amendment to Board Member
Gibb’s motion, to accept the developer’s proposal of splitting the cost of the
restaurant, with a cap of $750,000. Parking will be covered solely by the
developer.

Second: Board Member Gibbs seconded the motion

Chairman Gillam called for a vote.
Vote: Aye: 4 (Moody, Gibbs, Citrano, Froats)
Nay: 4 (Adams, Barakat, Worsham, Gillam)
Abstain: 0
THE MOTION DID NOT PASS 4-4-0.
Chairman Gillam called for a motion
Motion: Board Member Adams moved to defer the Resolution to a date certain

Second: Board Member Barakat seconded the motion

Chairman Gillam called for discussion.
Seeing none, Chairman Gillam called for a vote.

Vote: Aye: 5 (Froats, Worsham, Barakat, Adams, Gillam)
Nay: 3 (Citrano, Gibbs, Moody)

Abstain: 0
THE MOTION PASSED 5-3-0.

Chairman Gillam stated that the DIA portion of the meeting will be taken up at the September 2" Special
Board Meeting.



Downtown Investment Authority
CRA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, August 18, 2021 at 2:00 p.m.
Page 15 of 15

WALK-ON
RESOLUTION 2021-08-15: JACKIE MOTT RECOGNITION AND APPRECIATION

Chairman Gillam thanked Jackie Mott for her time and service to the Downtown Investment Authority as
she will be retiring August 27",

Chairman Gillam opened the floor for discussion.
Each Board Member thanked Mrs. Mott and wished her well in her future endeavors.
Chairman Gillam called for a motion.

Motion: Board Member Adams moved to approve Resolution 2021-08-15
Second: Board Member Gibbs seconded the motion
Chairman Gillam called for a vote.
Vote: Aye: 8 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 8-0-0.
ADJOURNMENT: The Community Redevelopment Agency proceedings are adjourned at 5:20 p.m.
The written minutes for this meeting are only an overview of what was discussed. For verbatim comments

of this meeting, a recording is available upon request. Please contact Xzavier Chisholm at
xchisholm@coj.net to acquire a recording of the meeting.



mailto:xchisholm@coj.net
mailto:xchisholm@coj.net

TAB IlI.B
RESOLUTION 2021-09-01: DISPOSITION 330 E BAY




RESOLUTION 2021-09-01

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”)
APPROVING THE CONCEPTUAL FRAMEWORK FOR THE TERMS AND
CONDITIONS, SCORING CRITERA AND TIMELINE TO BE INCLUDED IN A
FUTURE NOTICE OF DISPOSITION OF THAT CERTAIN CITY-OWNED
PROPERTY COMMONLY REFERRED TO AS THE FORMER COURTHOUSE
PROPERTY, SUBJECT TO FURTHER REFINEMENT AND APPROVAL BY THE
DIA; AUTHORIZING THE MARKETING IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS
ESTABLISHED HEREIN; INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(“CEO”) TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES
OF THIS RESOLUTION; FINDING THAT THIS RESOLUTION FURTHERS THE
BUSINESS INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT (“BID”) PLAN, INCLUDING THE
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA PLAN; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, DIA is the designated Community Redevelopment Agency for the North
Bank CRA, for which a BID Plan, inclusive of a Community Redevelopment Plan, was adopted
by Ordinance 2014-560-E; and

WHEREAS, the City owns an approximately 2.75 acres of upland riverfront property,
exclusive of Courthouse Drive right of way, comprising a portion of Duval County Tax Parcel
Number 073358 0000, hereto referred to as the “Property”; and

WHEREAS, DIA desires to seek proposals for the redevelopment of the Property, and to
that end has contracted with CBRE for real estate consulting and representation services,
including the development of a Notice of Disposition; and

WHEREAS, to allow marketing of the Property to begin in accordance with the
Timeline attached hereto as Exhibit 1, the DIA has established the conceptual framework for the
terms and conditions and scoring criteria to be included in a future Notice of Disposition,
attached hereto as Exhibit 2 and Exhibit 3, respectively; and

WHEREAS, DIA envisions that the property and anticipated disposition will be
marketed following adoption of this Resolution with the Notice of Disposition issued in October
immediately following the October Board meeting; and

WHEREAS, the terms of the disposition and scoring criteria will be adopted in final
form at the October board meeting; and

WHEREAS, the DIA finds that this resolution furthers the following Redevelopment
Goal and Strategic Objectives found in the BID Plan:

Redevelopment Goal No. 1
Reinforce Downtown as the City’s unique epicenter for business, history, culture,
education, and entertainment; and



RESOLUTION 2021-09-01
PAGE 2 OF 2

Redevelopment Goal No. 3
Simplify the approval process for downtown development and improve departmental and
agency coordination, NOW THERFORE

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are
incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 2. The DIA approves the Timeline attached hereto as Exhibit 1
Section 3. The DIA approves the conceptual framework of the Terms attached hereto
as Exhibit 2 and Scoring Criteria attached hereto as Exhibit 3 for use in marketing the anticipated

disposition.

Section 4. The DIA will take up final approval of the Timeline, Terms, and Scoring
Criteria at its October meeting prior to issuance of the formal Notice of Disposition.

Section 5. The DIA anticipates issuance of a 30 day Notice of Disposition regarding the
Property in October in accordance with the Timeline.

Section 6. The DIA instructs the Chief Executive Officer of the Downtown
Investment Authority to take all necessary action necessary to effectuate the purposes of this
Resolution.

Section 7. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the
Chair of the DIA Board.

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

W. Braxton Gillam, Esq., Chair Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



RESOLUTION 2021-09-01

EXHIBIT 1

Timeline with conceptual terms and scoring approved September; final terms and scoring

approved October 20 :

Marketing period pre NOD: September 15- October 21, 2021

NOTICE TIMELINE

DATE*

Issue Notice

October 22, 2021

Pre-proposal Conference

November 1, 2021

Written Questions Due

November 5, 2021

Written Answers Due

November 12, 2021

Bids Due

November 23, 2021

Oral Presentations for short listed Respondents

Week of Nov 29-Dec 3, 2021

Evaluation Committee recommendation to REPD
Committee

December7, 2021

DIA Board Meeting for Selection of Proposal

December 15, 2021

Award Posted

December 16, 2021

*Date to be interpreted as “on or by” with a fourteen (14) calendar day extension at the sole
discretion of the DIA CEO. Should the DIA Board not be able to meet within 14 calendar days of
its December, 2021 Board Meeting, it will select a proposal at the earlier of a special meeting or
its January2022 regularly scheduled Board Meeting, and the Award Posted date will correspond

accordingly.




RESOLUTION 2021-09-01
EXHIBIT 2

By its adoption of Resolution 2021-09-01, the Downtown Investment Authority approves the
following Conceptual Terms for inclusion into a Notice of Disposition and for use in pre-
marketing.

A. TheSite

This NOD shall be issued only for Area 2 identified in the 2019 disposition- the former County
Courthouse site — comprising the City block between Liberty and Market streets east to west
and Bay Street and Courthouse Drive on the north and south and shall exclude the existing
Courthouse Drive ROW.

(There were three (3) areas included in the 2019 NOD: Area 1 (former Annex site), Area 2
(former Courthouse site) and Area 3 (submerged lands). The City has contracted for design of a
public Marina to be constructed within Area 3, the submerged lands. Courthouse Drive will
remain public but is envisioned to be a pedestrian plaza closed to vehicular traffic)

B. Phasing
The primary-use structures per bid accepted must commence within 120 days of closing.

Closing to occur upon receipt of DDRB approvals and proof of financial capacity to complete
construction- which shall be completed within nine months of City Council approval of
disposition.

C. Mixed Use Development
Proposals shall include a mix of uses such as, but not limited to, multifamily, retail, office, open

space and/or hospitality. Unless a stand-alone entertainment venue or restaurant and open
/public space is proposed for the site, buildings directly fronting Bay Street shall have a vertical
mix of uses. Ground floor retail/restaurant (open to Bay is strongly encouraged and will be
rewarded in scoring. No responses will be accepted that do not activate Bay Street with
entrances, and elements such as common areas, leasing offices, etc. If residential units are
proposed, only market rate units should be proposed for this location and a preference for higher
density will be communicated to prospective developers.

Retail density, whether located on Bay Street, or on the riverfront in excess of the minimum required,
will be scored. Bay Street retail provided at the time of project opening is eligible for bonus points.

D. Bay Street Activation

Ground floor retail/restaurant (open to Bay is strongly encouraged and will be rewarded in
scoring. No responses will be accepted that do not activate Bay Street with entrances, and
elements such as common areas, leasing offices, etc. No more than 10% of the Bay Street
frontage may be a directly visible parking garage. Ground floor uses other than retail or
restaurant shall meet all transparency requirements. Activated tenant spaces such as gyms and
community rooms must comprise at least 35% of the Bay Street frontage. Work/live units or
office could comprise the remainder of the frontage, but bonus points will be awarded for true




RESOLUTION 2021-09-01
EXHIBIT 2

retail or restaurants on Bay Street and additional incentive consideration will be available. No
less than 35% of the Bay Street frontage shall be designed so as to facilitate future conversion
to street level retail if such space is contemplated for office or activated tenant private spaces
at the time of project completion.

E. St.Johns River

i)

i)

Setback. Proposals shall conform to a minimum building setback of fifty (50) feet from
the St. Johns River as measured from the landward side of a bulkhead and the
Courthouse Drive right of way is not intended to be included in the disposition but will
not remain open to vehicular traffic. Any proposal that is set back only to the property
line between the subject parcel and Courthouse Drive right of way will be required to
comply with height step-backs as well as include the required view corridor between
Bay Street and the River.

An optional alternative design would be considered if vertical construction is set back an
average of 100 feet or more from the bulkhead to create an activated public plaza. If
this design alternative is pursued, DIA staff will support a waiver of the view corridor
requirement based on existing block widths and provided adequate fagade
differentiation is incorporated along Bay Street. Some publicly accessible outdoor
seating, etc. could be incorporated in the 50 feet closest to the private development and
perhaps a restaurant could extend into this zone but development not generally open to
the public would be set back beyond this line. Additional bonus points may be available
for activated additional public space as described above.

Riverfront Activation. Proposals shall include riverfront activation and shall include a
riverfront Activity Node consistent with the Great Fire of 1901 node described in the
“Riverfront Design Guidelines and Activity Nodes Plans” dated August 25, 2018.

Furthermore, a minimum of 10,000 square feet of restaurant/bar space shall be
provided on the riverfront, of which at least 7500 square feet must be ground floor.
Retail waterfront space must have a minimum frontage on the Riverwalk of 75 linear
feet. The DIA desires a full-service restaurant providing a dining opportunity for boaters
on the waterfront. The restaurant shall have the ability to serve at meals to at least 100
patrons at one time. Bonus points are available to rooftop/upper story dining/bar
accessible to the public.

Marina Parking. The adjacent basin between Market and Liberty will be developed as a
public marina (no boat launch). Parking for visitors to the marina should be
contemplated in the project design, whether on-street or in a proposed garage.

F. Resiliency. The use of resilient construction materials and how the proposal addresses

potential flooding and site elevation will be considered. If the site is to be filled, how the
development remains pedestrian friendly from the sidewalk will be important.



RESOLUTION 2021-09-01
EXHIBIT 2

G. Design and Materials. As a prominent waterfront and Bay Street location, the design and

choice of construction materials will be taken into consideration, and we encourage high
quality product with architectural details and exterior finish worthy of the site. Bonus points
will also be available for unique architectural features that elevate the design.

Construction and Maintenance Contribution. Proposals should include Developer’s

proposed monetary or in-kind contribution to the construction and ongoing maintenance of
the Riverwalk and adjacent plaza/park space at this location, if any.

Development Team

The following criteria will be used to pre-qualify proposals:

i)

i)

Bid Bond
A bid bond of $25,000.00 shall be included with all proposals in a form to be determined
by the DIA Chief Executive Officer.

Proposals shall be from developers with experience of a singular project with aggregate
value in excess of S50 million and minimum square footage of 300,000. The principal
individual or company submitting the proposal shall meet this criterion and the financial
capacity of lenders and partners will not replace the experience and financial capacity of
the Developer who is leading the project.

Proposals shall include descriptions and visual materials related to the qualifying
projects detailed above.

No proposal shall be accepted for evaluation if the developer has judgement liens
(related to development performance) in excess of $10 million, unpaid taxes in excess of
S1 million or active judgement liens not related to development performance in excess
of $10 million.

J. Financial Offer and Incentives. Depending upon cash offer price, a multi-family market rate

REV grant (Property tax rebate) may be considered for projects meeting the program criteria
and goals of this notice of disposition.



Experience developing mixed use projects
of comparable size in an urban setting

Financial Strength of Development Team

Active litigation, judgement liens and
outstanding tax payments

Economic Benefit

Fee Simple acquisition price

Financial return to the City (ROI),
Economic impact (e.g. job creation, tax
revenues)

Equal opportunity / local participation
Park & Programming contribution

Project Development and Design
Project’s ability to activate Downtown
Thoughtful Mix of Uses

Retail Density, type, location above
minimum required

Development timeline (e.g. construction
commencement and delivery timing)

Civic and community benefits (e.g. open
and green space, access to the river)

Activation of the riverfront

Incorporation of Designated City Storyline
for Site and Activity Node

Quality of Construction Material and
Design

Design for Resiliency

Financial Proposal
Defined source and percentage of debt and
equity

Financial feasibility and cash flow analysis

Post-Completion Management Plan

[Oral Presentation |

[Total base score avaialble |

Bonus Points

Roof top/upper story dining/bar
Activated setback from river beyond 60
Bay Street Retalil

Unigue Archtectural Features, Character

EXHIBIT 3
SEPTEMBER 9, 2021
REPD RECOMMENDATION

10

10

0 to minus 5

25
8

65
10

15

10

12

132

50

10
20
15




TAB III.C
RESOLUTION 2021-09-02: LIVE DT JAX




RESOLUTION 2021-09-02

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
AUTHORIZING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT OR FUNCTIONAL EQUIVALENT WITH DOWNTOWN
VISION, INC. FOR THE UPDATE, MAINTENANCE AND HOSTING OF
THE LIVE DOWNTOWN JAX WEBSITE (WWW.LIVEDTJAX.COM);
AUTHORIZING FUNDING IN THE AMOUNT OF TEN THOUSAND
AND ZERO DOLLARS ($10,000.00) TO BE PAID TO DOWNTOWN
VISION, INC. FOR THESE WEBSITE SERVICES; PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, in 2019, the JAX Chamber created and the LivedtJax website to market the
downtown resident lifestyle, connect prospective residents to housing opportunities; and promote
downtown as a vibrant neighborhood.; and

WHEREAS, in 2020, Downtown Vision, Inc. (DVI) agreed to take over maintenance
and updating of the LivedtJax website; and

WHEREAS, DVI will continue to update and maintain the LIVE Downtown JAX
website throughout the year, ensuring all website content, plugins, etc. remain up-to-date; and

WHEREAS, DIA recognizes that the LivedtJax website is a crucial tool in attracting
future residents to Downtown and desires to continue its funding partnership with DVI; and

WHEREAS, the LivedtJax website enables visitors to:

Browse available listings and request information directly from properties
Search by number of bedrooms, pet-friendly options and other criteria
Take virtual tours

Explore our Resident Guide to learn how to live the dream in #DTJax,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The DIA Board hereby authorizes the CEO to take all actions necessary to
effectuate the intent of this Resolution including execution of an agreement for services or
functional equivalent.

Section 2. The DIA Board hereby expressly authorizes the use of $10,000 payable to
Downtown Vision, Inc. for the updating, maintenance and hosting of the LivedtJax website.

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the
Chair of the DIA Board.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]



RESOLUTION 2021-09-02
PAGE 2 OF 2

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Braxton Gillam, Esq., Chairman Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



TAB III.D
RESOLUTION 2021-09-03: INVEST DT JAX




RESOLUTION 2021-09-03

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
AUTHORIZING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT OR FUNCTIONAL EQUIVALENT WITH DOWNTOWN
VISION, INC. FOR THE UPDATE, MAINTENANCE AND HOSTING OF
THE INVEST IN DOWNTOWN JACKSONVILLE WEBSITE
(WWW.INVESTDTJAX.COM); AUTHORIZING FUNDING IN THE
AMOUNT OF FIFTEEN THOUSAND AND ZERO DOLLARS ($15,000.00)
TO BE PAID TO DOWNTOWN VISION, INC. FOR THESE WEBSITE
SERVICES; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority seeks to attract investment, facilitate
job creation and increase residential density through capital investment, planning, marketing, and
public-private partnerships including the provision of incentives; and

WHEREAS, a tool to recruiting investors, developers and lenders to Downtown
Jacksonville is an investor-focused website; and

WHEREAS, DVI will continue to update and maintain the Investdtjax website
throughout the year, ensuring all website content, plugins, etc. remain up-to-date; and

WHEREAS, the Investdtjax website was created with investors and developers in mind,
offering valuable resources for those interested in bringing their business Downtown, and
provides for:

e comprehensive real estate database of Downtown properties available for sale or
lease

e valuable statistics on Downtown’s demographics, labor force and business

e updates on DIA’s breadth of incentives

e detailed information on recently completed, under construction and approved
projects in Downtown Jacksonville,

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The DIA Board hereby authorizes the CEO to take all actions necessary to
effectuate the intent of this Resolution including execution of an agreement for services or
functional equivalent.

Section 2. The DIA Board hereby expressly authorizes the use of $15,000 payable to
Downtown Vision, Inc. for the updating, maintenance and hosting of the Investdtjax website.

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the
Chair of the DIA Board.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]



RESOLUTION 2021-09-03
PAGE 2 OF 2

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Braxton Gillam, Esq., Chairman Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



TAB IIILE
RESOLUTION 2021-09-05: RIVERS EDGE PERFORMANCE EXTENSION




RESOLUTION 2021-09-05

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
(“DIA”) REVISING THE PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE CONTAINED IN
EXHIBIT J OF THE REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“RDA”)
BETWEEN THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE (“CITY”), DIA, ELEMENTS
DEVELOPMENT OF JACKSONVILLE, LLC (“ELEMENTS”), AND THE
DISTRICT COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (“CDD”) DATED
JULY 12, 2018 AND RELATED DOCUMENTS, INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO THE CRA INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS COSTS
DISBURSEMENT AGREEMENT (“DISBURSEMENT AGREEMENT”)
BETWEEN THE DIA, CDD AND ELEMENTS DATED DECEMBER 22,
2020 AND THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (“INTERLOCAL
AGREEMENT”) AMONG THE CITY, DIA AND THE CDD DATED
DECEMBER 22, 2020, TO ESTABLISH REVISED DATES FOR
EXECUTION OF THE GENERAL CONTRACTS CONTEMPLATED FOR
CONSTRUCTION OF THE UPLAND CRA INFRASTRUCTURE
IMPROVEMENTS, FOR COMMENCEMENT OF THE UPLAND CRA
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS; AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF THE DIA (“CEO”) TO EXECUTE ALL
NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO EVIDENCE SUCH EXTENSION OF THE
PERFORMANCE SCHEDULES WITHIN THE RDA, DISBURSEMENT
AGREEMENT AND INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the DIA and City Council approved the RDA, Disbursement Agreement,
and Interlocal Agreement via DIA Resolution 2018-04-01 and Ordinance 2018-313, respectively;
and

WHEREAS, in December 2020, the CDD closed on the bonds to fund construction of the
CDD Infrastructure Improvements and CRA Infrastructure Improvements and Elements conveyed
to the City the City Parcels for the Riverwalk, several waterfront parks and a marsh front park in
accordance with the terms of the RDA; and

WHEREAS, the Permit Approval Date as established in paragraph (h) of the Performance
Schedule (as defined in the RDA) as the date by which the CDD shall (i) have obtained all permits
needed for the construction of the Project; and (ii) have signed the contract for construction of the
Project with a general contractor was March 3, 2021; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 3.2 of the RDA, the Permit Approval Date and
Commencement of Construction milestone and other dates within the Performance Schedules can
be extended by approval of the DIA Board; and

WHEREAS, on February 17, 2021, the DIA Board adopted Resolution 2021-02-04
extending certain dates in the Revised Exhibit J Performance Schedule and established a revised
Permit Approval Date of March 28, 2021; and



RESOLUTION 2021-09-05
PAGE 2 OF 5

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2021-02-04, the date by which a contract is required
to be signed with a General Contractor for the Upland CRA Instructure Improvements is
September 19, 2021; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2021-02-04, the date by which the CDD shall
commence construction of the Upland CRA Infrastructure Improvements is October 19, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the CDD has entered into a contract for and commenced construction of the
bulkhead portion of the CRA Infrastructure Improvements in accordance with the Performance
Schedule; and

WHEREAS, design of the upland portion of the CRA Infrastructure is progressing on
schedule; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with required procurement processes, the CDD conducted a
bid process for the Upland CRA Infrastructure Improvements but only one bid was received, such
bid was determined to be non-responsive and the CDD is now negotiating with four or more
potential contractors for construction of the Upland CRA Infrastructure Improvements; and

WHEREAS, the delay caused by the failed procurement has necessitated a short extension
of the Performance Schedule for the execution of the contract and commencement of construction
for CRA Upland Infrastructure Improvements; and

WHEREAS, all capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
ascribed to such terms in the RDA.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are
incorporated herein by this reference.

Section 2. The Revised Performance Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A shall be
substituted for the remainder of the performance milestones established in Exhibit J to the RDA
and in the Disbursement Agreement and Interlocal Agreement.

Section 3. The DIA acknowledges that as of this date Elements and the CDD have
satisfied the Revised Performance Schedule milestones prior hereto, as previously extended.

Section 4. This Resolution will utilize days of the remaining 340 days available
of the Performance Schedule extension authorized under Section 3.2 of the RDA yielding a net
balance of days available for future action of the DIA Board.

Section 5. For the purposes of calculating both the days utilized by this extension and
the remaining balance resulting therefrom, only the greater number of the actual days used for the
forty (40) day extensions provided in paragraph (j) or paragraph (k) of the Performance Schedule
attached hereto as Exhibit A shall be used in such calculation.



RESOLUTION 2021-09-05
PAGE 3 OF 5

Section 6. The CEO is hereby authorized to execute such contracts and documents and
otherwise take all necessary action in connection therewith to effectuate the purposes of this
Resolution.

Section 7. This Resolution, 2021-09-05, shall become effective on the date it is signed
by the Chair of the DIA Board.

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

W. Braxton Gillam, Esq., Chairman Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



RESOLUTION 2021-09-05
PAGE 4 OF 5

Exhibit A to Resolution 2021-09-05

Exhibit J Performance Schedule
Revised PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE as of
September 15, 2021 (including prior extensions)

@) On or before the Effective Date, the Developer shall have entered into a fully executed
DCSB Agreement in form and substance acceptable to the DIA and shall provide a copy thereof to the
DIA. The DCSB Agreement shall provide that, in the event the Developer or CDD default under the
DCSB Agreement, the DCSB Agreement at the option of the City may be collaterally assigned to the
City.

(b) Within thirty (30) days from the Effective Date, the Developer shall have engaged a
design, engineering and permitting team ("Design Team") and authorized that Design Team to proceed
with the design and engineering plans and specifications for the Project and shall have provided the
DIA with copies of the Contracts of engagements, evidence of the notice to proceed and schedule for
production of the plans and specifications (the "Plans and Specifications"). Within sixty (60) days
thereafter, and every thirty (30) days thereafter, the Design Team shall meet with and provide the Chief
Engineer for the City (the "Chief Engineer") the Plans and Specifications produced during the prior
thirty (30) days and all design and engineering of the CRA Infrastructure Improvements shall be subject
to the reasonable approval of the Chief Engineer. This schedule may be reasonably modified by the
Chief Engineer and the Design Team for better coordination and effectiveness of the review process.

(©) Within ninety (90) days from the Effective Date, the Developer shall have submitted the
Preliminary Plat for the Project Parcel to the City;

(d) On or before October 1, 2020:

M Prior to December 31, 2018, the Developer shall have overseen, petitioned the
City and caused the creation of the CDD pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida
Statutes, for the purposes of causing the development and construction of the
Project, and prior to December 31, 2020, the CDD shall have purchased the
Design and Engineering Plans (as defined in the Disbursement Agreement)
from the Developer; and

(i) The Developer and/or the CDD shall have substantially completed the final
design and engineering for the Project and the final plat for the Project Parcel
(excluding the final design and engineering for the marina improvements,
including the water taxi stop, transient boat docking facilities and kayak
launch).

(e) Prior to December 31, 2020, the CDD shall have issued the CDD Bonds the proceeds
of which shall be sufficient to fund the CDD Infrastructure Improvements and to satisfy reasonable
capitalized interest and debt service reserves together with reasonable placement agent fees and other
CDD bond industry standard issuance costs attendant to the issuance of the bonds.

()] Prior to December 31, 2020, but after issuance of the CDD Bonds, the Closing on the



RESOLUTION 2021-09-05
PAGE 5 OF 5

City Parcels shall have occurred in accordance with this Agreement.

(9) On or before December 31, 2020, the CDD shall have applied for all permits reasonably
necessary for the commencement of construction of the Project, and the CDD shall provide to the DIA
all permit documents and information required -by the City under its standard permit application
processes.

(h) On or before 60 days following the City Council Approval Date, or 30 days following
the DIA’s approval of the contract with the General Contractors for the bulkhead and parking lots
respectively, whichever occurs first, (the "Permit Approval Date”):

0] The CDD shall have obtained all permits reasonably necessary for
commencement of construction of portions of the CRA Infrastructure
Improvements and CDD Infrastructure Improvements; and

(i) The CDD shall have signed contracts with General Contractors for construction
of the bulkhead portion of the CRA Infrastructure Improvements and the
contract for construction of the DCSB parking lot portion of the CDD
Infrastructure Improvements;

0] On or before 30 days following the Permit Approval Date, the CDD shall Commence
Construction of the bulkhead portion of the CRA Infrastructure Improvements and the DCSB parking
lot portion of the CDD Infrastructure Improvements (the “Initial Commencement of Construction
Date”) and provide written notice of the date thereof to the DIA.

()] On or before 4806 220 days following the City Council Approval Date, or 30 days
following DIA’s approval of the contract with the General Contractor for the remaining CRA
Infrastructure, whichever occurs first, the CDD shall have signed a contract with a General Contractor
for the remaining CRA Infrastructure Improvements, including the marsh boardwalk and excluding
the bulkhead (the “Upland CRA Infrastructure Improvements™) and with a general contractor for the
remaining CDD Infrastructure Improvements, with the exception of the marina improvements,
including the water taxi stop, transient boat docking facilities and kayak launch.

(K) On or before 220 250 days following the City Council Approval Date, the CDD shall
Commence Construction of the Upland CRA Infrastructure Improvements and the remainder of the
CDD Infrastructure Improvements and provide written notice of the date thereof to the DIA.

U] The CDD shall Complete Construction of the CRA Infrastructure Improvements no
later than thirty-six (36) months after the Initial Commencement of Construction Date of the CRA
Infrastructure Improvements.

(m)  The CDD shall Complete Construction of the CDD Infrastructure Improvements no
later than forty-eight (48) months after the Initial Commencement of Construction Date of the CDD
Infrastructure Improvements.

In the event of any conflict between this Performance Schedule and the Performance Schedule
in the Disbursement Agreement, this Performance Schedule shall control. As used herein, the City
Council Approval Date shall be March 23, 2021, and the Permit Approval Date shall be March 28,
2021.



TAB IV.A

JULY 29, 2021 DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY BOARD MEETING
MINUTES




Downtown Investment Authority
Hybrid Meeting
JAX Thursday, July 29, 2021 — 2:46 p.m.

DOWNTOWN

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Downtown Investment Authority
MEETING MINUTES

DIA Board Members: Braxton Gillam, Esq., Chairman; Jim Citrano, Secretary; Oliver Barakat; Ron
Moody; Craig Gibbs, Esq.; David Ward, Esq.; Todd Froats; and Bill Adams, Esq.

DIA Board Members Excused: Carol Worsham, Vice Chair

Mayor’s Staff: None

Council Members: None

DIA Staff: Lori Boyer, Chief Executive Officer; Steve Kelley, Director of Downtown Real Estate
and Development; Guy Parola, Operations Manager; Lori Radcliffe-Meyers, Redevelopment
Coordinator; Ina Mezini, Communication and Marketing Specialist; John Crescimbeni, Contract and

Regulatory Compliance Manager; and Xzavier Chisholm, Administrative Assistant.

Office of General Counsel: Joelle Dillard, Esq.

CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Gillam called to order the Downtown Investment Authority Board
Meeting at 2:46 p.m.

IV. DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY MEETING

A JUNE 16, 2021 DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY BOARD MEETING
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES.

Seeing no comments, Chairman Gillam called for a motion.

Motion: Board Member Moody moved to approve the minutes as presented
Seconded: Board Member Gibbs seconded the motion

Seeing no comments, Chairman Moody called for a vote.
Vote: Aye: 8 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 8-0-0

B. RESOLUTION 2021-07-05: ALLOCATION OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”)
ALLOCATING UP TO TWO HUNDRED FORTY-SIX (246) UNITS OF MULTI-



Downtown Investment Authority
DIA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, July 29 — 2:46 p.m.
Page 2 of 5

FAMILY ENTITLEMENTS WITH MOBILITY FEE CREDITS (WITH AN
ESTIMATED CREDIT VALUE OF $140,763) TO RD RIVER CITY BREWERY,
LLC (“DEVELOPER”); AUTHORIZING THE DIA CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER TO EXECUTE ANY CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS AND
OTHERWISE TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION IN CONNECTION
THEREWITH TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION;
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Chairman Gillam gave the floor to Mr. Parola to introduce the Resolution.

Mr. Parola provided an overview of the Resolution, stating that it is an allocation of development
rights and is aligned with the Board’s previous approval of a redevelopment agreement with Related.
The timing stems from the abandonment of the DRI as well as DIA’s work with the consultant to
solidify the math. The Resolution allocates 246 multi-family new development units to the Related
Group for redevelopment of the River City parcel and includes two clawback provisions.

Chairman Gillam called for a motion.

Motion: Board Member Froats moved to approve Resolution 2021-07-05 as presented
Seconded:  Board Member Moody seconded the motion

Chairman Gillam opened the floor for discussion.

Board Member Barakat stated that he will be abstaining.
Board Member Citrano stated that he will be abstaining.

Seeing no discussion, Chairman Gillam called for a vote.

Vote: Aye: 6 Nay: 0 Abstain: 2
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 6-0-2

C. RESOLUTION 2021-07-06:  RON MOODY RECOGNITION AND
APPRECIATION

DEFERRED.

D. RESOLUTION 2021-07-08: CHRISTMAS IN THE CATHEDRAL DISTRICT

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
AUTHORIZING THE EVENT SPONSORSHIP OF 2021 CHRISTMAS IN THE
CATHEDRAL; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Chairman Gillam gave the floor to CEO Boyer to introduce the resolution.



Downtown Investment Authority
DIA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, July 29 — 2:46 p.m.
Page 3 of 5

CEO Boyer provided a brief summary of Resolution 2021-07-08, stating that it seeks to utilize
$10,000 in this year’s General Fund - Administrative Events budget to sponsor the Christmas in the
Cathedral.

Motion: Board Member Froats moved to approve Resolution 2021-07-08 as presented
Seconded: Board Member Gibbs seconded the motion

Chairman Gillam called for discussion.

Board Member Gibbs asked if this would effect the ice skating program. CEO Boyer responded that
the ice skating program will not be possible this season.

Jake Gordon, CEO of DVI, stated that the timing did not work out this time around but they are
looking to incorporate the ice skating rink into future downtown programming.

Chairman Gillam called for a vote.
Vote: Aye: 8 Nay: 0 Abstain: 0
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 8-0-0

V. NEW BUSINESS

None.

VI. CEO INFORMATIONAL BRIEFING

CEO Boyer provided an update on current DIA projects.
A Riverfront Plaza Design Award and Thematic Commonalities

CEO Boyer gave a presentation on the Riverfront Plaza Design Competition, discussing the
following:

e Procurement process

e Winning design

e What happens next

e Thematic commonatilities of the three finalists’ proposals

Chairman Gillam opened the floor for discussion.

Board Member Gibbs asked when does the project commence. CEO Boyer responded that the award
has been received and a meeting could take place as early as next week to negotiate a design contract.
That should take 45-60 days and it is expected that the design will be completed within 9 months.

Board Member Adams expressed his support for the winning design.
Board Member Citrano expressed his appreciation for the competing designs.



Downtown Investment Authority
DIA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, July 29 — 2:46 p.m.
Page 4 of 5

Board Member Ward advocated for flexibility in the process and expressed his support. CEO Boyer
reiterated that there is flexibility in the process and noted it has been recommended that they build
the park first because it is likely it will raise the value of the development pad.

Board Member Barakat stated that he agrees with that recommendation and expressed his support for
the winning design. He urged the DIA to be bold and seek an authentic experience.

CEO Boyer clarified for Board Member Froats that the design eliminates the curved roadway that
bisects the site. Board Member Froats noted that the art structure can be viewed in a multitude of
ways and apprecriated seeing the explanation behind the development of the art structure. He
expressed his support for the project.

B. DVI Legislation

CEO Boyer provided a brief summary of the pending DVI legislation which provides the DIA and
the Parks department with a mechanism to work more efficiently with DV1 in regard to programming
and a host of other services.

C. Pending Before Council
CEO Boyer provided an update on the following:

l. Trio

1. Johnson Commons
I1l.  Ambassador

IV. AirRights

D. BID and CRA Update

CEO Boyer provided the following updates:

Received approval for an extension of the Willdan market feasibility study.

Seeking an extension of the GAI contract.

Established a basic framework of what the design standard recommendations are going to be.
Expect a new round of stakeholder meetings and surveys for Task 3 branding efforts.

Board Member Adams asked if the branding efforts will require further costs. CEO Boyer responded
that it will not involve additional costs.

VIl. CHAIRMAN REPORT

Chairman Gillam provided closing remarks and stated that he will be starting the Speakers Bureau to
present DIA projects and efforts to the community and asked the Board to help him organize this
initiative.

Board Member Gibbs expressed his appreciation for the video presented at the previous DIA meeting
and urged the Board to show it during their community engagements.



Downtown Investment Authority
DIA Meeting Minutes — Wednesday, July 29 — 2:46 p.m.
Page 5 of 5

Viil. ADJOURN

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business, Chairman Gillam adjourned the meeting at 3:39
p.m.

The written minutes for this meeting are only an overview of what was discussed. For verbatim
comments of this meeting, a recording is available upon request. Please contact Xzavier Chisholm
at xchisholm@coj.net to acquire a recording of the meeting.



mailto:xchisholm@coj.net
mailto:xchisholm@coj.net

TABIV.B
RESOLUTION 2021-09-04: SPONSORSHIP DELEGATION AUTHORITY




RESOLUTION 2021-09-04

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
(“DIA”) DELEGATING TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEQO”)
DECISION MAKING AUTHORITY ON THE BEHALF OF THE DIA TO
CONTRIBUTE TO OR SPONSOR EVENTS AND PROGRAMMING THAT
ARE CONSISTENT WITH THE MISSION AND THE REDEVELOPMENT
GOALS OF THE BUSINESS INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN
(“BID PLAN”) AND DO NOT EXCEED $ PER EVENT OR
PROGRAM; REQUIRING THE CEO TO PROVIDE MONTHLY
REPORTS OF AMOUNT AND TYPE OF CONTRIBUTIONS;
INSTRUCTING ITS CEO TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTIONS TO
EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSE OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the mission of the DIA is to “establish an identity for the region that
capitalizes on partnerships to guide the revitalization of the core of the City of Jacksonville . . .
while assuring a unified effort is strategically focused to implement action through capital
investments, planning, advocacy [and] marketing” for Downtown (Business Investment and
Development Plan, “BID Plan”); and

WHEREAS, the BID Plan identifies several Community Redevelopment Area Goals that
the DIA expects to accomplish in support of the aforementioned mission. Specifically:

Redevelopment Goal No. 1: Reinforce Downtown as the City’s unique epicenter for
business, history, culture, education, and entertainment.

Redevelopment Goal No. 3: Simplify the approval process for Downtown development and
improve departmental and agency coordination.

Redevelopment Goal No. 5: Establish a waterfront design framework to ensure a unique
experience and sense of place; and

WHEREAS, the fiscal year budget allocates funds for the DIA to contribute to Downtown
events and programming that are consistent with the mission and redevelopment goals as provided
in the BID Plan; and

WHEREAS, authorizing the CEO to approve certain contributions and sponsorships of
events and programming with a not-to-exceed amount of without the necessity of prior DIA
Board approval will improve efficient coordination between the DIA and the Downtown
community and stakeholders to create unique experiences and a sense of place in an effort to
revitalize Downtown.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Downtown Investment Authority:

Section 1. The DIA authorizes its Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) to act on its behalf
without prior DIA Board approval to contribute to or sponsor events and programming that take



RESOLUTION 2021-09-04

PAGE 2 of 2
place in Downtown and/or further the Business Investment and Development Plan (“BID Plan”)
and do not exceed $ per event or programming.

Section 2. The CEO is hereby required to provide a monthly report to the DIA Board
of the amount and type of contributions and sponsorships of Downtown events or programming
that have been authorized during the prior month.

Section 3. The DIA authorizes its CEO to take all necessary actions to effectuate the
purpose of this Resolution.

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the Chair
of the DIA Board.

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Braxton Gillam, Chairman Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



TAB IV.C
RESOLUTION 2021-09-06: CRAIG GIBBS RECOGNITION AND APPRECIATION




RESOLUTION 2021-09-06

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY
(“DIA”) IN RECOGNITION AND APPRECIATION OF MR. CRAIG
GIBBS, ESQ., FOR HIS LEADERSHIP AS CHAIRPERSON OF THE DIA
DURING THE 2019-2020 TERM; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

WHEREAS, Mr. Gibbs, Esquire, was elected Chairperson of the Downtown
Investment Authority in June of 2019 after serving the previous year as Vice Chair; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Gibbs, Esq. led the DIA with a calm demeanor and trusted directive
during the onset of the COVID 19 pandemic, and through his leadership the DIA continued
as a model for transparency and public accessibility; and

WHEREAS, as a Downtown business owner, attorney and Downtown expert, Mr.
Gibbs was integral in guiding the development of the Northbank Downtown and Southside
Community Redevelopment Area Plans and the Business Investment and Development
Plans.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment
Authority:

Section 1. The Downtown Investment Authority recognizes the leadership of Mr.
Craig Gibbs, Esq. during his tenure as Chairperson during the 2019-2020 term and extends
its deep appreciation for his service to Downtown.

Section 2. This Resolution 2021-09-06 shall become effective on the date it is
signed by the Chair of the DIA Board.

WITNESS: DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

Witness W. Braxton Gillam, Esq., Chairman Date

VOTE: In Favor: Opposed: Abstained:



TAB VILLA
WILLDAN MARKET & FEASIBILITY STUDY




VA Vi

‘V‘AVA Viw

Draft Report
September 8, 2021

JACKSONVILLE
DOWNTOWN MARKET
& FEASIBILITY STUDY

Prepared by

W WILLDAN ” . AR




ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority

Lori Boyer, CEO

Steven Kelley, Director of Downtown
Development

2020 DIA Board of Directors
Bill Adams
Oliver J. Barakart
Jim Citrano
Leanna Cumber (Council Member Liaison)

Todd Froats

Guy Parola, Operations Manager

Ina Mezini, Marketing &
Communications Specialist

Braxton W. Gillam
Craig A. Gibbs

Ron Moody (Chair)
David Ward

Carol Worsham

Downtown Development Review Board (DDRB)

Brent J. Allen (Vice-Chair)
Craig D. Davisson
Brenna Durden (Secretary)

Christian M. Harden

Downtown Vision, Inc.

Jacob A. Gordon, Esq.

JAXUSA Partnership

Audra Wallace, President

Visit Jacksonville

Michael Corrigan, President & CEO

Frederick N. Jones
Trevor S. Lee
Joseph P. Loretta

Bill Schilling

Katherine Hardwick, Vice President of
Marketing

Laurie Kopstad, Director of Research

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

DOWNTOWN

INVESTMENT AUTHORITY

DOWNTOWN W"lee
,,t__é_;r;- JACKSONYVILLE

 JAXUSA

' PARTNERSHIP

and the Bpeaches

Where Florida Begins

City of Jacksonville Mayor & City Council

Mayor Lenny Curry

District 1: Joyce Morgan
District 2: Al Ferraro
District 3: Aaron L. Bowman
District 4: Kevin Carrico
District 5: LeAnna Cumber
District 6: Michael Boylan
District 7: Reggie Gaffney

At-Large Council Members

Group 1: Terrance Freeman
Group 2: Ronald B. Salem

Group 3: Tommy Hazouri

District 8: Ju'Coby Pittman

District 9: Garrett L. Dennis
District 10: Brenda Priestly Jackson
District 11: Danny Becton

District 12: Randy White

District 13: Rory Diamond

District 14: Randy DeFoor

Group 4: Matt Carlucci

Group 5: Samuel Newby

Real Estate & Economic Development Consulting

Support

Willdan Financial & Economic Consulting Services, Orlando, FL, www. willdan.com

Redevelopment Management Associates, Del Ray Beach, FL, www.rma.us.com

DKT Associates, Jacksonville, FL, www.dktconsultants.com

i | Page



Table of Contents

. Introduction & EXeCUtiVE SUMMATY ccceeeeeeeireeneeeeieennnceeceennencereenneceeeennes

. EXiStiNg CONAILIONS ..ueererueeerienneieereenneeerennneeeeeenneeeceensenceessnnsnsesssnnnnnns
DOWNEOWN DISEIICES ..veiieiiiiieciieicee e
210 1Y/ PNt
Cathearal ettt e e e e
CeNEral COTB.ciiiiiiiiiitiiiiiiet ittt et e e e e e e e e e
CRUICN ettt e e
LAVIIIA ettt e e e e e e e e eeeeenees
Sports and ENtertainment......eeiiee e e
SOUERDANK weeeeee e
WOrking Waterfront. ... e e e e e ea e

Major Projects on the HOMzoN ....uuueiiiieeiiiee e

. Methodology & AppProach ........ceeeeueeeiiiiiiiiniiiiiimmuuninsiiiinnnneeeeeneneneneees
Data SOUICES ...ttt
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) «.eeuuueeeeeeiiiieeieeiiiee e eeviieas

ESRI BUSINESS ANGIYST ieeiiieeieiiiiieeeeeiiie e e eetie e e e eetie e e e eeteeeeenaneeeeeaaanns

[0 ) = | N

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Yo=Y = | TS URRRRUPRRUPRN 9

STR Market SUMMATY . .cooiiiiieieeeeeeetettterreeree e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneans 9
EMSI Labor ANGIYTICS uueeeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeirtiiceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeevtareeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesranes 9
Downtown Jacksonville CRA District BOUNdaries........ccocevevererercnencncsceen 9
IV.  Demographic and ECONOMIC Profile......cccevvriiiierrmmneniiiiiicnnnnneeeennnencens 11
INTFOAUCTION .o 11
Regional Population Growth and Trends.........ceeeveeevvviiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeennns 14
Population Growth and Trends by DiStrict .......coevvvevvvivieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeennn, 18
Demographic Trends by Census BIOCK Group .....ceeevvvvveueiineeereeeeeenennnne 19
Economic Base: Employment Characteristics .........cccoovvevveeiieiciieeiicieeiee 21
EMPIOYMENT OVEIVIEW ..vvvvvrieieeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaneennserseeeeeeees 21
M@JOT EMPIOYELS «eeveeeeieieereereeeeeeee et eee e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeee e avranassrnennnnees 25
EMPlOYMENT PrOjECHIONS. cceeeeieieieeeeeiittieeeeeeeee et eeeeeeeeeeeeaees 26
Downtown Jacksonville Labor Force Assessment ........eeeeeeeeereeeeeeeeennnn. 26

V. Real Estate Market ANalYSiS.....ccevvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeessesessessesssnsnsnnnns 33
INTFOAUCTION .t 33
Multifamily Market INAICAtOrs .......ccooiiiiieiiec e 33
Asking Rents per Square Foot by Number of Bedrooms.......cccceevvueneeens 34

i | Page



VACANCY RALES 1vvvviiiiiiiiiieieeeeee e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeca e e e e e e eeaeaaaaaeeeas 35

FY o5t ] g o1 ao1 o HR SRR 35
Multifamily Market SUpply by DIStriCt vuuueeeeeeeeeeeiieeeviiiiiiceeeeeeeeeeeeeeennns 37
MUILITAMIlY PIPEINE 1uveeeeeee e e e e eeeeeeaaees 39
Residential Market FINAINGS ....vveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeevnveareeeeeeees 4]
Retail Market OVEIVIEW ......c..ciiiiieiiecece s 41
el geTe (VT 4T o F USROS 4]
Trade Area DEfiNitioNS...ceeeuereieeeeeeriiieeee e et e e e e e eieeeee e e 4]
COVid-19 IMPACE ceeieeeeeeeeeiiiicecee e e e e e e e e e eer e ree e e e e e e eeeeeesaarrraaaeeeaaaans 43
Retail Market Indicators by DiStriCt ..cceuvveeeeeeeriiiieeeeeeeiieeeeeeeeivveeeaes 44
Retail Supply Characteristics by SEEMeNnt....cccceeveeeeeviviiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeennns 47
PRAIMMACY coiiiieieeeeeticreee e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e r e e e e e aeeeeaeaaaees 53
Retail Market FINAINES ..ueeeeeeeeiiieiieeeiiieeeee e eee e e e e e e e e e eeeeaaes 53
Office Market OVEIVIEW.......cviuiiiiiiieeeee e 56
INEFOTUCTION 1ttt ettt ettt ettt e ettt e st e st eeesabeeeea 56
Office INdiCators DY DIStIICT .uuuueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeriiicieeeeeeeeeeeeeeerrreeeeeeeeeans 56
OFffice SUPPIY OVEIVIEW evvvveeeiiieeeeeeeeeeeeveviiieiee e e e e e e e e e eeeeaaeeeenaeeeeaaaes 56
Covid-19 Impact Assessment FINAINGS ..cvvvvuereeeiiiieeeeeeiieeeeeeieeeeeeeiins 59
Office Market FINAINGS ...ccooeeeeeeeeeereierreereeeeeeeeee e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeanes 60

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Hotel Market OVEIVIEW .......cocooiiiiiiieeeec e 63
INEFOAUCTION c.ttttteeeeeiiet et e e ettt e e e e et e e e e et e e e e s s enbbeeeeessnnnneeeees 63
Hotel Market FINAINGS .....ooiiiiiiiieee e 68
Market Growth SCenarios TESHING .....cccoovevveriiieiieeeeee e 68
VI, Peer CitieS COMPAIiSONS..uueeesserersrrrerssrsmnsessssssssssssssssssasessssssssssssssssss 71
INTFOAUCTION . 71
Peer Cities Downtown Redevelopment Best Practices....cceeeeeeeeeereerennns 75
Leadership and Best PraCtiCes.......coviiiieecieeee e 75
CINCINNATH, OH ettt ettt ettt et et et e e et e e eanesesaeeeaneeeannees 76
KANSAS Gty eeiieieirrieiiiiiiieaeeeeeeeeeererretseiiaseeeeeeeeeeereransennnnaaeaaesesessennees 76
LOUISVIIIE, KY ittt et et e et e e e e e e et e e e s eabeeeeeees 76
TAMPE, FL ceieeeiieieeeeeecceeee e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ee s e e e eeaeeeeeeenees 76
WESE PalM BEACK ...eiiiiieiiiiieeeeeiiiteee e eeeiitee e e eeitr e e e e s enraaeeeeeseneees 77
Peer Cities Comparisons: Lessons Learned .........cococeoiiiienenencncicseneeee 77
VII.  Downtown Jacksonville Incentives ANalysis .....ceeeeeueeeereennereereennencereanes 78
INTFOAUCTION .o 78
INCeNtIVE PErfOrMAaNnCe ......covoiiiiiciicee e 78
Downtown Investment Authority-Administered Incentive Programs ............ 79

i | Page


file:///C:/Users/mmckay/Box/WFS%20DC%20New%20Folder/Projects/Jacksonville%20Downtown%20Market%20Feasibility%20Study/Deliverables/Task%203.1%20Market%20Feasibility%20Study%20Findings_Consolidated%20Report/Jax%20DT%20Market%20&%20Feasibility%20Study_2021_09_08_DIA%20Submittal.docx%23_Toc82016973
file:///C:/Users/mmckay/Box/WFS%20DC%20New%20Folder/Projects/Jacksonville%20Downtown%20Market%20Feasibility%20Study/Deliverables/Task%203.1%20Market%20Feasibility%20Study%20Findings_Consolidated%20Report/Jax%20DT%20Market%20&%20Feasibility%20Study_2021_09_08_DIA%20Submittal.docx%23_Toc82016973

OVEIVIBW ..ettiiiiee ettt e ettt e ettt e ettt e e ettt e s eabaeeesabaeeesibeeesnbbeeesbbeeesane 79
Other City of Jacksonville Incentive Programs ..........ccccocveeviveeiievecceceen 85
OVEIVIBW .eeeeuiiteeeiitee ettt e ettt e e ettt e e st e e s ettt e e sttt e e sibeeesnnaeeesbeaeesnnne 85
Other City of Jacksonville Incentive Programs ..........cccoeveevveveeiioveeceeeen 87
OVEIVIBW ..etteuiiieeeittee ettt e ettt e e ettt e e sbb e e s ettt e e sttt e e sabeeesnsbeeesseaeesnane 87
DIA Incentives Awards (2016-2020)........cccveoueiieeeeeeeeeeeeee e 90
Incentive PerformMance ..o 91
VIll. Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Conclusions.......ccceeeeeeeeeeneee 94
Multifamily Development ....ciiiiieeeiiiiccceee e eeeeaees 95
REt@il ACHIVATION ..tiiiriiiieriiiieeeiiee et et e et e e see e e stee e s eaeeeeeeeeeens 95
OFfiCe AtEraCTION evviteeeeeeiiteee e e et ee e e e ettt e e e e eerer e e e e s snbereeeesssaneee 95
HOtEl DEVEIOPMENT . utuiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeettiteee e e e e e e e e e e e e aeee e e e e e eeeeeennaees 96
Market OPPOITUNITIES ....icviiiiiiecee e 97
Multi-Family Development ...ccieiveviiiiiiiieee e e e e e e e e e eeeeaees 98
Ret@il ACHIVATION ..viiiriiieiiiiie ettt ettt etee et e st et eeeeeee e 99
OFfiCe AtrACTION cuvviieeeeeeciiieee e ettt ee e e e et e e e s eetere e e e s eenrereeeeeseanes 101
HOtEl DEVEIOPMENT .. uiieeee e e eeeeeeeeetere e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeaaeeenees 101
Targeted District Market Opportunities ........cccoevveeiiieiiecicececeeee e 102

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

BrOOKIYN 1.t e e et e e e e e e e e e eaaaaaaan 102

Cathedral..ee et 103
CNTrAl COMBLuuiiiiiiiieee ettt ettt ettt e et e st e saree e sireee e 103
CRUICR ettt ettt e e et e e e s 104
LAVIITA ettt et 105
SOULNDANK 1ttt 106
Sports and ENtertainment. ... cceeeeeeeeeeeeeevveieiee e e e e e e e eeee e 106
WOrKing WaterfroNt.......uuvuveeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 108
CONCIUSION ..t 108

Appendix I: American Community Survey Data, by Census Block Group or

CENSUS TraCtuuureereeeeeeeeeeeeeeereesasassssssssssssssssssnssnssesssssassasssssssssssssssssssssnnssnnnne 1
Appendix II: Jacksonville Incentives ANalysiS.....cceeeeeeereenecrrecerencereneeeencenennes 8
Qualified Target Industries for INCENTIVES .......cvieiiiiiieee e 8

Manufacturing, Corporate Headquarters, Research and Development .... 8

EMErging TEChNOIOZIES «uueveeiiiiiiieiiietieeeee e et e e e e e e e e e eeeaaaaas 8
Other ManUFaCtUING ......cooeeeeeeeeeeeeetrreeeeeeee e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeeeeeneans 8
iv | Page



Index of Tables

Table 1:

Table 2:

Table 3:

Table 4:

Table 5:

Table 6:

Table 7:

Table 8:

Table 9:

Downtown Jacksonville Major Projects, 2021 .....cccuueeeiieeiineeeiieennenns 8

Census Block Groups Intersected by Downtown Overlay Districts..... 12

Population Trends by City, County and MSA, 2014-2025 ................. 14
Demographic Characteristic Trends (2014 - 2019) ..uvueeeeeeeeeeeneeeennnn, 16
Select Housing Characteristic Trends (2014 t0 2019) ...uvvvveeeeeeeeeenns 17
Multifamily Household Population......ccceeeeeeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiineeeeeeeeeeennee 18
Multifamily HOUSING UNITS..uuvreereeiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeevreereeeeeeees 18
Labor Force and Unemployment, Jacksonville MSA ....ccoeeeeeveiieinnnnn. 24
Jacksonville Area Largest Private EMployers.....coceeeevveeeeeerevieeeennnne. 25

Table 10: Duval County Top Ten Projected Jobs by Sector, 2020 to 2025....... 25

Table 11: Duval County Employment Projections, 2020 to 2025 ................... 26
Table 12: Worker Characteristics, City of Jacksonville (2018)........cccevvuneennnn.e. 27
Table 13: Workforce and Training Gaps, Duval County (2020) .......evvvvvveveenes 28
Table 14: Top 20 Occupations, Duval County (2020) ......cevvvvveeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeennns 30
Table 15: Jacksonville Workforce SWOT ..ceeuuuiuiiiererreiiiiiiiiiiiiiccee e eeeeeeeenes 31
Table 16: Multifamily Market Indicators by District, Q4 2020 .......ccccvvvvvevenees 33
Table 17: CoStar RatiNg CrIEIIA .uvvuurrrreeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeererereeeees 37
Table 18: Multifamily Residential Supply — Existing Inventory, Q1 2021......... 38

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Table 19: Multifamily PipeliNe ......uvvvveeivireeiieeieeeeeeeeeeee e 39

Table 20: Multifamily Development Pipeling, 2020 ........ccceeeeeevuvrrvverevernnnns 40
Table 21: General Merchandise Retailers Favored by Residents ................... 48
Table 22: Top Ten Apparel Retailers Favored by Residents.......cceeeeevveeeeennnne. 48
Table 23: Top 20 Dining Establishments Favored by Residents ..........cc.evee.... 49
Table 24: Inventory of Restaurants with Outdoor Seating by District............. 50
Table 25: Top Six Jacksonville Pharmacies Favored by Residents, 2021.......... 53
Table 26: Jacksonville Office Sales Highlights, 2020 ........ccoeivveeiiiieeiineeinnnnes 59
Table 27: Downtown Jacksonville Hotel Rooms Supply, Q1 2021 .................. 63
Table 28: Smith Travel Research Performance Indicators 2015-2020 ............ 67
Table 29: Peer Cities Comparative Tax Bases, 2012-2019.......ccccevvueevinneennnnnns 72
Table 30: DIA/COJ Developer Incentives, 2021 ........cccoeeeeeeeeeeeceecnrrrrrrerennns 78
Table 31: City of Jacksonville, FL Developer Incentives Programs.................. 81

Table 32: City of Jacksonville, Other Developer Incentives Programs, 2021.... 88

Table 33: DIA Incentive Program Assessment — Performance Measures Against

GOAalS (2014 t0 2020) wuvrrrrieeiieeieeeeeeeeeee e e e ee e aaaaaaaaaaaas 93
Table 34: 2014 DIA BID Plan: Desired Retail BUSINESSES ......vvvvereeeeereeeeeeenens 100
v | Page



Index of Figures

Figure 1: Public Art, Brooklyn DIiStriCt ....iuueeeeieeeeiiieeeiieeeiieee e eeie e e e e e 3
Figure 2: Cathedral District MUIal ..cuuuueeieiiiiee e 4
Figure 3: Central Core MUTal .....uueeeeureeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeee e 4
Figure 4: The Ritz Theatre & Museum, LaVilla District .....cceevveeiiiieeiiniiiinnnnen. 5

Figure 5: Sports and Entertainment District — Shipyards & Kids Campus

REAEVEIOPMENT AN .ciiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeer e eeeeaaaaees 6
Figure 6: Naya Autonomous Shuttle, Sports and Entertainment District .......... 6
Figure 7: Southbank RIVEIrWalK.......eeeeireieiiiiiiiiiiiiee et e e 7

Figure 8: Shipyards & Kids Kampus Master Plan Concept (Land View from St.

JONN S RIVET) ettt et e e e e e et e e e e eaaaes 7
Figure 9: Shipyards and Kids Kampus Redevelopment Vision.........cccuceeevennneee. 8
Figure 10: JEA Headquarters, Downtown Jacksonville Central Core................. 8
Figure 11: Downtown Jacksonville CRA DiStricts........ccccovvevvieiiviieiiciceeiceee 10
Figure 12: Downtown Overlay Districts and Census Block Groups .................... 13
Figure 13: Housing Tenure by Census Block Group, 2014 and 2019 ................. 19
Figure 14: Median Household Income by Census Tract, 2014 ........cc.ccccevenene. 20
Figure 15: Median Household Income by Census Tract, 2019 ........cc.cceevenene. 20

Figure 16: Population by Race and Ethnicity by Census Block Group, 2014 and

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Figure 17: Total Population by Age by Census Block Group, 2014 and 2019.... 21

Figure 18: Jacksonville Area Nonfarm Employment by Sector...........cccccceveeei.. 22
Figure 19: Jacksonville vs. US Unemployment Rate (2015-2021) .......ccoceuvenee. 24

Figure 20: City of Jacksonville 2020 Population 25+ by Educational Attainment

Figure 21: Gap between Annual Job Openings and 2019 Regional Educational

Program Completions, Duval COUNtY ........cooviiiiiiiiie e 29
Figure 22: Best of JacksonVille.........cc.ooviiiiiiiiicecc e 32
Figure 23: Asking Rents per Square Foot by Bedrooms, by District, Q4 2020... 34
Figure 24: Multifamily Vacancy by District, Q4 2020 .......ccccooeviiiiniieeieeeeeee 35
Figure 25: 12 Month Absorption, Q4 2020 .......cccocvevierierierieieieseeiee e 35

Figure 26: Weighted Average Land Sales Price per Square Foot (2015 to 2020)

............................................................................................................................... 36
Figure 27:Multifamily Units by Housing Quality, by District........cccocevererennne. 37
Figure 28: Visitor Drawing Area by Home Location .........c.ccceeieeviiiieccecceee 42
Figure 29: Employee Trade Area by Home Location........c.ccceeveeiiiccieiccee 42

Figure 30: Monthly Visits to Downtown Jacksonville by Employees and Visitors,

March 2019 to February 20271 .....c.ioiiiiiieeiieeeie e 43
Figure 31: Retail Inventory, By District, Q4 2020 ....cccevvvveeeeeriiinneereiineeennnnns 45
Figure 32: Retail Market Rent per Square Foot, Q4 2020 ....cccuevevveeeeinneennnnnns 45

vi | Page




Figure 33: Vacancy Rate, Q4 2020....ccccieeiiiiieieiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e 46 Figure 52: Average Retail Market RENt ......covvvvvvvuiiieeeeeeieeeeeeeeeviiieeeeeeeeees 70

Figure 34: 12 Month Net Retail Absorption, Q4 2020 ....cc.ceeevuereieeeeineennnnnns 47 Figure 53: Average Class A Office Market Rent .....coccevvvveeeeieiiiieeeeeeieeeeeeeee, 70
Figure 35: Restaurants with Outdoor Seating, by DiStrict ...cccvvveeeeeecvveeeeeenn. 49 Figure 54: DIA Incentives Activity (2016-2020).....cccccveveeeeccnrvereeenn. 90
Figure 36: Grocery Trade Area OVerlap....ceeeiueeeeeeeiieeeeiee e eeas 52 Figure 55: Example of Pipeline Development — Laura Street Trio Developer
Figure 37: The Tenant Mix Transformation oo 54 ReNAEring, 2021 .oocieeeeeeeeeeeeiiiitreeeeeee e e e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeearanrearaaaareaaes 92
Figure 38: Ruby Beach Brewery, Downtown Jacksonville .......cccceveeevineeennnnnns 54 Figure 56: Shipyards and Kids Kampus Redevelopment CONCept ................ 107
Figure 39: W. Forsyth Street Parking Garage Mural, Central Core ................. 55
Figure 40: Office Inventory by Class and District, Q4 2020 ......ccccvvueeeveneeennnnes 56
Figure 41: Office Vacancy by District, Q4 2020 .....uueeeeereeeeeereeriiriiiieeeeeeeeans 57
Figure 42: Office Vacancy by District by Class, Q4 2020 ........ccevvvvveeieeeeeeenans 57
Figure 43: Office Rent per Square Foot by District, Q4 2020.........eeevveneeennnnes 58
Figure 44: Office 12 Month Net Absorption by District, Q4 2020 ..........cee..... 58
Figure 45: Market Sales Price per Square Foot by District, Q4 2020 .............. 59
Figure 46: Jacksonville Hotel Supply Map, 2021 ....uuieeeeeiieeeeeeeeeiiiieceee e 64
Figure 47: Smith Travel Research Hotel Market Indicators 2015-2020........... 65
Figure 48: Average Asking Rent per Square Foot (Studio - Market Rate) ........ 69

Figure 49: Average Asking Rent per Square Foot (1 Bedroom - Market Rate) . 69
Figure 50: Average Asking Rent per Square Foot (2 Bedroom - Market Rate) . 69

Figure 51: Average Asking Rent per Square Foot (3 Bedroom - Market Rate) . 69

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study vii | Page



I. INTRODUCTION & EXECUTIVE
SUMMARY

The City of Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority (Jacksonville DIA) is
undertaking an update to the 2014-2019 Community Redevelopment Area

Business Investment & Development Plan.

To inform policy recommendations, redevelopment strategies, and allocation
of limited public resources to meet the goals and objectives established by the
Downtown Jacksonville Community Redevelopment Area (CRA) Plan, the DIA is
undertaking a market feasibility study focused on the neighborhood or District-
level (these terms are used interchangeably) drivers of real estate supply and

demand for multifamily, retail, food and beverage, office and hotel uses.

These eight subject neighborhood districts that are contained within the
Downtown Jacksonville Northbank CRA (Northbank Downtown) and Southside

CRA (Southbank) include:

= Brooklyn = laVilla

=  Cathedral = Southbank

= Central Core = Sports and Entertainment
= Church =  Working Waterfront

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Downtown Jacksonville 2014
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREA GOALS

) Reinforce Downtown as the City’s unique epicenter
for business, history, culture, education, and

entertainment

@ Increase rental and owner-occupied housing
Downtown, targeting key demographic groups seeking

a more urban lifestyle

© simplify the approval process for Downtown
development and improve departmental and agency

coordination

@ Improve walkability/bike ability and connectivity to
adjacent neighborhoods and the St. Johns River while

creating highly walkable nodes

© Establish a waterfront design framework to ensure a

unique experience and sense of place

( Maintain a clean and safe 24-7 Downtown for

residents, workers, and visitors

@ Promote design for healthy living by using planning

and economic development policies

1| Page




The market and feasibility study provides an expanded and updated baseline of
demographic and real estate trends and projections to inform an assessment of
development constraints and opportunities in each Downtown neighborhood

District.

The market analysis identifies opportunities to catalyze development activity
with targeted incentives in each Downtown neighborhood District as a key

focus of the study.

To fully profile current market conditions and impediments to development,
the market assessment includes direct input from the local and regional real

estate development and brokerage community.

The market study builds on the prior Business Investment and Development
Strategy research released in 2014 (updated in 2019) with an expanded

emphasis on data collection and analysis at the District level.

Finally, recognizing the impact of Covid-19 on the real estate redevelopment
market, note that pre-Covid-19 data is analyzed to establish a baseline. The
baseline is compared to real time data capturing shifts in trade area
composition, daytime employment, frequency and length of visits/trips, and

other demand-related impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic.

The demographic and real estate market assessments are informed by the
most current data available from the US Census American Community Survey,
CoStar, ESRI, Placer.ai, and STR through January 2021 to capture the most
current market conditions in Downtown Jacksonville by District and sector,

along with estimated recovery time frames. Accordingly, the projections of

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

demand within each District are provided in a range of hypothetical scenarios

for planning purposes only (best case, worst case and most likely).

The outcome of the Downtown Jacksonville Market and Feasibility Study is
centered on identifying the needs, impediments, and opportunities for
development by sector within each neighborhood Districts of Downtown

Jacksonville utilizing an objective, data driven approach.

The Market and Feasibility Study concludes that the DIA is making progress
towards goals according to established performance measures, especially with
respect to growth in Downtown population, multifamily residential

development, and outdoor dining establishments.

The DIA should continue to make incentives flexible and nimble to meet the
needs of catalytic projects with complex deal structuring. The DIA should also
explore the opportunity to use targeted developer incentives to cross-subsidize
mixed-use projects to achieve an optimal mix of uses with the Downtown’s

remaining available land — increasingly scarce and valuable.

Concurrently, an evolving set of incentives guidelines will come into play as the
market matures, new concepts emerge, projects materialize, and land values
rise. The DIA’s role as Downtown development facilitator will likewise evolve
to require greater emphasis on curation of specific target uses at the

District/neighborhood level on a project-by-project basis.

Over time, the DIA will foster the creation of more Downtown destinations,
experiential retail, and specialty/neighborhood-serving “gems” through the
continuing exceptional administration of the start-up subsidies and tax

incentives needed to fund investment gaps.

2 | Page




II. EXISTING CONDITIONS

Downtown Districts
Following is a profile of each Downtown Jacksonville neighborhood District
located in the Northbank (Northbank Downtown) and Southside (Southbank)

CRAs.

| | | Downtown Overlay Districts |
[ t [ erookiyn
[ cathedral
e ] / [ centraiCore

) 4 : i / ‘ ”( :| Church
— i y / SN / LaVila

O e W gy / 4 [ southbank
S d ] Vi W o A 5 g | [ sports & Entertainment

) / -.../Church—/ e 4 )
i 25 RUFE [] Working watertront

Yo #Z_ [lavilla i - /]
R ] f Cathedral g
< M § f / A B/ }
7 St el L e . i S

Central Coré -/~ + ;-*/;r‘ B/ ‘7_?_75:“7 - |
[ = 1\ Sport Sports & Enterfainment [/~
= { Worklng
S~ ..(Wuferfro t

a =

]

7

Brooklyn

Brooklyn connects the Central Core to the historic Riverside neighborhood and
Five Points shopping and dining district. Home to major headquarters, such as
Black Knight Financial, FIS, Florida Blue and Haskell National Bank, Brooklyn

serves both businesses and residents.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

The district is leading development trends that are evolving to offer a mix of
uses, including riverfront office, multifamily housing, restaurants, retail and
light industrial. The community’s direct river access has spurred several major
projects which are underway. Brooklyn is well positioned for continued urban

infill redevelopment activity with increasing mixed-use product offerings.

Figure 1: Public Art, Brooklyn District

3 | Page




Cathedral

Anchored by five historic churches, the Cathedral District connects the Central
Core to the Sports and Entertainment District and is home to Billy Goat Hill, the
highest point in Downtown Jacksonville. Beginning in 2016, the area has been
championed by Cathedral District Jax-Inc. (CD-J), a nonprofit organized to
foster growth in this Jacksonville Downtown neighborhood by supporting

development and revitalization efforts.

Figure 2: Cathedral District Mural

Source: Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority, 2020

Minor portions of the Cathedral District are in a Florida "Opportunity Zone", a
designation created through the federal Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 for
economically distressed areas. OZs are designed to spur economic
development by providing tax incentives for investors who invest new capital in

property or businesses operating in one or more QOZs.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Central Core

Jacksonville was founded on the riverbank of the Central Core and its small
walkable blocks are filled with historic architecture, cultural amenities, and
public art. The district encompasses much of Downtown’s office towers,

government services, regional non-profits, and various art and cultural centers.

Key riverfront property development is advancing to enhance Jacksonville’s
iconic skyline. Notably, the availability of several unique and historic properties
provides significant opportunities for adaptive reuse and enhancing the

experiential sense of place in Downtown Jacksonville.

Figure 3: Central Core Mural

A ™ §

Source: Jacksonville Downfowh'lnves‘rmem Authority, 2020

4 | Page




Church
Situated along the northern boundary of Downtown between the Central Core
and the historic Springfield neighborhood, the district is at the onset of a major

transition.

Drawing its name from the multi-block First Baptist Church of Jacksonville
campus, the area is ripe for redevelopment, with eight contiguous blocks
currently for sale and multiple adaptive reuse projects underway to bring

residential, retail and a hotel to the district.

LaVilla

As Jacksonville’s oldest suburb, LaVilla was known as the Harlem of the South
and the epicenter of black culture and commerce in Northeast Florida, as well
as Jacksonville’s railroad hub. Following a decline in population and quality of
life in the 20th Century, the River City Renaissance (RCR) Plan aimed to
revitalize the area in the 1990s, making room for future development through

the acquisition and clearing of many acres.

Development stalled for nearly thirty years, but recently, redevelopment has
returned in the form of new workforce housing and transportation projects.
The 2019 LaVilla Neighborhood Development Strategy recommends the
development of the LaVilla Heritage Trail for pedestrians and bicycles and a

Water Street road diet to connect the historic district to the riverfront.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Figure 4: The Ritz Theatre & Museum, LaVilla District

&

Jcknille DO\;\‘/'n»Tovvn Investment Au‘rhoriTy, 2020

Source:
Sports and Entertainment

The Sports and Entertainment District is home to five sports teams, major
concerts, the annual Jacksonville Fair, and more — forming the biggest

concentration of entertainment venues in Northeast Florida.

The district was once home to a thriving maritime industry, its riverfront lined
with shipyards. Today, major mixed-use developments are planned to bring

residents, employees, and visitors to the area.

As with the Cathedral District, an area of the Sports and Entertainment District
was designated as an “Opportunity Zone” by the federal Tax Cuts and Jobs Act
of 2017.

5 | Page




Figure 5: Sports and Entertainment District — Shipyards & Kids Figure 6: Naya Autonomous Shuttle, Sports and Entertainment
Campus Redevelopment Area District

Source: Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority, 2021

The Shipyards and Kids Kampus project is a major development program

s ¥

P St
Authority, 2020

currently approved by the DIA. Components include: : P
Downtown Investment

Source: Jacksonville

=  Five-star luxury hotel with 176 rooms and high-quality amenities (i.e.,
spa, pool, and meeting spaces)

=  Residential condominiums (25 Class A units)
=  C(Class A Office (157,027 Gross Square Feet); and
=  Retail and activated uses (+/- 39,000 sq. ft.)

Total project investment in the proposed master plan concept is $315 million.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 6 | Page




Southbank

Home to tall riverfront office and residential towers, the Southbank sits
between the St. Johns River and the San Marco neighborhood to the south. It
features a wealth of hotels and nationally recognized medical campuses
including Baptist Medical Center, Wolfson Children’s Hospital, MD Anderson
Cancer Center and Nemours Specialty Care center. The community enjoys
direct riverfront access via the Southbank Riverwalk, a boat ramp, kayak

launch, and River Taxi stops.

Figure 7: Southbank Riverwalk

Source: Jacksonville Downfown Investment Authority; RMA; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Working Waterfront

The Working Waterfront sits on the eastern edge of Downtown. Home to the
North Florida Shipyards, the district primarily supports industrial waterfront
uses with a special district zoning overlay that accommodates the shipping,

lumber, concrete, oil, and similar businesses operating there.

Major Projects on the Horizon
According to the DIA, while the pandemic has presented new challenges
everywhere, Downtown Jacksonville has seen several new major projects break

ground or further advance through the master planning process.

Figure 8: Shipyards & Kids Kampus Master Plan Concept (Land
View from St. John's River)

Source: Jacksonville Downftown Investment Authority; HKS Inc.; Willdan,
2021

These major planned and proposed projects are profiled in the following table.

7 | Page




Table 1: Downtown Jacksonville Major Projects, 2021

Downtown Overlay
District

Major Projects Under Construction/Proposed

FIS Headquarters (300,000 sq ft)

Brooklyn Florida Blue Parking Garage
Vista Brooklyn (308 Units, 13,000 Sq Ft Retail)
Cathedral Ashley Square (120 units senior housing)

Central Core

Federal Reserve Building

Florida Baptist Convention Building

Independent Life Building

Jacksonville Energy Authority (JEA) Headquarters
Ambassador Hotel (historic rehabilitation, 127 Rooms)

Laura Street Trio: Florida Life Building; Bisbee Building;
Florida National Bank Building

Riverfront Plaza (FKA The Landing)
Vystar Credit Union Headquarters

Church

Porter House Mansion (16,000 Sq Ft Office)

LaVilla

Emerald Trail Master Plan Connection
JEA Secondary Headquarters Building
La Villa Townhomes

Lift Ev'ry Voice and Sing Park

Southbank

River’s Edge ($353M investment, 950 units, 140 hotel
rooms, 334,000 sq ft office/retail

Southbank Apartments by Ventures (185 Units)
The Related Group Development (327 Units)

Sports and
Entertainment District

Museum of Science and History (MOSH)
Stadium of the Future
The Doro

Shipyards and Kids Kampus Master Plan
Redevelopment

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Figure 9: Shipyards and Kids Kampus Redevelopment Vision

|

HIKS m—
Source: Jacksonville Downftown Investment Authority; HKS Inc; RMA;
Willdan, 2021

Figure 10: JEA Headquarters, Downtown Jacksonville Central Core

Source: Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority, 2020

8 | Page




lll. METHODOLOGY & APPROACH

Data Sources

The consultants collected demographic and economic data from a variety of
industry standard software subscription licenses. The study also relies on client
provided background reports, studies, data, and individual market research

interviews. These resources are further detailed in Appendix Il in this report.

Geographic Information Systems (GIS)
This analysis is informed by geographic information systems (GIS) data in
several ways. Spatial data was collected data for each District where available,

including from ESRI Business Analyst, CoStar and Placer.ai.

ESRI Business Analyst

ESRI Business Analysis was used to collect data for several purposes within this
analysis. It was primarily used to obtain demographic and economic indicators
for each of the comparison cities. The platform aggregates data from a variety
of sources, including the US Census’” American Community Survey, Bureau of

Labor Statistics, and other proprietary sources.

CosStar

CoStar is a commercial real estate data aggregator that provides near real-time
analytics for retail, multifamily, office and industrial properties. It was used to
identify market indicators for each of the downtown districts and the cities
included in the peer cities analysis. Data provided includes statistics such as

asking rents, lease rates, sales comparisons, vacancy, and absorption.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Placer.ai

Placer.ai is an exciting new web-based tool that provides analysis of consumer
behaviors based on anonymous cell phone data. The data was used extensively
in this analysis to determine the true trade areas for various retail uses in
Downtown Jacksonville, and to evaluate the effect of Covid-19 on the retail

market.

STR Market Summary
Trend Reports display historical monthly, year-to-date, and total-year
performance metrics as well as census and sample information for a market,

submarket, city, county, or specified set of hotels.

EMSI Labor Analytics
EMSI is a labor market analytics firm, using data to drive economic prosperity.
EMSI collects and integrates complex labor market data with software tools to

measure regional employment, economic trends, and training needs.

Downtown Jacksonville CRA District Boundaries
To collect the GIS-based data, Willdan created a GIS shapefile layer defining
each Downtown Overlay District using the legal boundaries for each District as
codified in Sec. 656.361.2 of the City of Jacksonville’s Zoning Code. The

creation of the shapefile referenced publicly accessible street centerline,
hydrology, and heavy rail datasets to ensure accuracy. The boundaries as

analyzed in this analysis are shown in the following figure.

9 | Page




Figure 11: Downtown Jacksonville CRA Districts

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

= 1 I P
I — .
| |

N 1 1
:ijﬁ‘ =
lel‘lr--— I 1_1___..

B S, W

| | LR |

[

|

|:| Church

-|Downtown Sports &
Overlay Districts Entertainm...
Working
— Waterfront
Brooklyn
| r===== Northbank
[ ] Cathedral Leeeed CRA
I:l Central Core E:"‘l Southbank
-=d CRA

|:| LaVilla

uthbank

|

__I—]So

BTN 5

Source: City of Jacksonville; DIA;

l ARC GIS; Willdan, 2021

T

10 | Page




1V. DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC
PROFILE

Introduction
The following baseline demographic and economic profile analyzes Downtown
Jacksonville and its economic relationships to the City of Jacksonville, Duval

County and the Jacksonville Metropolitan Statistical Area (Jacksonville MSA).

The profile of the region’s current and forecasted population trends for the
short-term (through 2025) are based on projections for Duval County prepared
by the University of Florida’s Bureau of Economic and Business Research
(BEBR). BEBR ‘s population projections include three scenarios (high, medium
and low). The analysis presented herein is based on the medium projection for
population growth at the county level and recognizes that the City of
Jacksonville population comprises over 95 percent of the countywide total and
nearly 60 percent of the MSA. Similarly, the broader regional analysis assumes
that the MSA population increases will be proportional to those at the county

level.

Notwithstanding the regional context, the focus of this analysis is primarily the
Downtown CRAs and their economic indicators. Key variables examined within
the District boundaries include current and projected demographic and lifestyle
characteristics that serve to measure market demand (spending power), such

as population, households, age profiles, and household income levels.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Data Validity and Limitations

The US Census Bureau’s American Community Survey (ACS) is the primary data
source used for demographic analysis in this study for several reasons. The
data fields are standardized and collected at regular intervals which allows for
analysis across geographies and time. The survey covers a wide variety of
topics, from income to housing and other related topics. Private sector and

academic research both depend heavily on this voluminous data source.

Like any data set that is used to infer conclusions from a population sample,
the American Community Survey does have limitations. Most relevant to this is
analysis is that the smallest geographic areas for which estimates are available
are Census Block Groups (BG). While the data can be used to infer conclusions
about large geographic areas with great statistical certainty, the smaller the
area of interest the greater the margin of error around the inferences. For
context, there is only one BG that is wholly contained within the Downtown

CRA.

If BGs split across an area of interest, assumptions can be made about how the
BG level data can be allocated to the area of interest. Even with carefully
reasoned assumptions for allocation that are utilized by the data services
underpinning this report, this approach can yield results where the subject

geography is influenced by data from adjacent locations, or vice versa.

Considering these limitations, demographic data is presented for each of the
BGs, or a portion of, that fall within the Downtown CRAs. Rather than make

assumptions to allocate the BG level data to within or outside the CRA,

11 | Page




demographic assumptions are not altered at the BG level so that a reader can A small portion of the Brooklyn District extends beyond BG 171.1. However,
evaluate the unaltered data. the portion of the Brooklyn District that is outside of BG 171.1 is roadway area

) ) ) . _— and does not contain any dwelling units or businesses.
Locally collected housing unit and population data is included by district. The y g

data is robust, but unlike ACS data, is not collected at regular intervals. 2014 Table 2: Census Block Groups Intersected by Downtown Overlay
Districts

estimates of multifamily housing units and population were not collected at the

District level, so progress in 2020 cannot be compared at that level of detail. Census
Tract/
Going forward, this data should be collected regularly to facilitate the analysis Block
of progress towards policy goals. Group Intersecting Downtown Overlay Districts
The following table links each Census Block Group to each Downtown Overlay 8.1 Southbank (Partial), Non-CRA Areas
District. Census tracts are divided into BGs, which are comprised of many 8.2 Southbank (Partial), Non-CRA Areas
Census blocks. Data is not reported at the block level. The numbering schema 104 Church (Partial), Cathedral (Partial), Non-CRA Areas
used throughout this document to identify each BG is “Census Tract Number :
Sports and Entertainment (Partial), Cathedral (Partial), Non-CRA Areas
Block Group Number.” 10.2
) ) ) ) ) 10.3 Cathedral (BG Completely within District)
Figure 12 displays the spatial relationships between the Downtown Overlay .
Districts and the Census Tracts and BGs within each Tract. 171.1 Brooklyn (Partial), Non-CRA Areas
When reviewing the data by BG, there are some considerations to keep in La Villa (Completely within BG), Cent.ral Core (Corppletely within BG),
172.1 Church (Partial), Sports and Entertainment (Partial), Non-CRA Areas
mind. First is that some BGs contain significant non-CRA areas which will :
. . L Working Waterfront (Completely within BG), Sports and Entertainment
influence the resulting statistics. (Partial), Non-CRA Areas
174.2 ’

Additionally, BG 10.2 contains the Duval County Jail and two homeless shelters.
Observations from these facilities are included in the survey data and affect the
resulting statistics. For this reason, household population and multifamily
dwelling unit data is reported by District, using data provided by Downtown

Vision, Inc. (DVI), which excludes the jail and shelters.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 12 | Page




Figure 12: Downtown Overlay Districts and Census Block Groups

q T ] T ) e
J{ il il |’ L — s .
| .‘\ |[ | : 11| Downtown Overlay |:| Southbank
it “ ll lfl Districts i
,‘f' | ) o po
il | I:] Brooklyn Entertainment
I:I Cathedral Working
Waterfront
B |:| Central Core
Census Block
I:l Church Groups
[ ]tovila

13 | Page

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study




Regional Population Growth and Trends

The following section examines regional demographic trends. Estimates are
provided for the Jacksonville Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), Duval County
and the City of Jacksonville. For uniformity of presentation, the time periods
analyzed are 2014, consistent with the base year of prior DIA documents, and

2019, the most current ACS data.

Population

The following table presents estimates of population in 2014, 2019, 2020 and a
projection for 2025. For each geography except for Downtown Jacksonville,
2014 and 2019 estimates come from the ACS. Population estimates for
Downtown Jacksonville and their sources are discussed in detail in subsequent

sections.

The 2020 estimates for the MSA, County and City are sourced from the
University of Florida’s Bureau of Economic and Business Research (BEBR). The
projection for 2025 is based on BEBR’s 2025 County projection and assumes
that the ratio of population in the MSA and in the City to population in Duval
County remain constant, and as noted earlier, using BEBR’s “medium”
population projection for Duval County. The 2025 projection for Downtown
Jacksonville assumes that population increases at the 8.65 percent average

annual rate that occurred between 2014 and 2020.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Table 3: Population Trends by City, County and MSA, 2014-2025

Population 2014 2019 2020 2025
Jacksonville MSA? 1,419,127 1,559,514 1,581,345 1,693,769
Duval County? 897,698 957,755 982,080 1,051,900
City of Jacksonville3 853,376 911,528 936,250 1,002,812
Downtown
Jacksonville? 3,730 5,648 6,137 9,293

12014 and 2019 estimates from American Community Survey Table S0101. 2020 estimate from the
University of Florida Bureau of Economic and Business Research (BEBR) “Florida Estimates of
Population 2020.” Projection for 2025 assumes ratio of population in MSA to population in Duval
County remains constant, based on BEBR’s Duval County population projection.

22014 and 2019 estimates from American Community Survey Table S0101. 2020 estimate from
BEBR'’s “Florida Estimates of Population 2020.” Projection for 2025 from BEBR’s “Medium”
population projection for Duval County from “Projections of Florida Population by County, 2020—
2045, with Estimates for 2019. “High” projection for 2025 is 1,118,600 and “Low” projection is
979,800

32014 and 2019 estimates from American Community Survey Table S0101. 2020 estimate from
BEBR’s “Florida Estimates of Population 2020.” Projection for 2025 assumes ratio of population in
City to population in Duval County remains constant, based on BEBR’s Duval County population
projection.

42014 estimates identified in Business Investment and Development Strategy, August 2019 by the
Downtown Investment Authority, Jacksonville Florida. 2020 estimate identified in 2019-2020 State
of Downtown Report, by DVI. Jacksonville. 2019 figure was estimated based on the compound
annual growth rate from 2014 to 2020, which was 8.65%. 2025 figure assumes that population
growth continues at 8.65% annual growth.

Population by Age

The following table presents population estimates by age, and by
race/ethnicity. Population throughout the region has increased for people aged
65 and older more rapidly than for the general population from 2014 to 2019.

Population growth for those under 18 is lower than the general population.

14 | Page




Population by Race/Ethnicity

White and African American populations continue to comprise the majority of
residents in the region. The MSA contains a greater proportion of white
residents than Duval County or the City of Jacksonville. While white residents
comprise the majority of the region, the share of white residents decreased in

all three geographies from 2014 to 2019.

The African American population has maintained its share of total population
throughout the region. The Hispanic or Latino population has increased its

share of total population throughout the region in the same time period.

Average Household Size

The following table displays regional ACS housing characteristics for 2014 and
2019. During this period the average household size has decreased throughout
the region and across all geographies under study. Households tend to slightly

smaller in the County and City, compared to the broader MSA.

Housing Occupancy

Housing occupancy has increased throughout the region from between 2014
and 2019. Occupancy is slightly higher in the City and County compared to the
MSA.

Housing Tenure

Housing tenure refers to whether a housing unit is owner occupied, renter
occupied or vacant. The proportion of owner-occupied homes increased from
62 to 66 percent within regional MSA from 2014 to 2019. Owner-occupied
housing levels in the City and County are both lower at 57 percent each in

2019, representing a one percent increase from the 2014 figure.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Housing Inventory

Total housing units in the MSA increased by 54,585 from 2014 to 2015. Over
two-thirds of this increase occurred outside of Duval County and the City.
Single-family detached homes increased by roundly 36,000 units in the MSA,
14,400 units in the City, and 12,600 units in Duval County. The relatively lower
unit increase in Duval County reflects the shift away from single-family
development and reduction in low-rise units (2-9 units), to higher density
(20+unit) multifamily. From 2014 to 2019, these larger multifamily projects

primarily concentrated in the City increased by 12,441 units, or 41 percent.

Also notable was the increased occupancy in non-structural housing units
including boats, RVs and vans that increased dramatically by over 500 units in
the MSA between 2014 and 2019. Nearly 380 of these shifting tenures were
noted in Duval County (308), with a lesser amount in the city (72), suggesting a

potential indicator of housing insecurity in the broader region.

Median Household Income

The highest median household income is reported at the MSA level (565,880),
compared to $58,415 and $56,975 at the County and City, respectively. Median
household increased uniformly throughout the region between 2014 and 2019,

with total increases ranging between 28% to 29%.

15 | Page




Table 4: Demographic Characteristic Trends (2014 - 2019)

Jacksonville MSA Duval County City of Jacksonville

Net Net Net
2019 Chg. . 2019 Chg. . 2014 2019 Chg.

Total population 1,419,127 1,559,514 140,387 10% | 897,698 957,755 60,057 7% | 853,376 911,528 58,152 7%

Population by Age

Underage 18 324,574 347,895 23,321 7% | 204,851 215,545 10,694 5% | 197,791 206,135 8,344 4%
18 to 64 892,557 958,004 65,447 7% | 578,147 603,834 25,687 4% | 547,748 574,563 26,815 5%
65 years + 201,996 253,615 51,619 26% | 114,700 138,376 23,676 21% | 107,837 130,830 22,993 21%

Population by Race/Ethnicity

White 999,839 1,066,937 67,098 7% | 548,264 560,489 12,225 2% | 508,647 518116 9,469 2%
Black/African American 308,789 337,751 28,962 9% | 269,851 285600 15,749 6% | 267,080 284,385 17,305 6%
American Indian 2,864 5,502 2,638 92% 2,068 3,571 1,503  73% 2,047 3281 1,234  60%
Asian 52,303 58,498 6,195  12% | 40,428 45,052 4,624  11% | 39,5525 44551 5026  13%
Pacific Islander 707 833 126 18% 288 471 183 64% 288 305 17 6%
Some other race 14,665 37,994 23,329 159% | 11,482 26,704 15222 133% = 10,815 26,453 15638  145%
Two or more races 39,960 51,999 12,039  30% | 25,317 35,868 10,551  42% | 24,974 34,437 9,463  38%
Hispanic or Latino 111,970 148,108 36,138  32% | 77,064 100,736 23,672  31% 75786 97,244 21,458  28%
Share of Total 7.9% 9.5%  25.7% 8.6% 10.5% 39.4% 8.9%  10.7%  36.9%

Source: American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates, Table DP0S5, 2014 and 2019; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 16 | Page




Table 5: Select Housing Characteristic Trends (2014 to 2019)

Jacksonville MSA

Duval County

City of Jacksonville

2019 Change 2019 2014 2019 Change

Housing Occupancy

Total housing units 615,239 669,824 9% 395,891 418,735 6% 371,254 396,542 7%
Occupied housing units 528,993 584,381 10% 340,985 368,668 8% 320,809 349,171 9%
Vacant housing units 86,246 85,443 -1% 54,906 50,067 -9% 50,445 47,371 -6%
Percent Occupied 86.0% 87.2% 1% 86.1% 88.0% 2% 86.4% 88.1% 2%

Housing Tenure

Owner-occupied 328,899 385,770 17% 190,881 210,184 10% 178,353 197,853 1%

Renter-occupied 200,094 198,611 -1% 150,104 158,484 6% 142,456 151,318 6%

Units in Structure

Total housing units 615,239 669,824 9% 395,891 418,735 6% 371,254 396,542 7%
1-unit, detached 390,370 426,369 9% 237,966 250,571 5% 224,521 238,963 6%
1-unit, attached 28,756 30,808 7% 19,513 22,918 17% 17,662 19,929 13%
2 units 9,461 7.875 -17% 7.567 5,873 -22% 6,305 4,712 -25%
3 or 4 units 24,652 23,096 -6% 18,506 17.215 -7% 15,643 15911 2%
5 to 9 units 37.715 33,259 -12% 27,278 22,445 -18% 25,250 21,575 -15%
10 to 19 units 39.721 42,003 6% 32,438 33,781 4% 31,162 33,143 6%
20 or more units 40,616 54,209 33% 32,158 46,197 44% 30,492 42,934 41%
Mobile home 43,764 51,502 18% 20,281 19,427 -4% 20,035 19.119 -5%
Boat, RV, van, etc. 184 703 282% 184 308 67% 184 256 39%

Households

Total households 528,993 584,381 10% 340,985 368,668 8% 320,809 349,171 9%

Average household size 2.63 2.61 -1% 2.57 2.53 -2% 2.60 2.54 -2%

Median Household Income $51,117 $65,880 29% $45,779 $58,415 28% $44,591 $56,975 28%

Sources: American Community Survey 1-Year Estimates, Tables DPO4 and B19013, 2014 and 2019
Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 17 | Page




Population Growth and Trends by District

Multifamily Residents: 2014-2020

The following table presents multifamily residential estimates for 2014 and
2020. Data from 2014 was not available at the District level, so only the total
estimated residents is shown. Assuming growth continues at the same
compound annual growth rate of 8.65% that was achieved from 2014 to 2020,

Downtown Jacksonville will total 9,293 residents in 2025.

Table é: Multifamily Household Population

Estimated

Multifamily

Household Estimated Multifamily

Population Household

District (2014)! Population (2020)2

Brooklyn n/a 964
Cathedral 1,196 1,088
Central Core 825 1,100
Church 549 346
LaVilla - 905
Southbank 1160 1,734

Sports and Entertainment - -
Working Waterfront - -

Total 3,730 6,137
Percent Change - 2014 - 2020 165%

1 Page 63, Business Investment and Development Strategy, 2014, Downtown Investment
Authority, Jacksonville Florida. Population allocated to each District based on share of housing
units from Table 7:

2 Assumes 1.59 residents per multifamily unit, including townhomes.

Source: Business Investment and Development Strategy, 2014, DIA;
2019-2020 State of Downtown Report, DVI; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Multifamily Units: 2014-2020

The following table provides multifamily housing estimates for 2014 and 2020.
Data from DVI's 2015 State of Downtown Jacksonville was used to estimate the
number of multifamily dwelling units, by District. Note that townhomes are

considered multifamily units for the purposes of data collection.

Table 7: Multifamily Housing Units

Multifamily Multifamily
Housing Units Housing Units
District Inventory (2014)'  Inventory (2020)2
Brooklyn - 605
Cathedral 703 683
Central Core 485 690
Church 323 217
LaVilla - 568
Southbank 682 1,088

Sport and Entertainment - -
Working Waterfront - -
Total 2,193 3,851
Percent Change - 2014 - 2020 76%

! State of Downtown Jacksonville, 2015, DVI.

22019-2020 State of Downtown Report, DVI. Includes townhomes.

Note: Cathedral District unit count is reduced by 700 units to reflect a publication error
identified in the 2015 State of Downtown Report.

Source: State of Downtown Jacksonville, 2015, DVI; 2019-2020 State of
Downtown Report, DVI; Willdan 2021

18 | Page




Demographic Trends by Census Block Group

Census Block Groups, the smallest geography reported by the ACS, was
analyzed to evaluate demographic and economic trends in an area that best
approximates the geography of the city districts under study. As noted in the
data limitations section, these geographies do overlap district boundaries and
include adjacent areas outside of the study area (see Figure 12 on page 13).
Nonetheless, there is sufficient alignment to gather insights on the
characteristics of the underlying Districts. The following sections provide
estimates for 2014, to be consistent with the base year of prior DIA documents,
and for 2019, the most recent year that ACS data is available for. Going
forward, the DIA can collect ACS data annually at the BG level to track
demographic trends in Downtown Jacksonville. Appendix Il contains tables that
displays all the data and assumptions supporting the charts the charts in this

section.

Note that BG 10.2 contains the Duval County Jail and two homeless shelters.
Observations from these facilities are included in the survey data and affect the

resulting statistics.

Housing Tenure: 2014-2019

Housing tenure refers to whether a housing unit is owner occupied, renter
occupied or vacant. presents housing tenure for each BG that intersects the
Downtown districts. Review the introduction to this report for the listing of

Districts and their corresponding BGs.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Figure 13: Housing Tenure by Census Block Group, 2014 and 2019
1,800
1,600

1,400

1,200

1,000

800

60

S |
" I

. =

2014 2019 2014 2019 2014 2019 2014 2019 2014 2019 2014 2019 2014 2019 2014 2019
8.1 8.2 10.1 10.2 10.3  171.1 1721 1742

o O O O

m Rentfer Occupied ® Owner Occupied B Vacant

Source: American Community Survey; Willdan, 2021

Households by Income: Net Change - 2014 & 2019

ACS data regarding household income is only available at the Census Tract
level. Figure 14 presents median household income data for each Census Tract
that intersects the Downtown districts for 2014. Figure 15 presents the same
data for 2019. Data is provided for all households, white households, black
households, senior households and for households comprised of married
couples and families, where available. Generally, white households in the
Downtown BGs have significantly higher median incomes compared to black
households. Married couples/families have the highest incomes of all the

demographics included in the comparison.

19 | Page




Figure 14: Median Household Income by Census Tract, 2014 Population by Race/Ethnicity: Net Change — 2014 & 2019

$90,000 Whites and African Americans predominately comprise the Downtown
$80,000
$70,000
$60,000

$50,000 Figure 16: Population by Race and Ethnicity by Census Block
$40,000 Group, 2014 and 2019

$30,000

$20,000 3,500

o ol Wl W b W
> |y i

Jacksonville population. Figure 16 compares the racial and ethnic makeup of

each BG’s population in 2014 and 2019.

0 2,500
Total (2014) White (2014) Black (2014) Senior (2014)  Families '
(2014) 2,000
mTract8 mTract 10 mTract 171 Tract 172 mTract 174

1,500

Source: American Community Survey; Willdan, 2021 1.000

500
Figure 15: Median Household Income by Census Tract, 2019 0 l -
$100,000 2014 2019 2014 2019 2014 2019 20142019 2014 2019 2014 2019 2014 2019 2014 2019

8.1 8.2 10.1 10.2 103 1711 1721 1742

$80.000 B White m Black B American Indian

$60,000 | Asian m Pacific Islander m Other Race

Two or More Races
$40,000 Source: American Community Survey; Willdan, 2021
$20,000 I I I I I
s M 0 [ i

Total (2019) White (2019) Black (2019) Senior (2019)  Families

mTract8 mTract 10 mTract 171 mTract 172 mTract 174 (2019)
Note: ACS did not provide estimates for median household income for white households in Tract
174, black households in Tract 171 and senior households in Tract 172 in the 2019 estimates.

o

Source: American Community Survey; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 20 | Page




Population by Age: Net Change: 2014 & 2019

Figure 17 compares the population of each BG in terms of residents under the

age of 18, those between 18 and 64 and those 65 and above in 2014 and 2019.

Figure 17: Total Population by Age by Census Block Group, 2014
and 2019

3,500
3,000

2,500

2,000
1,500
1,000
“HlnN
I m

2014 2019 2014 2019 2014 2019 2014 2019 2014 2019 2014 2019 2014 2019 2014 2019
8.1 8.2 10.1 102 103 171.1 1721 1742

(@)

(@]

mUnder Age 18 mAge 1810 64 mAge 65 & Older

Source: American Community Survey; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Economic Base: Employment Characteristics

Employment Overview

The Jacksonville MSA is comprised of five counties including Duval, Baker, Clay,
Nassau and St. Johns. The U.S. military, government transportation and
distribution, financial services, and health care industries form the core of the

area’s economic base.

Employment Overview

The following table displays the Jacksonville area nonfarm employment, by
sector for January 2021. The Trade, Transportation and Utilities, Education and
Health Services and Professional and Business Services are the three leading
sectors of the Jacksonville metropolitan economy according to number of jobs.
The Government and Leisure and Hospitality sectors and Financial Activities

follow.

It is important to highlight the economic engine powered by the Government
sector which includes Military personnel. The region has about 75,000 active
duty, reserve and civilian personnel, accounting for 14% of the area's
workforce. Jacksonville is home to two important U.S. Navy facilities. Naval
Station Mayport, home to the Navy's 4th Fleet, is a seaport and air facility that

employs about 13,000 military personnel.

21 | Page




Figure 18: Jacksonville Area Nonfarm Employment by Sector Jacksonville is home to two important U.S. Navy facilities. Naval Station
Mayport, home to the Navy’s 4th Fleet, is a seaport and air facility that
180,000

160,000 employs about 13,000 military personnel.
140,000
120,000 Naval Air Station Jacksonville, on the city’s Westside along the St. Johns River,
128'888 has about 12,000 military personnel and 7,000 civilian employees.
60,000
40.000 Athird U.S. Navy base, Naval Submarine Base Kings Bay in nearby Southeast
20,000 I I I - Georgia, brings another 5,000 military and 2,000 civilian employees to the
X region.
NS ? O 2 (000 .\&\\A .;\\i\e’% &,\\oo \;«\‘(@ \o"’(’ 3\\0(\ @ g
‘H\S\ %Q’é & & KL ?g}\ & \OC} “-‘@G S o\og
5 <
O,\\oo 6&\\(\ N OOAQ (\e;o Qc}& Oo V@\Q O’&@ S
c)QOQ\ & b\(\ (\b\o .¢}§® Q\(\O Vv\(\\(\ ° °
S Jacksonville Region
AR
o F
& Defense Indusiry Impact:
Source: U.S. BLS, Current Employment Statistics. u 1 24,000 JOBS

=  $4.9 BILLION Direct
Defense Spending

= 4,000+ Aerospace Industry
Employment

= 100 Aerospace firms
operate in the region.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 22 | Page




Jacksonville Region Defense Industry Assets

Away from the water, the Camp Blanding Joint Training
Center in Clay County is a major training site for the Florida
National Guard.

Jacksonville is home to the Fleet Readiness Center
Southeast, the region’s largest industrial employer with a
workforce of about 3,000 civilian employees, 1,000 military
personnel and 1,000 contractors.

Jacksonville's port has the U.S. Marine Corps’ Blount Island
Command, which provides prepositioning services for the
Marines and employs nearly 1,000.

The military provides an important training ground for
businesses in the region, as many veterans decide fo stay in
Northeast Florida after retirement. More than 3,000 veterans
a year join the region’s workforce.

Northeast Florida's military background has spawned a
growing aerospace industry in the region, with many major
defense confracts taking advantage of the region’s assets.

Northrop Grumman is St. Johns County’s largest corporate
employer with more than 1,000 employees at its facility af
Northeast Florida Regional Airport in St. Augustine.

The area’s largest hub of private aerospace activity is the
Cecil Commerce Center, located on Jacksonville's
Westside at the site of what once was the city’s third naval
air station.

The large runways at Cecil make it ideal for major
aerospace operations. Its biggest employer is Flightstar
Aircraft Services, which employs more than 1,000 people in
aircraft maintenance, repair, and overhaul services.

LSl is a simulation and training company started by two
U.S. Navy veterans nearly 40 years ago and now employs
about 500 people at Cecil, with nearly half of those
military veterans.

According to Dave Risha, LSI Director of Business
Development:

“There is a lot of military expertise available in
the Jacksonville area.”

“Access to quality health care and the
appealing lifestyle in Northeast Florida entice
veterans to stay in the region after retirement.”

“It's a good place to be when you separate from
the military™.

Cecil is equipped to handle spaceflight. Cecil Spaceport
is the only licensed horizontal launch commercial
spaceport on the East Coast.

Other aerospace firms include:

Brazil-based Embraer, which is building its A-29 Super
Tucanos aircraft at Jacksonville International Airport.

Kaman Aerospace, which is producing commercial
airplanes at its facility at Imeson Industrial Park, the site of
Jacksonville’s original public airport.

Source: Florida Trend, “A Mighty Military Presence” — The military provides an important training ground for businesses in Northeast

Florida and has spawned a growing aerospace industry. (Mark Basch, 2017)

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 23 | Page




Unemployment

From 2013 to 2019 the unemployment rate in the MSA was steadily
decreasing, coinciding with steadily increasing labor force size, reaching a low
of 3.1% in 2019. This healthy economic trend was significantly impacted by the
onset of the Covid pandemic when the decrease in employment levels resulted
in a mid-year spike to 12.1 percent and the annual unemployment rate
increase to 6.1 percent. The unemployment figure would have been even
higher if the labor force did not decrease by nearly 40,000 people. Most
recently, total unemployment is decreasing, the labor force is on the rise,
employment is rebounding, and unemployment rates are decreasing — all

positive near-term economic indicators.

Table 8: Labor Force and Unemployment, Jacksonville MSA

Labor
Year Force Employment Unemployment UE Rate
2013 709,351 659,773 49,578 7.0
2014 715,253 670,631 44,622 6.2
2015 718,820 680,220 38.600 5.4
2016 735,105 701,068 34,037 4.6
2017 759,045 728,247 30,798 4.1
2018 770,771 743,987 26,784 3.5
2019 785,189 760,810 24,379 3.1
2020 768,164 721,687 46,478 6.1
20217 786,210 751,797 34,413 4.4

! Only includes January.

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics; Willdan; 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

The following figure provides a comparison of the unemployment rate in the
City of Jacksonville to the nation. Historically, the rates have tracked closely.
However, since the Covid-19 pandemic commenced, the City’s unemployment
rate has generally fallen below the national level. Early indications from 2021
suggest that the City’s rate continues to drop, while the national rate is

flattened or even increased slightly.

Figure 19: Jacksonville vs. US Semi-Annual Unemployment Rate
(2015-2021)

16%
14%
12%
10%
8%
6%
4%
2%
0%

Jacksonville

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics; Willdan; 2021

24 | Page




Major Private Employers
Major employers in the area include several healthcare providers, Bank of
America and Southeastern Grocers. These seven employers employ nearly

46,000 workers in the area.

Table 9: Jacksonville Area Largest Private Employers

Company Employees

Baptist Health 10,650
Bank of America 7.700
Mayo Clinic 6,400
Southeastern Grocers 5,700
Florida Blue 5,700
Ascension St. Vincent’s 5,400
UF Health 4,200

Source: hitps://jaxusa.org/tools-resources/top-employers/
The professions that are projected to generate the most jobs within the 5-year
time horizon are generally consistent with the current dominant job sectors in
the region: trade/warehousing, medical services, education, professional
services, government, and hospitality. The following table displays the top ten

sectors for projected job growth in Duval County through 2025.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Table 10: Duval County Top Ten Projected Jobs by Sector, 2020 to
2025

Projected
Increase
Jobs by Sector in Jobs

General Warehousing and Storage 5,864
Offices of Physicians (except Mental Health Specialists) 2,895
General Medical and Surgical Hospitals 2,115
Commercial Banking 1,519
Elementary and Secondary Schools (Local Government) 1,228
Full-Service Restaurants 1,129
Colleges, Universities, and Professional Schools (State
Government) 1,059
Custom Computer Programming Services 897
Home Health Care Services 744
Direct Health and Medical Insurance Carriers 718

Source: Emsi, 2021

Educational Aftainment

Current data on attained education levels highlight a smaller pool of residents
with college degrees typical of professional office jobs, a segment of
employment the City desires to expand. The percentage of the population with
a bachelor’s degree or higher totals 29.7%, a figure slightly lower than the

national average, of 33%.

25 | Page




Figure 20: City of Jacksonville 2020 Population 25+ by Educational
Attainment

100%  29%

o

10.0% -

_7.2%

23.8%

4.3%

22.0% J

= Less than 9th Grade

= High School Graduate

= Some College, No Degree
= Bachelor's Degree

= 9th - 12th Grade, No Diploma
GED/Alternative Credential

= Associate Degree

= Graduate/Professional Degree

Source: ESRI; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Employment Projections
Duval County is projected to add over 33,000 jobs from 2020 to 2025, an

increase of 5.8%. The following table displays the annual project projections.

Table 11: Duval County Employment Projections, 2020 to 2025

2020 577,492
2021 587,013
2022 594,880
2023 601,587
2024 607,428
2025 610,967

Source: Emsi; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Labor Force Assessment
The 456,000 individuals in the Jacksonville labor force provide a variation in the
talent pool to support Jacksonville businesses. However, there are more jobs

available than residents to fill them.

Only 28% of Jacksonville’s resident labor force leave the City to find
opportunities elsewhere. These data illustrate a need to support the growth of
existing businesses. According to Emsi job posting data, the hardest to fill jobs
are healthcare practitioners, followed by sales workers and management level
positions. To a lesser degree, business and financial positions have fewer
completions, along with healthcare support positions. Registered Nurses are
the hardest position to fill. This is a national problem, however, considering
healthcare is the largest employing industry in Duval County, this may

exacerbate the Jacksonville market.

26 | Page




Table 12: Worker Characteristics, City of Jacksonville (2018)

Worker Characteristics Outflow Inflow Ir;:s‘rl?r

Aged 29 or younger 268% 22.0% 22.5%
Aged 30 to 54 52.6% 55.8% 55.2%
Aged 55 or older 20.6% 22.2% 22.4%
Earning $1,250 per month or less 27.3% 21.0% 21.9%
Earning $1,251 to $3,333 per month 36.7% 30.8% 38.8%
Earning More than $3,333 per month 36.0% 48.2% 39.3%
"Goods Producing" Industry Class 9.7% 12.9% 10.8%
"Trade, Transport & Utilities" Industry Class 261% 249% 21.0%
"All Other Services" Industry Class 64.2% 62.2% 68.2%

LInterior flow jobs are internal jobs filled by residents.

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, OnTheMap Application and LEHD Origin-
Destination Employment Statistics

The data also suggest that there are more workers commuting into Jacksonville
for higher pay than the workers leaving for less pay (accommodation, food
services and retail jobs). Jacksonville residents who also work in the City are
similarly higher paid. The finance and insurance sector appears to be fueling
the influx of outside workers at higher pay and, potentially, management type

positions in other sectors.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

The following table indicates that there are more jobs than residents to fill
them and, therefore, are being filled by workers outside the area. Furthermore,
there appears to be a large gap in the number of average annual openings and
regional completions (see Figure 21), indicating an opportunity for additional
training programs in these areas of focus. Some of the occupations do not have
regional completions tied to them as they most likely do not require formal
training, however, programs such as WIOA and other state training programs

can address such training assistance.

Roughly 38% of Duval County residents hold only a high school diploma or
lower, compared to 40% statewide and 38% nationally. The share of individuals
who have some college but no degree is higher than the state and national
averages, indicating a more skilled workforce. The share of bachelor’s degree
earners and higher educational levels is on par with the state but nearly three
percentage points lower than the nation—30.6% in Duval County compared to
33% nationwide. These data align with the composition of the top occupations
in Duval County. The top occupations validate that the largest employing
industries require more entry level positions. Furthermore, of the top 20

occupations, 12 earn below the median wage for the County—5$17.68 per hour

27 | Page




Table 13: Workforce and Training Gaps, Duval County (2020)

Available
Workforce Surplus/Gap Median Avg. Regional

(Resident (jobs less Hourly Annual Completions (cso"n:’;,':,fo/,,fgz Job

Description Workers) resident workers) Earnings Openings (2019) annual openings)  Postings

Heavy & Tractor-Trailer

53-3032 . 10,692 8,341 2,350 $20.13 1,325 195 (1,130) 7,149
Truck Drivers
13-1109g FrolectManagement& o oo, 5,165 1,539 $28.97 674 0 (1,348) 1,118
Business
First-Line Supervisors
of Office &
43-1011 - ) 7,512 6,023 1,489 $25.90 753 46 (1,461) 2,609
Administrative Support
Workers
33-9032  Security Guards 5,961 4,574 1,387 $11.68 797 0 (1,594) 961
Secretaries & Admin
436014 1Ssistants, except 6,494 5,458 1,036 $16.91 685 0 (1,369) 1,440
Legal, Medical, &
Executive
31-9092 Medical Assistants 4,307 3,323 985 $15.88 616 501 (115) 859
13-2011  Accountants & Auditors 4,485 3,603 882 $29.76 428 174 (254) 2,048
47-2061 Construction Laborers 4,800 3,933 868 S14.74 570 0 (1,242) 393
47-2111  Electricians 2,947 2,081 866 $21.84 374 34 (714) 604
31-1131  Nursing Assistants 4,984 4,254 729 $13.03 590 228 (362) 891

Source: The Metts Group; Emsi Labor Analytics; Willdan, 2021

In 2020, zero percent (0%) of Project Management and Business jobs were filled in the region.
While it is certain that the Covid-19 on new hires and willingness to apply for a new job if
receiving Federal Covid-19 relief benefits is an unprecedented impact on historical
employer/workforce behaviors, the lack of regional completions in this sector is notable given

the desire to atiract a white-collar workforce to the City.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 28 | Page




Figure 21: Gap between Annual Job Openings and 2019 Regional Educational Program Completions, Duval County

Postsecondary Teachers

Chief Executives

Personal Service Managers

Transportation, Storage, and Distfribution Managers

Social and Community Service Managers

First-Line Supervisors of Gambling Services Workers

Industrial Production Managers

Registered Nurses

Cost Estimators

First-Line Supervisors of Personal Service Workers

First-Line Supervisors of Housekeeping and Janitorial Workers
Heating, Air Conditioning, Refrigeration Mechanics, Installers
Financial Managers

Hairdressers, Hairstylists, and Cosmetologists

Medical Assistants

Market Research Analysts and Marketing Specialists
Computer User Support Specialists

Passenger Vehicle Drivers, Except Bus Drivers, Transit and Intercity
Elementary School Teachers, Except Special Education
Accountants and Auditors

Nursing Assistants

Light Truck Drivers

Home Health and Personal Care Aides

w""""'[lI|||Ill[I

Heavy and Tractor-Trailer Truck Drivers

o

500 1,

o
o
o

1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000 3,500 4,000
= Avg. Annual Openings m Regional Completions (2019)

Source: The Metts Group; Emsi Labor Analytics; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 29 | Page




Table 14: Top 20 Occupations, Duval County (2020)

Median Hourly

Occupation

Wage
Customer Service Representatives 22,114 S 16.77
Laborers and Freight, Stock, and Material Movers, Hand 15,527 S 13.31
Retail Salespersons 14,039 S 11.45
Fast Food and Counter Workers 12,498 S 9.62
Registered Nurses 12,242 S 30.35
Office Clerks, General 11,316 S 15.60
Cashiers 11,216 S 10.94
Heavy and Tractor-Trailer Truck Drivers 10,692 S 20.13
General and Operations Managers 8,738 S 42.22
Stockers and Order Fillers 8,715 S 12.78
Waiters and Waitresses 8,134 S 9.57
First-Line Supervisors of Office and Administrative Support Workers 7,512 S 25.90
Janitors and Cleaners, Except Maids and Housekeeping Cleaners 6,974 S 11.32
Project Management Specialists and Business Operations Specialists, All Other 6,703 S 28.97
Secretaries and Administrative Assistants, Except Legal, Medical, and Executive 6,494 S 16.91
Security Guards 5,961 S 11.68
Sales Representatives, Wholesale and Manufacturing, Except Technical and Scientific Products 5,024 S 25.45
Nursing Assistants 4,984 S 13.03
Bookkeeping, Accounting, and Auditing Clerks 4,855 S 19.00
Maintenance and Repair Workers, General 4,848 S 17.83

Source: The Metts Group; Emsi Labor Analytics; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 30 | Page




Employment in office related industries comprise roughly 30% of total
employment in Duval County (not including healthcare and social services).
According to the most recent week of data from the U.S. Census Household
Pulse Survey, approximately 33% of adults in Florida are teleworking since the
onset of the pandemic. While this may not bode well for the office real estate

market at this time, it is expected to rebound as the recovery sets in.

Engineering services comprise a large portion of the professional and technical
services market. Such services coupled with the large healthcare and financial
sector presence in Jacksonville may shed some light on the cybersecurity
industry. This industry has room to grow in the Jacksonville region given the
proximity to key industry giants and geographic areas with cyber hubs (e.g.,
Tampa; Augusta, GA, etc.). The large demand for IT workers—as indicated by
the 16,400 job postings in 2020, nearly 1,400 average annual openings, and
over 3,400 influx of outside worker—also suggest that the IT industry needs

such talent.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Table 15: Jacksonville Workforce SWOT

Strengths

Weaknesses

Strong economic base
(more jobs than
residents to fill)

Healthcare and
financial hub

Trained/skilled former
military workforce

IT talent

Opportunities Threats

Current industry
composition provides
opportunity for spinoff

activity (e.g., cyber)

Programs to help
military transition to the
private sector

Risk of losing commuters

Service-based economy

https.//careersourcenortheastflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/CareerSource-NEFL-
Region-8-Eligible-Training-Provider-List-Performance-Reporting-8.4.20.pdf

Source: The Metts Group; Emsi Labor Analytics; Willdan, 2021

31 | Page



https://careersourcenortheastflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/CareerSource-NEFL-Region-8-Eligible-Training-Provider-List-Performance-Reporting-8.4.20.pdf
https://careersourcenortheastflorida.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/CareerSource-NEFL-Region-8-Eligible-Training-Provider-List-Performance-Reporting-8.4.20.pdf

Figure 22: Best of Jacksonville

Jacksonville “Best Of”

Florida #4 Best State to Start a
Business (WalletHub, July 2021)

Jacksonville #3 Best City for Job
Seekers (MoneyGeek, July 2021)

Jacksonville Ranks Among Top 25
Best Places to Live (U.S. News &
World Report, July 2021)

Jax Beach, Fernandina Beach Top 25
Best Beach Towns (WalletHub, June
2021)

Jacksonville Top 20 Best City to Start
a Business (WalletHub, April 2021)

Jacksonville a Top City for Tech
Workers (LinkedIn, June 2021)

Florida #2 Best State for Business
(Chief Executive Magazine, April
2021)

Palm Coast #1 For Places That Are
Getting Cheaper to Live
(ApartmentGuide.com, November
2020)

JAX Is Smart City to Watch In 2020
(StateTech Magazine, November
2020)

#7 City for Veteran Leadership in
Civilian Jobs (LinkedIn, November
2020)

JAX Metro #1 Where People Moved,
May-Sept "20 (United Van
Lines/Webster Pacific, October
2020)

JAX Top 10 City for Workforce
Confidence (LinkedIn, October
2020)

JAX #1 City in Population Gains
During Pandemic (LinkedIn's
Economic Graph Research, October
2020)

Jacksonville #2 for Best Places to
Live in Florida in 2020, Bankrate,
February 2020

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

#1 Best Metro for Digital Nomads
(Zillow/Yelp, April 2021)

Jacksonville #1 in Florida for Recent
College Graduates (Self/Tampa Bay
Business Journals, March 2021)

Jacksonville #9 U.S. City with Most
Startups (Roofstock, March 2021)

JAX #5 Best U.S. City for Public Parks
and Walkability
(CommercialCafe.com, August 2020)

Jacksonville Ranks Among Top 10
Cities for Women in Tech (Smart
Asset, February 2021)

JAX MSA Top 20 For Female
Entrepreneurs, SmartAsset,
December 2020

Florida #2 Best Taxpayer ROI
(WalletHub, March 2021)

Florida #2 For Solar Power Jobs
(Business Facilities, July 2020)

Florida #2 For Startup Ecosystems
(Business Facilities, July 2020)

Mayo Clinic Florida #1 Hospital in
Florida (U.S. News & World Report,
July 2020)

Florida #2 Best States for Business
(Chief Executive, June 2020)

Florida 5th Lowest Tax Burden in
U.S. (WalletHub, June 2020)

Jacksonville Listed as Top 10 Best
U.S. City for Veterans (Business
Insider/WalletHub, May 2020)

32 | Page




Note that the Sports and Entertainment and Working Waterfront Distracts do

V. REAL ESTATE MARKET ANALYSIS

Infroduction from the existing conditions analysis.

not currently contain any multifamily properties, so these Districts are excluded

The Downtown Jacksonville residential housing market is primarily focused on

Multifamily Market Indicators

multifamily and townhome product types. Small pockets of single-family homes
This analysis evaluates four primary multifamily market indicators: asking rents,

exist primarily in the LaVilla and Brooklyn Districts, and throughout the entire
vacancy rates, 12-month absorption and land value.

Northbank CRA in small quantities.

Data for these indicators was collected from CoStar as of Q4, 2020, which was
Going forward development in Downtown will be focused on multifamily

the most recent complete quarter at the time this analysis was completed. The
product types, so for this reason, the residential market component of this

CoStar interface allowed for the database to be queried by Downtown District,
study focused on multifamily product types and does not examine single family

providing statistics at a high level of detail. The following table summarizes the
development market trends.

multifamily indicators.

Table 16: Multifamily Market Indicators by District, Q4 2020

Average Asking Rents per Square Foot! Vacancy 12 Month Land Values
1 Bedroom 2 Bedroom 3 Bedroom Rates Absorption per Sq. Ft.2
Brooklyn $1.97 $1.92 $1.48 $1.42 3.7% 5 $ 51
Cathedral 1.00 0.84 1.56 n/a 5.9% -3 51
Central Core 1.95 1.77 1.37 n/a 2.8% 4 22
Church 1.28 1.24 1.63 n/a 6.7% -2 29
LaVilla 1.62 1.26 1.14 1.20 2.4% -3 33
Southbank 2.18 1.85 1.54 1.59 17.0% 53 61

1 Asking rent 2020 Q4 per CoStar.

2 Based on the weighted average of land sales within the last five years, as reported by CoStar. Southbank land value based on the weighted average value per square foot from two recent
appraisals provided by DIA.

Source: CoStar; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 33 | Page




Asking Rents per Square Foot by Number of Bedrooms
Asking rents peaked in Downtown Jacksonville in Q2 2019 prior to the Covid-19

pandemic. By Q1 2021, asking rents had returned to their pre-pandemic levels.

Asking rents per square foot range from $0.84 per square foot for a one
bedroom in the Cathedral District to $2.18 for a studio in the Southbank
District. The average rent per square foot across all product types is $1.51.
Overall, the Southbank District has some of the highest rents and the LaVilla

and Church Districts have the lowest rents.

The high rents in the Southbank District area are at least partially related to
two recent project deliveries (SOBA and Broadstone River House) in 2019,
which increased the high-end housing stock of that District by a combined 410

units that year.

Lower rents in the Cathedral and LaVilla Districts are a result of a high
proportion of affordable housing and rent subsidized properties. Roughly half
of the properties in the LaVilla District are classified as either affordable

housing, rent subsidized or senior restricted housing.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Figure 23: Average Asking Rents per Square Foot by Bedrooms, by
District, Q4 2020

$2.50

$2.00

$1.50

$1.00

$0.50 II I
$

Brooklyn Cathedral Central Church LaVilla  Southbank
Core

mStudio ® 1 Bedroom m2Bedroom

Source: CoStar; Willdan, 2021

34 | Page




Vacancy Rates

While boasting high asking rents, the Brooklyn and Southbank Districts also
have high vacancy, which can be tied to a short-term oversupply of new
housing stock and a Covid-19-related drop in demand for multifamily housing.
In the short term, vacancy will likely increase as there is a significant number of
multifamily units under construction. However, as the region recovers from the
pandemic and inventory is absorbed, vacancy is expected to decrease in the

near and mid-term.

In particular, the high vacancy in the Southbank District can be tied to project
deliveries of 263 and 147 units in Q2 2019 and Q4 2019, respectively. The
vacancy in the District has been decreasing steadily as the units are absorbed in

the market.

Figure 24: Multifamily Vacancy by District, Q4 2020

18%
16%
14%
12%
10%

8%

6%
4%
o 0 0
0%

Brooklyn Cathedral  Central Church LaVilla  Southbank
Core

Source: CoStar; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Note: Sports and Entertainment and Waterfront Districts do not currently
contain any multifamily housing and are excluded from this chart

Absorption

Absorption is the amount of inventory that is sold or leased during a given time
period. Figure 25 displays the 12-month absorption from Q4 2020, by District.
Notably, the Southbank District has absorbed the most units, but as detailed in
Figure 24, the District also has the highest Downtown vacancy rate due to
recent project deliveries. This likely highlights the desirability of the
neighborhood (as evidenced by higher rents per sq. ft.) and the challenge of

absorbing new deliveries during a pandemic.
Figure 25: 12 Month Absorption, Q4 2020
60
50
40
30

20

F — ”
Brooklyn Cathedral  Cenfral Church LaVilla  Southbank
(10) Core

Source: CoStar; Willdan, 2021

35 | Page




Land Values

Land values per square foot were estimated using sales comparison data from
2015 through 2020 as reported by CoStar. The zoning of each sold property
was examined to determine if any type of residential development could be a
permissible use. If so, the sale was included in the sample. The weighted
average by land area of the comparisons was calculated and displayed in Figure

26.

In 2020, Downtown Jacksonville achieved the highest land sales price per
square foot in the Brooklyn and Cathedral Districts. The lowest land value
reported was in the Southbank District, though it was based on a small sample
size of five property sales in the District over a five-year period. Average cost
per acre, weighted by the parcel size in acres is shown. Due to this approach,
one particularly large parcel in the Southbank District (30 acres) skews the

weighted average downwards.

Since the analysis uses a five-year sample of sales comparisons, Districts with
more recent sales will show high land values. Consequently, the Brooklyn and
Cathedral Districts’ high land values per square foot can be partially explained
by recent sales within those Districts, and the lower values per square foot are

at least partially attributed to older transactions in Southbank District.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Figure 26: Weighted Average Land Sales Price per Square Foot

(2015 to 2020)

$60

o

Brooklyn  Cathedral

Source: CoStar; Willdan, 2021

Central
Core

Church

LaVilla

$50
$40
$30
$20
: I B
$0

Southbank

36 | Page




Multifamily Market Supply by District

Figure 27 displays the multifamily units in each District by CoStar star rating.
Note that townhomes are not rated by CoStar. Nearly all of properties in the
City’s Districts are rated either three or four stars. There is one 5-Star luxury

property in the Brooklyn District and one 2-Star property in the Church District.

It is interesting to note that many of the affordable or income restricted
properties in the Cathedral District provide 3-star amenities despite the lower
price point.
Figure 27:Multifamily Units by Housing Quality, by District

1,200

1,000

800

600

400

200 I
0 ]

Brooklyn Cathedral Central Church LaVilla Southbank
Core

m5-Star ®m4-Star m3-Star 2-Star ® Not Available

CoStar; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

The following table lists CoStar’s criteria for rating multifamily properties.

Table 17: CoStar Rating Criteria

Class Description

5.St Luxury finishes and amenities; interior/exterior design to the highest
-orar level of specifications

4-St Higher end finishes and specifications; desirable amenities;
-orar designed/built to competitive and contemporary standards

Average finishes and potentially 4-star materials with signs of age;
3-Star compact layout, not necessarily open floor plan; contextually
appropriate; a few shared amenities

2.5t Below average finishes; adequate and functional design; likely no shared
-ofar amenities; noticeable aging

Uncompetitive; may require significant renovation, possibly functionally
1-Star obsolete.

CoStar; Willdan, 2021

The following table displays the inventory of existing multifamily residential
communities in Downtown Jacksonville, by District. The inventory includes the
number of housing units, the year each property opened, if it contains for sale
of for lease product types, and the quality of the property and amenities, as
reflected by CoStar’s star rating. Note that condominiums, apartments, and

townhomes are included in this inventory.

Over the past several years, development (by number of projects) has been
slightly more active in the LaVilla District. New construction is dominated by

midrise product with unit counts typically between 100 and 150.

37 | Page




Table 18: Multifamily Residential Supply - Existing Inventory, Q1 2021

Residential

Community

Address

Year Opened

Lease/Sale

District

Quality

# Units

Stevens Duval (Senior Living)
Cathedral Residences (Senior Living)
Parks at the Cathedral

The Plaza Condominiums at Berkman Plaza

The Townhomes at Berkman Plaza
W.A. Knights Loft
11 E. Forsyth
Home Street Lofts
The Carling
Residences at City Place
The Metropolitan
San Marco Place
The Strand
Churchwell Lofts at East Bay
The Peninsula
220 Riverside
The Brooklyn Riverside
FSCJ Student Housing (Lerner Building)
Houston Street Manor
Lofts at LaVilla
Lofts at Monroe
The Residences at Barnett
Broadstone River House
SOBA (San Marco Apartments)
Lofts at Jefferson Station
Total

601 N. Ocean St.

601 N. Newnan

333 E. Church St.
400 E. Bay St.

400 E. Bay St.

115 W. Adams St.

11 E. Forsyth St.
1050 Hendricks Ave.
31 W. Adams St.

311 W. Ashley St.
421 W. Church St.
1478 Riverplace Blvd.
1401 Riverplace Blvd.
301 E. Bay St

1431 Riverplace Blvd.
220 Riverside Ave.
Park St. at Jackson St.
20 W. Adams St.
Houston St. & Jefferson St.
Bay St. & Lee St.
Monroe St. & Davis St.
112 W. Adams St.
1655 Prudential Dr
1444 Home St.

799 Water St.

N/A
1967
2002
2002
2002
2002
2003
2003
2005
2006
2006
2007
2007
2008
2008
2015
2015
2018
2018
2018
2018
2019
2019
2019
2020

For Lease
For Lease
For Sale
For Sale/Lease
For Sale
For Lease
For Lease
For Sale
For Lease
For Sale/Lease
For Lease
For Sale
For Lease
For Sale
Sale/Lease
For Lease
For Lease
For Lease
For Lease
For Lease
For Lease
For Lease
For Lease
For Lease
For Lease

Cathedral
Cathedral
Cathedral
Central Core
Central Core
Central Core
Central Core
Southbank
Central Core
Church
Church
Southbank
Southbank
Central Core
Southbank
Brooklyn
Brooklyn
Central Core
LaVvilla
LaVilla
LaVilla
Central Core
Southbank
Southbank
LaVilla

3-Star
3-Star
N/A
4-Star
4-Star
3-Star
4-Star
2-Star
4-Star
2-Star
3-Star
3-Star
4-Star
4-Star
4-Star
5-Star
4-Star
3-Star
4-Star
4-Star
4-Star
4-Star
4-Star
4-Star
4-Star

52
632
51
206
20
12
127
12
100
205
125
141
295
20
234
295
310
58
72
130
108
107
263
143
133
3,851

Source: DVI; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

38 | Page




Table 19: Multifamily Pipeline

Multifamily Pipeline

DVI reports approximately 772 multifamily housing units currently under CRA District Under % of Total
construction (as of January 2021), all of which are rental/for lease offerings. Construction
Construction activity is currently concentrated in the Brooklyn, Cathedral and Brooklyn 441 57%
Southbank Districts. Cathedral 142 18%
Planned multifamily projects total of 2,737 units. Southbank projects total Central Core 4 1%
1,300 units or 47 percent of this planned supply. Smaller concentrations are Southbank 185 24%
planned in the Central Core, Church, and Sports and Entertainment Districts. Church 0 .
LaVilla 0 0%
Sports and Entertainment 0 0%
Total 772 100%
CRA District Planned Units % of Total
Brooklyn 0 0%
Cathedral 140 5%
Central Core 520 19%
Southbank 1,300 47%
Church 398 15%
LaVilla 107 1%
Sports and Entertainment 272 10%
Total 2,737 100%

Source: Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority; Downtown Vision,
Inc.; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 39 | Page




Table 20: Multifamily Development Pipeline, 2020

Description Address # Units Lease/Sale District

Vista Brooklyn 200 Riverside Ave. 308 For Lease Brooklyn
Lofts at Brooklyn Spruce & Jackson 133 For Lease Brooklyn
Ashley Square Senior Housing 650 N. Newnan St. 120 For Lease Cathedral
Elena Flats 122 E. Duval St. 4 For Lease Cathedral
Shipping Container Apartments 412 E. Ashley St. 18 For Lease Cathedral
225 Laura St. Apartments 225 Laura St. 4 For Lease Central Core
Southbank Apartments by Ventures 841 Prudential Dr. 185 For Lease Southbank
Total 772

River’s Edge 801 Broadcast PI. 950 For Lease & Sale Southbank
JTA Southbank Residential 700 Montana Ave. 350 For Lease Southbank
Lofts at the Cathedral 325 E. Duval St. 120 For Lease Cathedral
Ford on Bay 288 E Bay St. 520 For Lease Central Core
First Baptist Block Development Beaver, Julia, Ashley and Hogan 170 For Lease Church
Independent Life Insurance Building 233 W. Duval St. 200 For Lease Church
Jones Brothers Furniture Building 520 N. Hogan St. 28 For Lease Church
LaVilla Townhomes Adams, Johnson, Lee & Forsyth Streets 91 For Sale LaVilla

Le Mesa Building 905 W. Forsyth St. 16 For Lease & Sale LaVilla
Doro District 128 A. Philip Randolph Blvd 247 For Lease Sports and Entertainment
Shipyards and Kids Kampus Metropolitan Park 25 For Lease & Sale Sports and Entertainment
Total 2,626

Source: Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority; Downtown Vision, Inc.; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 40 | Page




Residential Market Findings

The current combination of high vacancy rates, rapid absorption, and
relatively higher asking rents in comparison to achieved rents suggest that
multifamily housing in the Brooklyn and Southbank Districts are in demand as
newly built product continues to be added and absorbed and pipeline
development becomes reality. Current activity indicates a substantial number
of units will be coming online in these Districts through 2023, which will
increase competitive pressure on market rents and negatively impact vacancy

rates as the market restabilizes.

This development pattern reflects DIA’s developer incentives programs to

successfully catalyze activity in Southbank and Brooklyn.

The DIA could explore policies to further scale the use of these incentives to
other Districts, such as through more precise targeting or metering. The key
will be to extend the recent strength of the market in these Downtown Core
districts to the surrounding neighborhoods by fostering implementation of

pending Master Plans.

Finally, the Covid-19 pandemic has undoubtedly had a negative impact on the
multifamily market, with a national shift toward single family home occupancy
that accommodates work-and-school-from-home, with better access to
outdoors and more expansive personal space, all of which are more readily
available in the suburbs. This trend will likely continue into the near term, with
a reversal expected as vaccination levels and health safety confidence
increase, while developers and downtowns attempt to provide these assets

and amenities.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Retail Market Overview

Introduction

This analysis focused on five retail market segments including general
merchandising, apparel, dining, grocery, and pharmacy. The analysis evaluates
effective trade areas for retail establishments within Downtown Jacksonville,
the current supply of available retail types, and key indicators within the retail

market.

Trade Area Definitions

Retail within Downtown Jacksonville establishments serve residents, visitors,
and employees. Home location of these segments was evaluated using
Placer.ai, a data mining company that matches credit card expenditures with
residence location. Data was queried for three or more expenditures by
individuals during the most recent six months, an industry standard that
identifies the core market drawing area. This does not exclude visitors from
areas outside of these areas, but rather focuses the results on locations with

the greatest market impact.

Visitor Home Locations

The primary sources of the visitor market were estimated through evaluation
of place of residence for expenditures in Downtown Jacksonville CRAs,
reflecting the regional draw of the activities and events held there. As
illustrated by Figure 28, the visitor trade area associated with the Downtown
CRAs is primarily clustered in the MSA but extends south beyond Tampa, FL

and north along the coast as far as Charleston, South Carolina.

41 | Page




Figure 28: Visitor Drawing Area by Home Location

~ 7

. Atlanta 3 “ SOUTH :
S P I EE L) . Bosr. CAROLINA MrieBsag
- ldCClsa 1 o CARQ
scalotd , ax® S By

ALABAMA '

Source: Placer.ai; RMA; Willdan, 2021
Employment Home Locations

The trade area for the resident market was identified by the home locations
of people who work in Downtown. Expectedly, this area is concentrated
within the MSA, but generally oriented toward the south. As depicted in
Figure 29, the employee trade area is expectedly much smaller than the
visitor trade area, and generally clustered along each side of the St. Johns

River and major roadways.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Figure 29: Employee Trade Area by Home Location
—— o i
D -

e

Source: Placer.ai; RMA; Willdan, 2021

42 | Page




Covid-19 Impact

The impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on retail shopping demand was evaluated
using data from placer.ai that provided the ability to quantify monthly visits to
downtown Jacksonville both before and after pandemic limitations were

implemented in mid-March 2020.

Figure 30 depicts both monthly visitor and employee trips to downtown
Jacksonville between March 2019 and January 2021. While all visitors are not
necessarily retail shoppers, the total amount of visits to Downtown Jacksonville

can be used as a proxy for retail demand.

As depicted, both measures declined precipitously in the first quarter of 2020.
Average monthly visitors prior to the pandemic averaged approximately 1.8
million visitors and 1.2 million employees. Monthly trips to downtown currently
total approximately 880,000 visitors, while employees total roundly 500,000,

representing a decline of over 50 percent for each group.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Figure 30: Monthly Visits to Downtown Jacksonville by Employees
and Visitors, March 2019 to February 2021

2,500,000
2,000,000
1,500,000
1,000,000
500,000

0

QA 9 9 9 9 O OO O OO OO N

NN NN Y Y YY)
& & & L& & &L
W VT W Ve
e \/jsitOrs == Employees

Source: Placer.ai; RMA; Willdan, 2021

43 | Page




Due to the Covid-19 pandemic quarantine orders and limits on public
gatherings, 2020 to 2021 was a very challenging year for the retail sector,

especially for brick-and-mortar retailers and restaurants.

While necessity retail (grocery, convenience, drug stores, etc.) were able to
sustain sales by limiting space capacity and increasing online grocery
“contactless” parking lot and home delivery volumes, restaurants faced a
sudden and drastic drop in sales compounded by the high cost of carrying

unused existing food/drink inventories, space, and labor costs.

Restaurants pivoted quickly to offer outdoor dining and take out options and
others turned their operations into ghost kitchens to generate non-traditional
revenue. Ghost kitchens are essentially restaurants without the dining space.
Their focus is to sell and fulfill online food orders for delivery using third-party
apps like Grubhub, UberEats, and DoorDash, or with their own delivery
operation. These ghost kitchens continue to be popular, as they relax

demands on real estate and labor for restaurants.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Retail Market Indicators by District
The retail real estate market indicators presented in this study are derived
from data provided by CoStar as of Q4 2020, the most recent and available

quarter at the time of this analysis.

The retail sector evaluated in this study as defined by CoStar includes
properties used for “various sales opportunities, including, but not limited to,
stand-alone (convenience stores to department stores), store fronts, strip
centers (no anchors), neighborhood, community, regional, and super-regional

malls, power centers, factory outlet centers, and fashion or specialty centers.”

Retail Square Feet by District

The Central Core and Brooklyn Districts currently contain the majority of retail
space in Downtown. Combined, these Districts contain roughly 55 percent of

all downtown retail inventory. Figure 31 illustrates the current distribution of

retail by District. Note that no retail inventory exists in the Working

Waterfront District.

44 | Page




Figure 31: Retail Inventory, By District, Q4 2020
63,900

- 345,000

= Brooklyn = Cathedral
= Central Core = Church
= LaVilla = Southbank

= Sports and Enfertainment
Source: CoStar; RMA; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Retail Rent Rates

Market rents per square foot range currently from $10.98 per square foot in
the Cathedral District to $20.78 in the Southbank District. The Sports and
Entertainment District are among the highest downtown, reflecting
constrained supply and event-driven nature of market demand. Rents in the
Cathedral, Church and LaVilla Districts are comparatively low, but had been
rising steadily prior to the Covid pandemic. Figure 32 displays market rents

per square foot, by District.

Figure 32: Retail Market Rent per Square Foot, Q4 2020

$25
$20
$15
$10
$5
$ N N
& S @ NS IS
o° . & aod y & & «°
(o & & &°
d &
Q
o
{\%
&
Source: CoStar; RMA; Willdan, 2021
45 | Page




Retail Vacancy Rates

Within most downtown Districts, retail vacancy remains relatively low despite
the Covid pandemic. Vacancy is modestly higher in the Central Core, which
reflects a decrease in daytime office demand as employees are working from

home in much higher numbers.

LaVilla has a particularly high vacancy rate, though it has absorbed
approximately 20,000 sq. ft. of retail space within the past year, as discussed
in the following discussion of retail absorption trends. The high vacancy rate is
primarily driven by the vacancy of the 18,300 square foot DelLoach Furniture

Building, which is currently listed for sale.

The LaVilla District historically has reported high retail vacancy rates, with

rates between 20% and 31% since 2011.

The Cathedral and Sports and Entertainment Districts have no retail vacancy,
though they do not large amounts of retail space to begin with compared to
several of the other downtown districts (78,700 and 63,900 sg. ft.,

respectively).

Figure 33 displays retail vacancy rates, by District.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Figure 33: Vacancy Rate, Q4 2020

Vacancy Rate

25%
20%
15%
10%
" I
_— ] -
O X
& & OO@ & & oo& &é\
o & O & e & &
(@) 6& O Q,(\
«
¢ &
&
o
(\‘—)
3
L

Source: CoStar; RMA; Willdan, 2021

Absorption
Several Districts continue to demonstrate relatively strong absorption levels

despite the pandemic. Brooklyn, 1997
and LaVilla all absorbed between 15,000 and 20,000 sq. ft. in Q4 2020.

While the retail absorption in LaVilla was encouraging, it was largely driven by
the sale of 7,600 sq. ft. of space at 618 W. Adams in Q2 2020 and
approximately 13,200 sq. ft. in Q3 2020, including 9,661 sq. ft. at the
Greyhound Bus Station at 1111 W. Forsyth St.

Southbank is the only District with negative absorption, with just over 5,000

sq. ft. of vacancy net gained. While this may be interpreted as a possible

46 | Page




oversupply issue, the District’s low vacancy rates and high rents suggest
otherwise. Figure 33 displays 12-month net absorption of retail space, by

District.

Figure 34: 12 Month Net Retail Absorption, Q4 2020
25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000

5,000

N @ X
@Q &O OO‘\ \5‘\(}(\ \\%O &
X ¢ > & N oS &
(5,000) < & S ©

(10,000} &

Source: CoStar; RMA; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Retail Supply Characteristics by Segment

To evaluate the retail supply characteristics within Downtown, placer.ai was
used to identify locations where the residents of Downtown shop. This
assessment considers the underlying notion that given an adequate supply
and variety of nearby retail options, residents would opt for the nearby
convenience. Alternatively, absent an adequate supply, spending would occur
elsewhere. From the perspective of supply, new retail inventory typically
follows demand, unless incentivized otherwise. Retailers, especially
considering the shift to online shopping and the changing landscape for a
brick-and-mortar location, are increasing careful about new locations,
especially so for non-restaurant retail that typically benefits less from daytime

populations.

The following pages present the location of retail spending by Downtown

residents.

General Merchandise

Of the top ten shopping centers and general merchandise retailers preferred
by Downtown residents, only two are located within Downtown. All but one of
the remaining locations are south and east of downtown, with a

concentration in the St. Johns Town Center.

47 | Page




Table 21: General Merchandise Retailers Favored by Residents

Name Address District
Riverside Market Square 2033 Riverside Ave n/a
Brooklyn Station on Riverside 90-192 Riverside Ave Brooklyn
Walmart Supercenter 4250 Philips Hwy n/a
Roosevelt Square 4535 Roosevelt Blvd n/a
The Markets at Town Center 4866 Big Island Dr n/a
The Strand at Town Center Town Center Parkway n/a
Lakewood Promenade 5620 San Jose Blvd n/a
Tinseltown Gate Pkwy N n/a
Jacksonville Landing? 2 Independent Drive Central Core
The Avenues 10300 Southside Blvd n/a

Apparel

None of the top apparel retailers preferred by Downtown residents are
located within Downtown indicating that there is an undersupply of apparel
retailers Downtown. The following lists the top apparel retailers favored by
residents. All are located east of Downtown, with four located in St. Johns

Town Center.

Table 22: Top Ten Apparel Retailers Favored by Residents

! Jacksonville Landing demolished in October 2019. Redevelopment pending.

Source: Placer.ai. Data range: March 1, 2019 to February 29, 2020

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Name Address District
Dillard's 4755 Town Crossing Dr n/a
Nordstrom 4835 Town Crossing Drive n/a
Ross Dress for Less 10261 River Marsh Dr. n/a
T.J. Maxx 3550 University Blvd W n/a
Nordstrom Rack 4924 Big Island Dr n/a
Ross Dress for Less 13291 City Station Dr. n/a
Stein Mart? 1648 University Blvd W n/a
Dillard's 10300 Southside Blvd n/a
T.J. Maxx 11824 Atlantic Blvd Ste 100 n/a
T.J. Maxx 11111-16 San Jose Blvd n/a

I Steinmart closed permanently October 2020. Property remains vacant as of April 2021.

Source: Placer.ai. Data range: March 1, 2019 to February 29, 202

48 | Page




Dining
Many of the top-20 dining establishments frequented by Downtown residents
are located nearby. These establishments are primarily located in three

Districts: Brooklyn, Central Core and Southbank.

Table 23: Top 20 Dining Establishments Favored by Residents

Name Address District
1 Starbucks 1650 Margaret Street n/a
2 BURGERFI 108 Riverside Avenue Brooklyn
3 Hawkers Asian Street Food 1001 Park St n/a
4 BB'sBar 1019 Hendricks Ave Southbank
5  Cowford Chophouse 101 E Bay St Central Core
6  LaNopalera 1629 Hendricks Ave n/a
7 River & Post 1000 Riverside Avenue n/a
8 Panera Bread 1440 Hendricks Ave n/a
9 Burrito Gallery 90 Riverside Ave, #601 Brooklyn
10V Pizza 1406 Hendricks Ave n/a
11 Sushi Cafe 2025 Riverside Ave n/a
12 Saki House 1478 Riverplace Blvd Southbank
13 Uptown Kitchen & Bar 1303 N Main St n/a
14 Kickbacks Gastropub King St 910 n/a
15 First Watch 192 Riverside Ave Brooklyn
16 Players Grille 4456 Hendricks Ave n/a
17 The Southern Grill 800 Flagler Ave Southbank
18 Southern Grounds 1671 Atlantic Blvd n/a
19  Burrito Gallery Downtown 21 E Adams St Central Core

20  European Street Cafe 1704 San Marco Blvd n/a

Source: Placer.ai. Data range: March 1, 2019 to February 29, 2020.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Restaurants with Outdoor Seating

To track progress against goals, the DIA collected data regarding restaurants
with outdoor seating, as of March 2021. Figure 35 displays the breakdown of
those with outdoor seating by District. Most of these establishments are

located in the Central Core.

Figure 35: Restaurants with Outdoor Seating, by District

20
18
16
14
12
10

8

Brooklyn Cathedral Central Core Church Southbank Sports &
Entertainment

O N MO

Source: Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority; DVI; Willdan, 2021
The following table provides a detailed inventory of restaurants with outdoor
seating. The DIA adopted increasing the number and variety of restaurants
with outdoor seating as a primary CRA performance measure related to
creating a sense of place Downtown. This inventory list is updated annually by
the DIA with data support provided by DVI to monitor and report on progress

against goals and to inform evaluation of development proposals.

49 | Page




Table 24: Inventory of Restaurants with Outdoor Seating by District

Street Address

City Sidewalk

Ground
Floor
Visible from
MNICE

Ground
Floor
Not Visible
from Street Rooftop

Akels Deli - Haskell

BurgerFi

Burrito Gallery - Brooklyn

Edna Sproull Williams Café (YMCA)
First Watch

Jimmy John's

Vale Food Co

Zoe’s Kitchen

Burrito Gallery - Downtown

Atrium Café

Bay Street Bar and Grill
Bellwether

Bold City Downtown
Chamblins Uptown Café
Cowford Chophouse
D&G Deli and Grill

Gili's Kitchen Catering and Bakery
Happy Grilled Cheese
Maddy D's

Magnificat Café
Morton’s Steakhouse
Pita Pit

Rojas Pizza

Spliffs Gastropub

Super Foods and Brew

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

111 Riverside Ave

108 Riverside Ave #501
90 Riverside Ave #601
221 Riverside Ave

192 Riverside Ave

201 N Laura St

90 Riverside Ave #603
90 Riverside Ave STE 607

21 E Adams St

1 Independent Dr
119 E Bay St

117 W Forsyth St
109 E Bay St
215N Laura St
101 E Bay St

233 E Bay St

126 W Adams St #102
219 N Hogan St
440 W Adams St
231 N Laura St
225 E Coastline Dr
491 W Forsyth St
440 W Adams St
100 E Forsyth St
11 E Forsyth St

X

<X X X X >

< X

> X

xX X X X

X
X
X
X
X
X
50 | Page




Sweet Pete's / Candy Apple Café

The Brick Coffee House
Whispers Oyster Bar

Jenkins Quality BBQ
Southbank

Basil Thai

bb's restaurant and bar
River City Brewing Company
Sake House

The Southern Grill

Intuition Ale Works
Jacksonville Sports Tavern
Russ Doe's Sandwich Shop
Tailgate Bar and Grill

Street Address

400 N Hogan St
214 N Hogan St
331 W Forsyth St

830 N Pearl St

1004 Hendricks Ave
1019 Hendricks Ave
835 Museum Cir

1478 Riverplace Blvd #1
800 Flagler Ave

929 E Bay St

234 A Philip Randolph Blvd
1745 E Church St

441 Haines St

City Sidewalk

Ground
Floor
Visible from
Street

Ground
Floor
Not Visible
from Street

Rooftop

Source: Downtown Investment Authority; DVI; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

51 | Page




Grocery

Grocery uses are distinct from other retail uses due to the time-limited
shelf-life of fresh produce, dairy, and meats. Grocers must support
relatively higher operating costs associated with energy, water, sanitation
and safety. Consequently, grocers expect to operate within “razor thin”

profit margins.

Grocers are also sensitive to market cannibalization from new operators
entering a submarket. Similar to national chain pharmacies, it is not
unusual for two or three national chains to be located in the same
neighborhood submarket in the competition to capture long-term customer

brand loyalty.

According to the International Council of Shopping Centers, the average size
of a grocery store is shrinking from 40,000 sq. ft. over the last two decades
to 20,000 sq. ft. or less. Specialty grocers Trader Joe’s and Aldi typically

measure closer to 12,000 sq. ft.

In established urban markets, grocery stores are typically developed within
the context of mixed-use urban infill and after resident, workforce and
visitor populations reach threshold levels. Urban format or specialty
grocery outlets frequently are planned as part of ground floor development
activating retail uses in project-specific cases where grocery offerings would
provide a walkable amenity for the redevelopment site and surrounding

area.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Current Downtown Jacksonville grocery supply is characterized as suburban

format (20,000 sq. ft or more.) including the following locations:
=  The Fresh Market — 150 Riverside Ave: 20,218 sq. ft.
=  Publix — 2033 Riverside Ave: 27,888 sq. ft.
= Harveys Supermarket — 777 N Market St: 28,284 sq. ft.

These three locations are the top three groceries visited by residents in

Downtown anywhere in the regional submarket.

The following figure illustrates the overlapping trade areas of these three
grocery stores where residents are considered to be available demand to

support any one of these locations.

Figure 36: Grocery Trade Area Overlap

Harveys Supermarket
The Fresh Market 777 N Market 5t, Jacksonville, 32202, FL

150 Riverside Ave, Ste 200, Jacksonville, 32202, FL

Total Trade Area 6.85 sq mi

Total Trade Area 42,92 sq mi . Overlapping Area 79.7%

Qverlapping Area 38.5%

Publix at Jacksonville, FL
2033 Riverside Ave, Jacksonville, 32204-4442 FL

Total Trade Area 21.87 sq mi
Overlapping Area 81.9%

3.32sq mi

Source: Placer.ai; Willdan, 2021

While an increase in grocery supply in Downtown would likely cannibalize a
share of market sales from the existing grocers in the short-term, there
remains a need to increase the amenity base and convenience in

Downtown Jacksonville to support ancillary mixed-use development.

52 | Page




Data collection interviews indicated strong interest in attracting an urban
format specialty grocery store (8,000 to 12,000 sq. ft). Examples of this
product type include compact ground floor grocery offerings operated by
local, independent brands or associated with small format national chain
retail locations in mixed-use urban settings. Discussions with real estate
representatives from the grocers in the market indicate interest in

additional locations in the downtown market.

Pharmacy

Similar to retail apparel, none of the top pharmacies preferred by
Downtown residents are located within Downtown indicating that there is
an undersupply of this use. The following table lists the top pharmacies
favored by residents, all outside of Downtown.

Table 25: Top Six Jacksonville Pharmacies Favored by
Residents, 2021

Name Address District
Walgreens 2703 Park St n/a
Walgreens 8917 San Jose Blvd n/a
CVS/pharmacy 9509 San Jose Blvd. n/a
Walgreens 11430 Beach Blvd n/a
CVS/pharmacy 6005 St. Augustine Road n/a
CVS/pharmacy 4475 San Juan Avenue n/a

Source: Placer.ai. Data range: March 1, 2019 to February 29, 2020;
Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Retail Market Findings

Retail development design and programming is currently focused on
creating a “town center” experience with greater outdoor pedestrian
orientation and opportunities. This contrasts with the suburban style
shopping centers built in recent years that placed a greater emphasis on the
convenience of parking and ease of access. With consumer preferences
trending towards experiential retail and the opportunity to go out and shop,
eat and be entertained, Covid-19 has created a critical mass of pent-up
demand beyond online shopping. Reimagining the retail landscape will
include placemaking efforts and authentic experiences in compact, human-

centric downtown urban environments.

Location-based entertainment is a diverse and dynamic sector that can be
categorized into five key subsectors—arts and entertainment, play and
activity-based leisure, health and fitness, food and beverage, and
heritage/visitor attractions. These are the assets that downtown
Jacksonville can capitalize on to provide that experience that the consumer

of today is searching for.

As craft breweries, artisanal coffeehouses and curated shops become more
popular, it is this type of retail/ entertainment that will thrive in an urban
landscape such as downtown Jacksonville and should be targeted for the
area. This tenant mix transformation throughout the industry is illustrated

below.

53 | Page




Figure 37: The Tenant Mix Transformation

&gg The Tenant Mix Transformation

Tenants in Retail Real Estate Growth Fueled by Service
t ©®=x9¢ L@
+72 pRw = W

E :
s s -
. . 4205% = 526%
H Overall increase : Restaurants, wireless

i carriers and fitness
i centers leading the charge

#ICSCResearch

Source: ICSC; RMA, 2021
Expansions of existing breweries such as the Ruby Beach Brewery are
examples of this trend. This brewery is expanding to add an outdoor patio

and a rooftop dining area.

As retail/leisure and entertainment evolve according to changes in
consumer lifestyles and behavior, innovative concepts and formats are

producing a diverse and dynamic sector.

Figure 38: Ruby Beach Brewery, Downtown Jacksonville

Source: Jacksonville Business Journal; RMA; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Boutique cinemas, urban golf, virtual reality arcades, street-food market
halls, pop-up spaces, ghost kitchens, and premium fitness clubs are
examples of a few of these emerging tenants that the market research

indicates as most advantageous for downtown Jacksonville

54 | Page




Given current conditions, mixed-use development trends, and the progress
of planned major projects, the Consulting Team supports the DIA’s strategy

to attract an urban format specialty grocery, principally in the Central Core.

The economics of each grocery opportunity will determine the size with
compact urban product types smaller than suburban models expected, but
the location and importance to continued growth is determined by
walkability from a concentration of existing and planned residences as well

as walkability from Central Core office buildings.

This use will enhance walkability in conjunction with the growth in
residential product. In this scenario, retail is following rooftops and rooftops

are following retail somewhat simultaneously.

Residential units and population alone are not the only predictor of success.
It is expected that new retail (grocery and pharmacy specifically) in

Downtown will be further supported by the workforce and visitors.

Without these Downtown amenities walkable from the Central Core, the
DIA’s efforts to continue the trend of increased downtown residential
development and to retain/attract new office tenants will be constrained by

the lack of amenity base and specialty retailers.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Figure 39: W. Forsyth Street Parking Garage Mural, Central Core

Source: Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority, 2020

55 | Page




Office Market Overview

Introduction

The Jacksonville office market has remained relatively strong over most of
the past decade. The office market benefits from several key attributes
including the area’s lower cost of living, stronger wage performance, lower
office rents, and the availability of effectively priced land. More recently
however, rents flattened during the pandemic, though they recovered by
the end of the year. The market is currently accumulating excess inventory,
especially Class B space, that will need to be reabsorbed as the market

returns to post-pandemic normalcy.

Office Indicators by District
This analysis evaluates four primary office market metrics: rent rate,

vacancy levels, 12-month absorption rates, and sales price per square foot.

Data for these indicators was collected from CoStar through Q4 2020, the
most current available. A unique benefit of CoStar is the ability to set
geographic boundaries, providing the ability to query data and conduct

analysis with a higher degree of specificity for each Downtown District.

Office Supply Overview

There are over 13.6 million sq. ft. of office space in Downtown Jacksonville.
Just over one half is in the Central Core District, with lesser concentrations
in Brooklyn and Southbank. CoStar classifies office space into three
categories: A, B and C, with A being the newest and highest quality. Most
Downtown office space is either Class A or B, with only a fraction classified

as Class C, indicative of a healthy, adequately maintained inventory. Figure

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

40 summarizes Downtown Jacksonville’s existing office inventory, by

category and location.

Figure 40: Office Inventory by Class and District, Q4 2020

8,000,000
7,000,000
6,000,000
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,000,000

2,000,000
1,000,000
= Bl -

Brooklyn Cathedral Central Church LaVilla Southbank Sports &
Core Entertainment

EClass A mEClassB  mClass C and Unclassified

Source: CoStar; RMA; Willdan, 2021

Vacancy Rates

The Covid-19 pandemic has increased vacancy rates in the Downtown
Districts. Central Core had vacancy significantly above 10% and LaVilla and
Southbank had office vacancy rates approaching 10%. The highest vacancy
rate in the Central Core is most problematic as this District also contains, by

far, the largest amount of office space in the City.

56 | Page




Figure 41: Office Vacancy by District, Q4 2020

14%
12%
10%
8%
6%
4%
) I I
0% -—
Brooklyn Cathedral Central Church LaVvilla Southbank Sports &
Core Entertainment

Source: CoStar; RMA; Willdan, 2021

When examining vacancy by class by District, two trends stand out: Class C
office space in Brooklyn and Class A office space in the Central Core have
high vacancy. The relatively higher Class C vacancy in Brooklyn is somewhat
misleading as Class C office space comprises less than six percent of all
office space in the District. More concerning is the level of Class A vacancy
in the Central Core with considerable vacancies at several properties
including 225 Water St, 301 W Bay St (TIAA Bank Building), the Wells Fargo

Center and the Bank of America Tower.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Figure 42: Office Vacancy by District by Class, Q4 2020
30%
25%
20%

15%

10%
U B n . [ -

Brooklyn Cathedral Central Core Church Lavilla Southbank Sports &
Entertainment

X

B ClassA ™ ClassB m ClassC
Source: CoStar; Willdan, 2021

Rent per Square Foot by District

Average office rents range from approximately $18 to just over $23 per
square foot. The highest rents are in the popular Brooklyn and Southbank
districts and the dominant Central Core. The lowest rents are in the

Cathedral and Church Districts.

57 | Page




Figure 43: Office Rent per Square Foot by District, Q4 2020

$25.00

$20.00

$15.00

$10.00

$5.00
$- Brooklyn Cathedral ng:;al Church Lavilla Southbank Emi;:gi:; r:em

Source: CoStar; RMA; Willdan, 2021
Absorption

Absorption levels indicate a general reduction of occupied office space
throughout nearly all of Downtown. All districts except LaVilla generated
negative absorption levels in 2020. Much of this decline can be attributed
the Covid-19 pandemic, as many companies have offered or required

employees to work from home.

The highest negative absorption occurred in the Brooklyn, Central Core and
Southbank Districts, where 54,000, 50,000 and 84,000 sq. ft. was vacated

and not released, respectively.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Figure 44: Office 12 Month Net Absorption by District, Q4 2020

80,000
60,000
40,000
20,000

(20,000)
(40,000)
(60,000)
(80,000)
(100,000}

Central Sports &
Brooklyn Cathedral Core Church LaVilla Southbank  Entertainment

Source: CoStar; RMA; Willdan, 2021

58 | Page




Office Sales Prices

Historical sales prices per square foot of Downtown office space expectedly
follow rent patterns. Average transaction price per square foot ranges from
$107 to $141 and are highest in the Brooklyn District, reflecting the
neighborhood’s desirability as an office location. Average price in the
Central Core is expectedly in the middle, at $124 per square foot, reflecting

the District’s larger inventory and transaction volume.

Figure 45: Market Sales Price per Square Foot by District, Q4

$160
$140

$120
$100
$8
$6
$4
$2
$_

Brooklyn Cathedral Central Church LaVilla Southbank Sports &
Core Entertainment

o o O O

2020

Source: CoStar; RMA; Willdan, 2021

Only two office buildings sold in 2020. They include the Bank of America
Tower ($64.4 million, 699,000 sq. ft., or $92 PSF) and the SBA
Communications Company building at 21 West Church Street ($10.8 million,
238,129 sq. ft. or $45 PSF). These lower prices likely reflect the near-term

challenges in the commercial office market. Notably, the West Church

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Street property is being used primarily to house data equipment and is not
being utilized in a manner slightly different than a typical commercial office

building.

Table 26: Jacksonville Office Sales Highlights, 2020

Bank of America Tower

RBA: 699,000 SF Office Leased: 73%

Sold: December 2020 Year Built: 1990

Sale Price: $64.4M (S92/SF)

21 W Church St

Buyer: SBA Communications Co (USA) Leased: 100%

Seller: Metropolitan Jax Lofts I, Ltd. Hold Period: 107 Months

(USA)
Sale Type: Investment RBA: 238,129 SF
Sale Date: July 2020 Year Built 1959

Sale Price $10.8M (S45/SF) (Renovated 2004)

Source: CoStar; RMA; Willdan, 2021

Covid-19 Impact Assessment Findings

Asillustrated by the data presented throughout the office supply overview,
Covid-19 has impacted the office market in Downtown Jacksonville.
According to local area commercial brokers, the daytime foot traffic from
Downtown Jacksonville office workers is estimated to be down by 80% due

to remote work requirements and/or options.

59 | Page




According to the Wall Street Journal’s review of Price Waterhouse Cooper’s
January 2021 US Remote Work Survey1, office space decision makers
experienced a monumental shift to work-from-home during the majority of
2020. Though business leaders are more convinced about the productivity
gains achieved, some are no closer to giving up the office. Approximately
68% of all survey respondents think company culture will survive a purely
remote working set up and would expect employees to be physically in the

office three or more days per week.

Office Market Findings

Slowing demand resulting in increased vacancies and negative absorption
has hampered the Jacksonville office market even prior to the Covid-19
pandemic. The pandemic has exacerbated market conditions as companies

consolidate operations and encourage employees to work from home.

Nationally, other Downtown markets are experiencing an uptick in Class B-C
conversions to multifamily to take advantage of increasing space availability

while also pursing housing goals.

According to Urban Land Magazine, nearly 800 structures were converted
to apartment buildings throughout the United States during the 2010s, the
highest number in the past seven decades as reported by data provider

Yardi Matrix. The DIA could consider exploring the financial feasibility of

1 https://www.wsj.com/articles/return-to-office-what-to-do-while-staying-remote-
11627396958

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

adaptive reuse development opportunities for obsolete office product as

part of future strategic planning efforts.

Jacksonville has a relatively low cost of living, lower office rents and higher
wages than competing cities. While the economic downturn caused initial
job losses in the financial activities and professional and business services
sectors, growth nationally in these sectors are close to reaching pre-
pandemic levels. Financial, professional, and business services are key
drivers of Jacksonville’s” office market, due in large part to the prevalence of
major firms such as Merrill Lynch, Citibank, Bank of America and Wells

Fargo.

Going forward however, labor force utilization will change, creating a
structural dampener on office demand. Put simply, more people will work
from home both permanently and on a rotating basis. As a result, as jobs
are added, those jobs won’t have the same impact on absorption of office

space.

Demand will rise though as the structure of the economy continues to shift
to more service and knowledge driven industries. As the economy adds
jobs, a greater proportion will be in an office-using industry. Netting it all
out, the data suggests there will be a full recovery in office occupancy, but it

will be slowed by the Covid-19 recovery and sustained shifts to the share of

60 | Page




the office using workforce continuing to work from home at least three

days a week.

According to the most recent report by the Bureau of Labor and Statistics
(BLS), Jacksonville had recovered about 80% of the nearly 85,000 jobs lost in
the early months of the Covid-19 pandemic. While the pandemic has
caused significant economic disruption in Jacksonville, labor data indicators
suggest the market may be one of the best in Florida poised for a strong

recovery.

While the proportion of the private sector workforce in the retail trade and
leisure and hospitality sectors exceeds 27% in most Florida metros, jobs in
those sectors make up 22% of Jacksonville's employment. Due in part to its
port, Jacksonville's largest private employment sector is trade,

transportation, and utilities, accounting for 19% of jobs.

Healthcare and education jobs make up 18% of the work force and the

sector has continued to grow over the past year.

Jacksonville also has a competitive advantage with its walkable downtown.
Companies make downtown site selection decisions based on proximity to
neighborhood amenities, transportation linkages, creative collaboration,

proximity to business partners, and the available pool of talented workers.

Urban life provides a vitality in downtown neighborhoods which drives
commercial real estate to evaluate a mix of synergistic metrics that go
beyond rents, vacancy rates, land value and market capitalization rates.
When considering a new location, office tenants today weigh a diverse mix

of local characteristics including walk scores, bike scores, public

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

realm/placemaking offerings, public transit, environmental risks, workforce

qualities, recreation offerings, medical/healthcare/wellness infrastructure,

Jacksonville achieved the 5th highest
population growth in the USA in 2019 and the

12th highest over the last 10 years.

The booming population growth is joined by

job gains, which have outpaced the nation

for 7 years.

Overall job growth in Jacksonville in the past
year has been more than four times national

job growth.

and housing opportunities. The appeal of the whole experience and a sense
of place, along with social interaction are key things driving these

relocation/location decisions.

A strong white-collar workforce, and business friendly environment are
attractive to companies looking for new space and expansions. Jacksonville
offers relatively lower office leasing costs, with rents approximately 25%

more affordable than Raleigh, Atlanta, and Charlotte

Among all metros in Florida, Jacksonville is among the top five for rent

growth, ahead of Miami and Orlando. According to CoStar, the downtown

61 | Page




submarkets of Northbank and Southbank have reached the $22 per square
foot and $23 per square foot average rent benchmarks, respectively.
However, properties greater than 100,000 sq. ft. built more than 30 years
ago remain an obstacle, as evidenced by the recent departures of several
large companies. Many of these properties require renovations to
accommodate today’s changing workforce and the competitive context of
wellness, immediate access to outdoor gathering space, and other

placemaking amenities.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

62 | Page




Hotel Market Overview

Introduction

Downtown Jacksonville’s hotel submarket is characterized by a
predominance of limited-service national chain (“flag”) product. Smith
Travel Research reports current room inventory of 2,393 rooms in eight
properties. In addition, there are 263 rooms currently under construction in

the downtown area.

Full-service/upscale hotels are defined as having an onsite restaurant and
lounge, 24-hour room service, laundry service, significant conference
facilities and spa type amenities. This type of hotel is required to bring in
larger conventions, events, meetings and groups, resulting in guests and

visitors who spend more money and time in the area.

A 136-room Residence Inn is under development in the Brooklyn District
and the historic 1924 Ambassador Hotel (127 rooms) is undergoing a
renovation to this former leading property that fell into disrepair. Another
four hotels containing 649 rooms are in planning. Two properties, the
Marriott Autograph and the Four Seasons, would be positioned at the top
of the market should they develop, providing upscale alternatives to a

market that is heavily positioned with middle tier offerings.

A summary of existing, under construction, and currently planned hotel
supply in the following table indicates that the total Downtown Jacksonville
hotel supply is projected to grow to 3,305 rooms, a 38% increase in

inventory over the current existing supply.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Table 27: Downtown Jacksonville Hotel Rooms Supply, Q1 2021

Existing Hotel Properties Rooms Address

1 Hyatt Regency Jacksonville Riverfront 951 225 E Coastline
Dr

2 Omni Jacksonville Hotel 354 245 Water St

3 DoubleTree by Hilton Hotel Jacksonville 293 1201 Riverplace

Riverfront Blvd

4 Extended Stay America Jacksonville - 101 1413 Prudential

Riverwalk - Convention Center Dr

5 Hampton by Hilton Inn Jacksonville- 118 1331 Prudential

Downtown-I-95 Dr

6 Hilton Garden Inn Jacksonville Downtown 123 1201 Kings Ave

Southbank

7 Homewood Suites by Hilton Jacksonville 98 1201 Kings Ave

Downtown Southbank

8 Southbank Hotel Jacksonville Riverwalk 355 1515 Prudential
Dr

Total Current Rooms 2,393
Hotels Under Construction Rooms Address

136 357 Oak St
127 420 N. Julia St.

9 Residence Inn
10 Ambassador Hotel (refurb.)

Total Under Construction 263
Hotels Planned/Proposed Rooms Address
11 Marriott Autograph 145 112 W. Adams
St
12 AC Hotel by Marriott 200 The District at
Southbank
13 Four Seasons Hotel, Spa, and Residences 176  Gator Bowl
Blvd.
14 Hyatt Place (Sister Cities Site) 128 76 S Laura St.
Total Planned/Proposed 649
Total Current, Under Construction, Planned 3,305

Source: Visit Jax; Jacksonville Business Journal; Smith Travel Research;
Willdan, 2021

63 | Page



Figure 46: Jacksonville Hotel Supply Map, 2021

Rosa L Parks Transit()

Q'IO

James Weldon,
Lavilla(D Johnson Park

Jefferson(] rhoed. e 11 IN
2Q 94
o1 Jacksonville Hotel

roct g o Supply Map Legend

e o ‘ Existing Hotel Rooms

3 Hotel Rooms Under
@ Construction
sanMarco)  Riverplace(l) 4

5 @@ @ 2 Hotel Rooms

Planned/Proposed
Kings Ave m

@ T Total Rooms
12

7Q

Source: Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority; Downtown Vision, Inc.; Smith Travel Research;
Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 64 | Page




Figure 47: Smith Travel Research Hotel Market Indicators 2015-2020

Prior to the Covid pandemic, Smith Travel
Research (STR) data indicates the hotel market
was experiencing stronger performance, both
Downtown and throughout greater Duval
County. Analysis of hotel performance at the
District or even CRA level is not possible due to
STR reporting rules that have minimum
competitive set sizes and similar limitations on
brand representation that seek to exclude the
possibility of calculating individual property

performance.

The room supply reported by STR totals between
2,300 and 2,700 rooms annually, without
specifics on included properties, but one that
matches closely with the existing Downtown
room supply. These rooms represent
approximately 13 percent of the Duval County
total, a supply share that has remained constant

over the past five years.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Downtown Hotel Occupancy

()15 e—(010 e—(0]7 e—)0]5 e—I(]9 —I02)

100.0%

80.0%

60.0%

40.0%

20.0%

0.0%

$160.00
$140.00
$120.00
$100.00
$80.00
$60.00
$40.00

$20.00

$140.00
$12000
$100.00
$80.00
$60.00
$40.00
$2000

$0.00

Jan  Feb Mar Apr May Jun  Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov

Downtown Hotel Averge Daily Rate
e ()15 s (16 s ()17 s 2018 e 2019 s 2020

Jan  Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov

Downtown Hotel RevPAR
— (15— D016 s—(]] 3013 em—7()]9 1020

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov

Dec

Dec

Dec

Rest of Duval County Occupancy

()15 —3016 e—3(17 018 e—I010 —1020
100.0%

80.0%

60.0% i

40.0%
20.0%

0.0%
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun  Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Rest of Duval County Average Daily Rate
$160.00 o 1015 w—016  o—01]  o—0018  e—2010 —2020
§140.00
$120.00
§100.00
$80.00
$60.00
$40.00
$20.00

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun  Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Rest of Duval County Hotel RevPAR

—)015 e—)(]f (017 2018 e—D(10 —3020
$120.00

$110.00
$100.00
$90.00
$80.00
$70.00
$50.00

$50.00
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

65 | Page




STR 5-year data indicates downtown market performance improved steadily
and substantially through 2018, prior to the Covid pandemic. Reported
occupancy levels increased from 61.1 percent in 2015 to 71.8 percent in 2018,
then holding steady through 2019 and falling to 40.5 percent in 2020 as travel
was heavily impacted by Covid-19. Average daily rate similarly improved,
increasing from $113.47 in 2015 to $127.14 in 2018, then decreasing to
$124.74 in 2019, and then $115.20 in the following year.

The resulting Revenue per Available Room (RevPAR) — a metric that is perhaps
the best indicator of overall market health as is combines rate and occupancy
metrics (rate x occupancy = RevPAR) — steadily increased from $69.32 in 2015
to $91.33 in 2018. RevPAR softened to $88.37 in 2019 then declined to $46.67

in 2019, exposing the full impact of the pandemic.

The remainder of Duval County experienced a similar pattern of increasing
RevPAR between 2015 ($53.75) and 2018 ($70.45), then a very slight decline in
2019 (569.59), followed by a significant decrease in 2020 ($46.21). This nearly
identical RevPAR level that was equal to the downtown market highlights the
broad market struggle in 2020, where operators were competing heavily on

price to drive occupancies.

Historic seasonality patterns (prior to Covid) evidenced from the STR data
indicate the Downtown market benefits from a winter snowbird pattern, with
enhanced occupancy and rate performance during the first quarter of the year,
then another two-month upward bump that commences with the beginning of
the school year. The seasonality pattern for the remainder of the county is

similar, but with smaller peaks.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Despite the substantial impact to the hotel market in 2020, near term
expectations are slowly improving market conditions, a recovery that will be
likely led by rate-sensitive leisure travelers, followed by the business travel
segment that is less sensitive to pricing. This latter segment should be closely
monitored to better understand any longer-term changes resulting from the

vastly changed work-from-home patterns and shift to video meetings.

Barring any structural segmentation shifts, occupancy levels exceeding 67%
percent should enhance interest in full-service hotel development. Average
daily rates may be a more challenging aspect for new hotel development and a
potential source of disconnect between construction costs and valuations
derived from operating economics. This may result in requests for
development support for more expensive full-service hotel towers or increased
interest in developing mid-rise, wood-framed (stick-built) structures that cost

less per room to develop.

66 | Page




Table 28: Smith Travel Research Performance Indicators 2015-2020

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

66.6% 67.2% 67.4% 745% 67.7% 71.3%
73.4% 75.3% 76.6% 82.3% 78.0% 78.0%
76.4% 79.8% 80.8% 85.3% 85.5% 57.5%
73.6% 76.7% 77.0% 82.6% 77.7% 31.9%
71.4% 76.2% 74.6% 78.1% 76.6% 46.0%
70.7% 74.5% 73.8% 78.7% 76.7% 57.3%
74.6% 75.7% 74.1% 75.8% 76.9% 57.3%
65.9% 68.8% 71.0% 77.0% 71.0% 57.0%
64.8% 65.6% 76.9% 74.5% 66.3% 60.7%
67.5% 74.3% 825% 76.6% 72.2% 59.5%
63.6% 69.5% 74.0% 69.7% 70.3% 57.8%
60.7% 64.1% 68.3% 65.8% 63.3% 55.0%
69.1% 72.3% 74.7% 76.7% 73.5% 57.4%

61.7% 61.0% 63.3% 68.9% 59.3% 71.8%
66.9% 71.2% 71.5% 74.9% 79.2% 77.3%
64.0% 71.5% 76.7% 785% 86.6%  44.3%
69.6% 73.2% 69.9% 80.3% 785% 17.1%
59.8% 68.6% 68.8% 78.0% 74.6% 28.2%
56.2% 67.4% 61.0% 70.8% 71.7%  30.4%
67.0% 66.4% 65.6% 74.7% 72.1% 36.7%
56.5% 60.2% 61.2% 76.3% 66.1% 33.9%
60.4% 61.3% 50.9% 69.8% 62.9%  36.3%
63.1% 72.6% 54.4% 72.3% 71.8% 34.6%
59.2% 63.4% 59.7% 61.4% 69.7%  37.4%
49.2%  54.6% 54.2% 56.3% 58.7%  35.8%
61.1% 65.9% 63.1% 71.8% 70.8%  40.5%

IS
3}
o

(@]
c
B
g
c
3
o
o

Rest of Duval Occ. %

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

$120.71 $124.25 $128.25 $131.52 $119.96 $134.19
$113.77 $129.13 $133.46 $134.25 $128.68 $133.86
$118.98 $128.13 $130.51 $130.07 $139.63 $124.05
$115.70 $127.84 $127.85 $137.31 $126.92 $88.61

$110.93 $119.99 $126.30 $125.53 $125.64 $100.54
$113.51 $114.18 $118.04 $119.48 $119.82 $100.35
$105.83 $114.98 $113.04 $116.36 $119.55 $104.71
$101.65 $111.24 $110.60 $116.64 $112.30 $103.05
$107.04 $119.14 $121.45 $126.78 $120.62 $107.27
$126.86 $143.43 $135.79 $141.91 $126.64 $106.61
$116.17 $128.46 $124.64 $122.99 $136.79 $112.68
$108.17 $127.56 $120.48 $121.02 $113.21 $103.47
$113.47 $124.30 $124.36 $127.14 $124.74 $115.20

$72.93 $76.07 $81.60 $86.85 $87.79 $91.44
$75.81 $80.17 $86.00 $92.55 $93.88 $95.83
$79.64 $83.74 $89.11 $94.55 $106.04 $91.93
$80.64 $84.37 $89.48 $97.06 $98.59 $63.40
$83.77 $88.74 $93.46 $100.14 $100.73 $73.65
$79.86 $83.64 $86.26 $92.50 $94.71 $80.13
$81.20 $83.81 $87.03 $91.36 $95.87 $79.10
$76.61 $80.49 $84.41 $89.25 $91.28 $76.09
$76.26 $79.24 $88.12 $90.00 $90.55 $76.13
$79.50 $85.83 $92.08 $94.52 $92.13 $75.53
$73.79 $82.92 $87.57 $86.91 $94.67 $74.89
$71.36 $79.38 $82.82 $83.99 $85.54 $72.72
$77.82 $82.54 $87.49 $91.85 $94.71 $80.55

Downtown ADR ($)

~
&
@
[a)
<
<
>
=]
[a}
“—
S)
—
7]
]
o

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
$74.48 $75.79 $81.18 $90.62 $71.14 $96.35
$76.11 $91.94 $95.42 $100.55 $101.91 $103.47
$76.15 $91.61 $100.10 $102.10 $120.92 $54.95
$80.53 $93.58 $89.37 $110.26 $99.63 $15.15
$66.34 $82.31 $86.89 $97.91 $93.73 $28.35
$63.79 $76.96 $72.00 $84.59 $85.91 $30.51
$70.91 $76.35 $74.15 $86.92 $86.20 $38.43
$57.43 $66.97 $67.69 $89.00 $74.23 $34.93
$64.65 $73.03 $61.82 $88.49 $75.87 $38.94
$80.05 $104.13 $73.87 $102.60 $90.93 $36.89
$68.77 $81.44 $74.41 $75.52 $95.34 $42.14
$53.22 $69.65 $65.30 $68.13 $66.45 $37.04
$69.32 $81.93 $78.42 $91.33 $88.37 $46.67

$48.59 $51.11 $55.04 $64.68 $59.46 $65.17
$55.65 $60.36 $65.90 $76.17 $73.20 $74.76
$60.84 $66.84 $72.05 $80.67 $90.69 $52.83
$59.38 $64.72 $68.91 $80.19 $76.62 $20.21
$59.82 $67.64 $69.69 $78.19 $77.17 $33.86
$56.43 $62.32 $63.63 $72.81 $72.61 $45.93
$60.57 $63.45 $64.51 $69.28 $73.69 $45.31
$50.45 $55.41 $59.93 $68.74 $64.83 $43.34
$49.39 $51.98 $67.77 $67.02 $60.07 $46.20
$53.69 $63.75 $75.95 $72.38 $66.47 $44.94
$46.94 $57.62 $64.77 $60.55 $66.54 $43.31
$43.33 $50.86 $56.60 $55.27 $54.13 $39.99
$53.75 $59.67 $65.39 $70.45 $69.59 $46.21

Downtown RevPAR
Rest of Duval RevPAR

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 67 | Page




Hotel Market Findings

The Consultant Team recommends that the DIA evaluate the need for hotel
product incentives an individual project basis to best ensure competitive
impacts from potential cannibalization are mitigated and that the overall health

of the hotel market is sustained.

The DIA should strategically prioritize the deployment of hotel incentives to

achieve one or more of the following goals/targets to:
=  Enhance the quality of hotel offerings
= Attracted net new or underserved market segments

= Link/layer hotel incentives with broader neighborhood-level goals in

activity zones or priority redevelopment areas
=  Renovate iconic properties
= Attract boutique properties with unique character

The deployment of hotel incentives should also recognize the comparative
benefits of site-specific qualities including location, proximity to existing

tourism infrastructure, and broader DIA redevelopment goals.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Market Growth Scenarios Testing
To evaluate future market growth for residential, retail and office markets,

Willdan used CoStar projections and identified optimistic and low scenarios.

The following charts display five years of average rent history, followed by the
CoStar projection which is bounded by Willdan’s optimistic and low growth

scenarios.

The optimistic scenario scales up to 10% greater rents than the CoStar

projection by 2025. The low scenario scales down to 10% lower rents by 2025.

Note that the projections are of average rents including new products and
existing properties. As such, the presented rents are lower than what would be

expected for new product deliveries.

Figure 49 displays the growth scenarios for studios, 1 bedroom, 2 bedroom and
3-bedroom product types, respectively. Note that these are projections of
market rate rent for existing and new product types and exclude affordable

housing and rent subsidized units.

68 | Page




Figure 48: Average Asking Rent per Square Foot (Studio - Market Figure 50: Average Asking Rent per Square Foot (2 Bedroom -

Rate) Market Rate)
$2.50 $2.00
$1.90
$2.30 $1.80
$1.70
$2.10 $1.60
$1.90 $1.50 W
$1.40
$1_70 $1.3O
$1.20
=T M = M AN A N = N A N = O " N " O 4 N - M
000 do0ddododdoddgoddaogadagodddaadd D988 58822R88A88x338K8
R R R e I R N I NRRRRRRVSIRSIRRRRRIINRRSR
O O O O O 0O 0O OO0 0O 000 OO0 000 o OoOo o
AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN AN NN AN AN AN NN . )
e Actual e CoStar Projection —Actual = CoStar Projection
= Optimistic Scenario Low Scenario = Optimistic Scenario Low Scenario
Source: CoStar; Willdan, 2021 Source: CoStar; Willdan, 2021
Figure 49: Average Asking Rent per Square Foot (1 Bedroom - Figure 51: Average Asking Rent per Square Foot (3 Bedroom -
Market Rate) Market Rate)
$2.50 $2.20
$2.30 $2.00
$2.10 $1.80
$1.90 $1.60
70 5140 W\/J
$1.50 $1.20
— — — — — — — — — — —
5853353535353 53583383333 556585383553538853833853
NN W WONNO®OG®WOG.MOM OO A A NCNMMSS < L0 N LNYYNENMNY2ILIITITNNARITIuN
™ v o ] e AN AN NN AN AN NN AN NN NN
9299292992228 2888¢828¢% SRR RRARRIIRARIIR]RKRRRRR
e Actual e COStar Projection e A ctual e COStar PrOjeCtiOn
= Optimistic Scenario Low Scenario === Optimistic Scenario Low Scenario
Source: CoStar; Willdan, 2021 Source: CoStar; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 69 | Page




Figure 52 displays the growth scenarios for retail rents for the entire
Downtown. Under CoStar’s projection, rents are projected to reach $16 per
square foot in 2025. CoStar’s projection is less optimistic about the growth in
retail rents than housing rents, partially due to the uncertainty around brick-

and-mortar retail post-Covid.

Figure 52: Average Retail Market Rent

$18
$17
$16
$15
$14
$13
$12
S11
$10
M = N A N o MO A" N " O A MO A N o MO «—« N «d o
g0 0dJgdogogdgddgogodgdEg dddgdgooddodd
Lnu)kolxl\oooomcnood‘—imwmmq-vmm
D e S e O e e, O e O e BN e, O e AN o A o O T o A o N o N o A o A o I Y I o I o |
O OO0 0000000 gOo o oo oo o o o
NNNNNNNNNNNHNNNNNNNNN
S
o~
e— Actual e CoStar Projection
e Qptimistic Scenario Low Scenario

Source: CoStar; Willdan, 2021
Figure 53 displays the growth scenarios for Class A office rents for the entire
Downtown. Like retail, CoStar’s projection of office rents is less optimistic than

housing rents in Downtown Jacksonville. The already high Class A vacancy,

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

coupled with the work-from-home impact of Covid lead to stagnant-to -

decreasing rents in the short term, and low growth in the near term.

Figure 53: Average Class A Office Market Rent

$31
$29
$27
$25
$23
$21
$19
$17
$15

2015 Q1
2015 Q3
2016 Q1
2016 Q3
2017 Q1
2017 Q3
2018 Q1
2018 Q3
2019 Q1
2019 Q3
2020 Q1
2020 Q3

2021Q1QTD

2021 Q3
2022 Q1
2022 Q3
2023 Q1
2023 Q3
2024 Q1
2024 Q3

e Actual e COStar Projection

== Qptimistic Scenario Low Scenario

Source: CoStar; Willdan, 2021

2025Q1
2025 Q3

70 | Page




VI. PEER CITIES COMPARISONS

Infroduction

A strong downtown is defined by strength and prosperity, and serves as a
center of culture, knowledge, and innovation. Downtowns play a key role in
ensuring stability, sustainability and growth and can serve as a catalyst for
regional revivals from the impacts of economic downturns, negative social

impacts, and environmental disasters.
The cities profiled for the Jacksonville Peer City Comparison include:

=  Cincinnati, OH

= Kansas City, MO

= Louisville, KY

=  Tampa, FL

= West Palm Beach, FL

The evaluation included Downtown Jacksonville District-level measures such as:

= Demographic and lifestyle characteristics

=  Employment and wage composition

= Housing stock (number of units, ownership levels, interest rates)
= Available office space, vacancies, average rents

= Retail and service business mix (types and number of businesses)
= Traffic volume and patterns

= Tourism industry statistics such as visitor numbers and annual room
nights

The peer market comparison profiles compare various downtowns and
evaluates the efficacy and impacts of redevelopment efforts.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

/thﬂ best practices have helped
attract businesses and real estate
development that can be effectively
incorporated in Downtown
Jacksonville?

What can Jacksonville learn from
other Downtowns about how to
leverage incentives to catalyze real
estate development? /

The profiles are structured to compare and contrast both in-state and out-of-
state cities with similar characteristics, but also including cities whose
downtowns have advanced to achieve a critical mass of downtown residents
through multifamily housing offered at a variety of price points, an optimal mix
of retail/dining/entertainment, a thriving office market, and pent-up demand in

the lodging market.

The following summary tables provide a comparative snapshot of each city’s
increase in taxable value from 2012 to 2019 and a sampling of downtown
investment and development completed or underway. These findings are
further explored in an overview of leadership, best practices, and lessons

learned.

Additional research in support of these findings is provided under separate
cover in the Jacksonville Downtown Market Feasibility Study (Part 2 of 2): Peer

Cities Comparison Analysis - Detailed Background Data.

71 | Page




Table 29: Peer Cities Comparative Tax Bases, 2012-2019

2012 Taxable Value/Assessment 2019 Taxable Value/Assessment I
(Property) (Property) AICIEASE

Jacksonville, FL (Southside &
Northbank CRA Districts) 31.248B 31748 40%
Cincinnati, OH (CBD) $3.67 B $4.27 B 16%
Kansas City, MO (Downtown $0.47 B $0.84 B 81%
CID)
Louisville, KY (CBD) $1.65B $2.18 B 32%
Tampa, FL (Downtown CRA) $1.51B $2.958B 95%
West Palm Beach, FL (City
Center CRA) $1.83 B $3.14 B 72%

Source: City of Jacksonville, City of Tampa CRA, West Palm Beach CRA, Downtown Council of Kansas City, Louisville Downtown Partnership, Hamilton
County (OH) Auditor; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 72 | Page



Table 30: Downtown Investments and Projects (as of April 2021)

Completed Downtown Investments and Projects Downtown Projects Underway and Planned

$2.9 Billion in Under Construction Projects

$530 Million in Completed 2019-2020 Projects $3.15 Billion in Proposed Projects
$1.8 billion in completed projects since 2000, including: $900,000,000 in projects underway and planned, including:
. Federal Courthouse Baptist Medical Center addition
Jacksonville, FL _ _ _
Veterans Memorial Arena LaVilla transportation center
County courthouse Other transportation projects
Baptist-Wolfson medical complex Main Library Three residential projects (661 units)

Laura Street Trio (mixed-use)

Projects underway and planned include:

Significant projects completed
4100 proposed new MFUs
Tampa, FL Arris Tampa, 34-story tower, 80 residences

Water Street District

Virage Bayshore, 24-story 71 units

Heron
West Pal B h EL Clematis Streetscape One West Palm, Mixed-use 30 story project
est raim bedc
! Rosemary Square (formerly CityPlace) One Flagler Tower, 25-story office project

Significant projects completed since 2000 include:

Horseshoe Casino
Projects underway and planned include:
Great American Ballpark
.. . The Banks, future phases
Clncmnqh, OH Riverfront Park Great American Insurance Tower (office)
30 story apartment and retail project Washington Park Reno

Music Hall

The Banks riverfront (mixed use), Ph. 1

National Underground RR Freedom Center

Streetcar line (3.6 miles)

Source: Jacksonville Downtown Vision; City of Cincinnati, OH; City of Kansas City, MO; City of Louisville, KY; Tampa Downtown Partnership, FL; City of West
Palm Beach, FL; RMA; Willdan, 2022

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 73 | Page




Completed Downtown Investments and Projects

Downtown Projects Underway and Planned

Kansas City, MO

Power & Light District
Kaufman Center for the Arts
IRS Service Center
T-Mobile Center, formerly Sprint Center
Federal Reserve Bank
H&R Block HQ Building
KC Convention Center addition

Streetcar line (2.2 miles)

Underway and planned, includes:
East Village mixed use development
2.8 million square feet of office space

4,900 housing units

Lovisville, KY

Lynn Stadium
KFC Yum Center and Garage Muhammad Ali Center
Fourth Street Live (Phase 1)
Waterfront Park Place (residential)
Louisville Slugger Field

Waterfront Park expansion (30 acres)

Significant projects underway and planned include:
Museum Plaza high-rise office/housing/hotel
Nucleus Innovation Park (health sciences)
Center City mixed use development
Liberty Green housing
Downtown Arena
Riverpark Place condo/marina

East Main Office Towers

Source: Jacksonville Downtown Vision; City of Cincinnati, OH; City of Kansas City, MO; City of Louisville, KY; Tampa Downtown Partnership, FL; City of West

Palm Beach, FL; RMA; Willdan, 2022

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study 74 | Page




Leadership and Best Practices
Strong private and public-sector leadership supported by local/regional
champions of Downtown redevelopment are hallmarks of successful place-

based investment and marketing.

The Florida cities” downtowns profiled in the case study analysis are all
Community Redevelopment Areas (CRA’s) and very similar to Jacksonville’s

diverse Overlay Districts.

These CRA’s were instrumental in the redevelopment efforts of their

downtowns, collaborating with the City’s economic development agencies.

Both Tampa and West Palm Beach participate with a private economic
development agency, funded heavily by corporate participation from within
the community. While the Florida cities have the advantage of CRA structures,
the cities profiled outside of Florida also have created comparable land secured
value capture mechanisms to create dedicated funding streams for Downtown

revitalization initiatives.

Downtown development and marketing in Cincinnati and Louisville are led by
private non-profit organizations with boards of directors and memberships
composed mainly of downtown business executives and academic leaders.
These organizations include public officials in ex-officio roles, with some
operating funds provided by local government with oversight from elected

officials.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Peer Cities Downtown
Redevelopment Best Practices

Proactive and strategic approach to
redevelopment driven by product type
and location

Strategic public-private partnerships that
maximize each other’s capital and
institutional capabilities

Clarity of opportunities, expectations, and
the timing of the development process for
the development community

Developer incentives programs that
prioritize catalytic/catalytic anchor sites
and neighborhood benefit goals and
objectives

Targeted and strategic
marketing/outreach initiatives

75 | Page




Cincinnati, OH

Downtown marketing and development are led by two (2) non-profit

organizations.

Downtown Cincinnati, Inc. (DCI) is primarily responsible for marketing,
promotion, and event programming. DCl also manages the Downtown
Cincinnati Improvement District (DCID), a BID with a $3.3 million annual budget

for services.

The Center City Development Corporation (3CDC) has primary responsibility for
facilitating investment and development. 3CDC administers two development
funds including the Cincinnati New Markets Fund and the Cincinnati Equity

Fund.

These private investment funds are used for downtown redevelopment and
economic development projects in distressed neighborhoods. 3CDC'’s four
strategic goals are to create great civic spaces, create high-density mixed-use
development, preserve historic structures and streetscapes, and build diverse
mixed-income neighborhoods supported by local businesses. Since 2004 over

$843 million has been invested in these projects.

Kansas City

The Downtown Council of Kansas City (DCl) is the lead organization for
marketing and facilitating downtown development. The downtown area also
has two BID districts and organizations: the larger Downtown Community
Improvement District, encompassing a 165-block area, and the River Market

Community Improvement District, covering a 35-block area.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

The Kansas City Business Customer Service Center or “KCBizcare” opened in
2009 to provide enhanced services to the small business community. The
center was established under the City Manager’s Office to provide small
business resources including: “roadmaps” to open a business; access to city
computers (property searches, zoning information, city records, and online
application submissions); referrals to city departments, agencies and other
regulatory and assistance organizations; and staff to provide guidance

navigating the city’s licensing, permitting, and approval processes.

Louisville, KY

Louisville is building on its successes through the creation of a “Downtown
Development Team”, a strategic partnership between Louisville Forward, the
city's economic development agency, and Louisville Downtown Partnership.
Louisville’s recent announcement of the Downtown Revitalization Team is a
leading example of the city’s commitment to a pro-growth, pro-business
culture of facilitating successful downtown development with public incentives,
public infrastructure investment, and effective development and investment

outreach.

Tampa, FL

The Tampa Bay Metro Area is home to 20 corporate headquarters with over $1
billion in annual revenue, eight of which are Fortune 1000 companies.
Corporate tenants downtown, including the University of South Florida and
Tampa General Hospital, have partnered with the City of Tampa to create the
future anchor of the Water Street District. including the new USF Health

Morsani College of Medicine and Heart Institute.

76 | Page




Tampa has also invested in a multi-pronged approach to support their growing
IT industry. Tampa Bay Tech is a technology council that works to implement
strategic priorities and hold events. Tampa Bay WaVe is an IT coworking space
and accelerator, and USF Connect is a program providing workers, education,

research, and other support to IT businesses.

West Palm Beach

The West Palm Beach Downtown Development Authority (DDA) was created in
1967 as an independent special taxing district to promote and enhance a safe,

vibrant downtown for residents, businesses, and visitors through the strategic

development of economic, social, and cultural opportunities.

The City of West Palm Beach is directing resources to focus on improving their
streets and infrastructure. Ocwen Financial Corporation and American Sugar
Refining influence local and state politics considerably with their active

participation in economic development activities.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Peer Cities Comparisons: Lessons Learned
The peer cities comparison provides a quantitative assessment of key
downtown revitalization metrics for evaluation in future Downtown

Jacksonville redevelopment planning and policy initiatives.

It is important, however, to evaluate Jacksonville’s future opportunities beyond
guantitative comparisons of metrics and tactical-level incentive programs. To
foster mixed-use development and historic adaptive reuse, public stakeholders
should integrate other factors and strategic approaches to foster catalytic

private real estate development activity.

Each of the peer cities analyzed illustrates how the tactical combination of
leadership, strategy, clarity, strong strategic partnerships, and creativity serves

to attract real estate investment and development.

77 | Page




VIl. DOWNTOWN JACKSONVILLE
INCENTIVES ANALYSIS

Introduction

The following analysis of incentives available for real estate development or
redevelopment in Downtown Jacksonville is provided as a baseline assessment
of the DIA incentives program performance against 2014 goals according to the
performance measures established in the CRAs’ Business Investment and

Development Strategy.

To undertake this assessment, the DIA provided a summary overview of the
incentives program’s structural changes since 2014. Performance measures
data was collected from the DIA, DVI, the City of Jacksonville, CoStar, and ESRI

for 2020 (or the most recent year available).

The DIA incentives program’s performance is evaluated by comparing the net
change between 2014 and 2020 against the 2021 target to determine if the
indicator has remained the same or is increasing/decreasing according to the

goals and objectives established by the BID strategy.

Incentive Performance
Benchmarking against these overarching Performance Measures categories for
Downtown inform evaluation of the effectiveness of the DIA’s incentive

programs.

Table 31: DIA/COJ Developer Incentives, 2021

Primary Developer Incentive Programs:

DIA Market Rate Multi-Family Housing REV Grant

Retail Enhancement Grant Program

FAB-REP (Subset of Retail Enhancement Grant) — New Program- Targeted Retail
Activation: Food & Beverage Establishments

Storefront Facade Grant

Sidewalk Enhancement Grant (Subset of FAB-REP Program) — New Program

Downtown Preservation and Revitalization Program (DPRP) — New Program

Commercial Revitalization Program (CRP)

DIA Strategic Housing Area Designation

DIA Multi-Family Housing REV Grant

COJ Recapture Enhanced Value Grant (REV)

Other COJ/OED/State of Florida or Federal Programs

Low-Volume Incentives

The Downtown Historic Preservation and Revitalization Trust Fund (Scheduled to
sunset 1/20/2021)

Sale-Leaseback Incentive

DIA — Downtown Residential Rental Incentive Program — “Live, Work, & Play
Downtown”

DIA Downtown Down-Payment Assistance Program (DPA)

Source: DIA; Willdan, 2021

78 | Page




Downtown Investment Authority-Administered
Incentive Programs

Overview

The DIA identified six primary developer incentive programs that target
revitalization and growth in downtown Jacksonville. Several of these programs
are new and others are modified or have evolved from prior incentive

programs. Following is an overview of the DIA’s core programs as of April 2021.

DIA Market Rate Multi-Family Housing REV Grant
Modeled after the Office of Economic Development (OED) REV Grant, this is a
new incentive to encourage Downtown multifamily development of projects

with a minimum of 25 units.

There are other variations of the REV Grant Program available in downtown. In
general, the REV Grant Program is designed to attract private capital
investment and redevelopment to project sites. They can apply to various types
of development (office, multifamily) and apply to standard or economically
distressed areas. Census tract areas are deemed economically distressed if

either of the conditions applies:

= Unemployment is 125 percent of Duval County’s unemployment rate.

Duval County’s current unemployment rate is 8.6 percent, rendering the

2 City of Jacksonville, Office of Economic Development, Public Investment Policy, June
2016 (administratively updated November 2019).

unemployment threshold to be 10.75% to be considered economically

distressed 2

=  Household income is equal or less than 60 percent of Duval County’s
median household income. Current HH income is $49,196, rendering the

household income threshold to be $29,517

Areas are considered “Level One” if one criterium is met and “Level Two” if
both criteria are met. The classification of being in an “economically
distressed” area and the specific level impacts the maximum amount of

funding.

Downtown Retail Enhancement Grant Program

Launched in 2014, this program was designed to create and then sustain
momentum for development of restaurant, retail, and creative office space in
the Northbank Core Retail Enhancement Area. The program is considered
fundamentally important to the success of downtown. In 2019 the program

was expanded to incorporate the Southbank Core Retail Enhancement Area.

This primary umbrella grant serves as an entry point for targeted retail
incentives by location of use (FAB-REP and Sidewalk Enhancement Programs).

The DIA evaluates this program annually to refine the guidelines.

79 | Page




Food and Beverage Retail Enhancement Program (FAB-REP)

The Downtown Investment Authority’s Targeted Food and Beverage Retail
Enhancement Program (FAB-REP) was created to cluster restaurants and bars
within two distinct, walkable areas of the Downtown Central Core:

Laura/Hogan Street Corridor and The Elbow Entertainment District Corridor

As a subset and enhanced/additional incentive to the Retail Enhancement
Grant Program, the FAB-REP program specifically focuses on recruiting and
improving food and beverage establishments with a priority for full-service

restaurants in the downtown target areas.

As of 2020, the program incentivizes investment through five-year forgivable
loans to be scaled by type of business. Eligibility requirements include
dedicated hours of operation, service type, size and locations with ground-level

access and street visibility.

Storefront Fagcade Grant
This DIA grant program aims to activate and improve the streetscape in
Downtown’s Historic District by funding physical improvements to the exterior

of primarily ground level storefronts.

Sidewalk Enhancement Grant

This grant is an additional subset and enhanced/additional incentive to the
baseline Retail Enhancement Grant Program, offered primarily to recipients of
the FAB-REP grant. This grant provides up to $15,000 to spur the creation of
outdoor spaces that enhance the sidewalk experience, such as tables, chairs,

and other furniture, lighting, greenery, umbrellas, and awnings.

Downtown Preservation and Revitalization Program (DPRP)

The goal of the Downtown Preservation and Revitalization Program (the
“DPRP”) is to foster the preservation and revitalization of unoccupied,
underutilized, historic, and/or qualified non-historic buildings located in
downtown Jacksonville. The program offers two types of incentive
disbursements (loan and forgivable loan) across three sub programs. This
program’s minimum investment threshold for historic projects is $100,000,
while non-historic projects must address code compliance issues. Projects must

also address two downtown Community Redevelopment Area Goals:

Redevelopment Goal No. 1: Reinforce Downtown as the City’s unique
epicenter for business, history, culture, education, and entertainment. Program
specific emphasis will be placed on retail activity, food and beverage
establishments, culture, and entertainment including the activation of open

spaces.

Redevelopment Goal No. 2: Increase rental and owner-occupied housing
downtown, targeting key demographic groups seeking a more urban lifestyle.
Building on the success of growth in multifamily housing across the downtown
corridor, providing additional housing units in historic buildings contributes to
the unique residential atmosphere of our City and the opportunity to maximize

Jacksonville’s historic attributes.

The DPRP program targets projects that demonstrate of the highest level of
interest and benefits for residents and visitors to the City, and the greatest
impact on enhancing demand for surrounding properties, thus stimulating

additional investment in development/redevelopment activity.

80 | Page




Table 32: City of Jacksonville, FL Developer Incentives Programs

Incentive
Structural

Elements

DIA Market Rate Multi-

Family Housing REV
Grant

Downtown Retail
Enhancement Grant
Program

FAB-REP

DIA Storefront
Facade Grant

Sidewalk
Enhancement
Grant

Downtown
Preservation and
Revitalization

Target
Sectors:
Office, Retail,
Residential,
Hotel

Multifamily Residential

Retailers, restaurants, and
creative office spaces

Food and beverage
establishments

Retail, restaurants

Food and beverage
establishments

Program (DPRP) 3

Unoccupied,
underutilized, and/or
deteriorating
historic, and qualified
non-historic,
buildings

Target Area

Downtown

Northbank Core Retail
Enhancement Area

Southside Core Retail
Enhancement Area

The Elbow

Logan & Laura
Districts

Targeted street
frontages

Downtown
Jacksonville
Historic District

The Elbow

Logan & Laura
Districts

Targeted street
frontages

DIA Boundary

Eligibility
Requirements

25 units or more

Costs related to
renovating/preparing commercial
space or retaining/ recruiting
businesses (operations)

Businesses or property owners
eligible

Hours of operation
Tiers of qualification
Size

Ground level access /
street visibility

Street frontage on
public street

Ground floor

Costs related to
exterior physical
improvements

Recipient of FAB-REP
grant (full amount)

QOutdoor dining
materials, furniture,
décor

Plan to protect assets
for 5 years

Meet CRA and DIA
goals and objectives

Demonstrated prior
successful
experience

3 The DPRP includes three different incentive components with varied award maximums and payment methods. The three components are as follows: Historic Preservation Restoration and
Rehabilitation Forgivable Loan (HPRR Forgivable Loan), Code Compliance Renovations Forgivable Loan (CCR Forgivable Loan), and DPRP Deferred Principal Loan (DPRRP DPL, for purposes

of this chart)

81 | Page




Incentive

Structural
Elements

DIA Market Rate Multi-
Family Housing REV

Downtown Retail
Enhancement Grant
Program

FAB-REP

DIA Storefront
Facade Grant

Sidewalk
Enhancement

Downtown
Preservation and
Revitalization
Program (DPRP) 3

Form of
Incentive
(Cash, TIF, Tax
Credit, Loan)

Real Estate Tax Recovery

Recoverable Grant (amortized
over 5 years)

Forgivable Loan (5-
year term)

Grant or
Forgivable Loan

Forgivable Loan (5-
year term)

Forgivable Loan
(HPRR and CCR)

Loan (DPRP DPL)

Min: 25% of eligible

Min: 25% of eligible

assets, SHA, green space
and amenities, mixture of
uses

Type 3 Max $40/sf
up to $100,000

Bonus: +$20/psf if
historic landmark

$75,000

Min/Max i t i t
Developer 25 units Min: $10,000 |mpr9vemen >or Not Applicable |mpr9vemen > or Not Applicable
equivalent rent equivalent rent
Investment concession concession
Min: $100,000
Max: 50% of build- HPRR Max: 20 — 75%
Max: Up to 75% of out costs of cost pending type
City/County portion of Type 1 Max: $65/sf, 80% of eligible of work, up to 30% of
incremental increase in up to $400,000 $30 / SF of facade outdoor TDC4
Min/Max taxes over 15 years Max: $20 / leased or occupied SF, improvements, not ,
Incentive noSt to/exceed 50% of trc))tal Type 2 Max: 550/sf Max: 50% of to exceed $15,000 CCR Max: 75% of
TBD Amount based on ; up $200,000 eligible costs / eligible costs, up to
Value maximizing underutilized construction cost If not eligible for 25% of TDC (no

FAB-REP, then max
$5,000

historic status) or
30% of TDC (if
historic)

DPRP DPL Max: 20%
of TDC

4 Total Development Cost (TDC)

82 | Page




Incentive
Structural
Elements

DIA Market Rate Multi-
Family Housing REV

Downtown Retail
Enhancement Grant
Program

FAB-REP

DIA Storefront
Facade Grant

Sidewalk
Enhancement

Downtown
Preservation and
Revitalization

Program (DPRP) 3

DPRP DPL Min: >
20%o0f gap funding5.

Link to
Incentive
Program
Application

https://www.coj.net/departme

nts/office-of-economic-
development/docs/public-
investment/final pip-06-28-
2016 11-21-
2019 update ada.aspx

https://dia.coj.net/development/Com

mercial-Incentives/Retail-
Enhancement-Grant-Program

https://dia.coj.net/D
oing-Business-With-
Us/Doing-Business-
With-
DIA/Commercial-
Incentives/Food-
Beverage-
Program/DIA_FAB-
REP-
Application_FINAL-
(2).aspx

https://dia.coj.net/D
oing-Business-With-
Us/Doing-Business-
With-
DIA/Commercial-
Incentives/Storefront
-Facade-Grant-
Program

https://dia.coj.net/D
oing-Business-With-
Us/Doing-Business-
With-
DIA/Commercial-
Incentives/Sidewalk-
Enhancement-
Forgivable-
Loan/Sidewalk-
Enhancement-Grant-
Standalone_FINAL.as
px

https://dia.coj.net/D
oing-Business-With-
Us/Doing-Business-
With-
DIA/Commercial-
Incentives/Downtow
n-Preservation-
Revitalization-
Program/2020-527-
Revised-Exhibit-1-
(DPRP-Guidelines)-
as-Ap.aspx

> The DPRP Deferred Principal Loan amount shall be determined by the gross funding gap found in the Total Development Costs (TDC) with a requirement that the amount will be not less
than 20% of gap funding requirement in any development plan where developer equity (net of developer fee) is less than 25% of TDC. Source

83 | Page



https://www.coj.net/departments/office-of-economic-development/docs/public-investment/final_pip-06-28-2016_11-21-2019_update_ada.aspx
https://www.coj.net/departments/office-of-economic-development/docs/public-investment/final_pip-06-28-2016_11-21-2019_update_ada.aspx
https://www.coj.net/departments/office-of-economic-development/docs/public-investment/final_pip-06-28-2016_11-21-2019_update_ada.aspx
https://www.coj.net/departments/office-of-economic-development/docs/public-investment/final_pip-06-28-2016_11-21-2019_update_ada.aspx
https://www.coj.net/departments/office-of-economic-development/docs/public-investment/final_pip-06-28-2016_11-21-2019_update_ada.aspx
https://www.coj.net/departments/office-of-economic-development/docs/public-investment/final_pip-06-28-2016_11-21-2019_update_ada.aspx
https://dia.coj.net/development/Commercial-Incentives/Retail-Enhancement-Grant-Program
https://dia.coj.net/development/Commercial-Incentives/Retail-Enhancement-Grant-Program
https://dia.coj.net/development/Commercial-Incentives/Retail-Enhancement-Grant-Program
https://dia.coj.net/Doing-Business-With-Us/Doing-Business-With-DIA/Commercial-Incentives/Storefront-Facade-Grant-Program
https://dia.coj.net/Doing-Business-With-Us/Doing-Business-With-DIA/Commercial-Incentives/Storefront-Facade-Grant-Program
https://dia.coj.net/Doing-Business-With-Us/Doing-Business-With-DIA/Commercial-Incentives/Storefront-Facade-Grant-Program
https://dia.coj.net/Doing-Business-With-Us/Doing-Business-With-DIA/Commercial-Incentives/Storefront-Facade-Grant-Program
https://dia.coj.net/Doing-Business-With-Us/Doing-Business-With-DIA/Commercial-Incentives/Storefront-Facade-Grant-Program
https://dia.coj.net/Doing-Business-With-Us/Doing-Business-With-DIA/Commercial-Incentives/Storefront-Facade-Grant-Program
https://dia.coj.net/Doing-Business-With-Us/Doing-Business-With-DIA/Commercial-Incentives/Storefront-Facade-Grant-Program
https://dia.coj.net/Doing-Business-With-Us/Doing-Business-With-DIA/Commercial-Incentives/Storefront-Facade-Grant-Program
https://dia.coj.net/Doing-Business-With-Us/Doing-Business-With-DIA/Commercial-Incentives/Downtown-Preservation-Revitalization-Program/2020-527-Revised-Exhibit-1-(DPRP-Guidelines)-as-Ap.aspx

Incentive
Structural
Elements

DIA Market Rate Multi-

Family Housing REV
Grant

Downtown Retail
Enhancement Grant
Program

FAB-REP

DIA Storefront
Facade Grant

Sidewalk
Enhancement
Grant

Downtown
Preservation and
Revitalization
Program (DPRP) 3

Other Notes

Quarterly compliance and
monitoring

Modeled after OED Rev
Grant Incentive

Thorough and clear evaluation
and application elements

Consistent with the Downtown
Master Plan and the Downtown
Overlay Zone

In form of expenditure
reimbursement

New Program

Subset of Retail
Enhancement Grant

Payable upon
completion

Limits per tier

Tiers prioritize full-
service, hours etc.

Physical
improvements

5-year compliance
and monitoring
period

New Program

Type of FAB-REP
funding within Retail
Enhancement Grant

Demonstrate gap
financing need if > $1
million
All other DIA
programs may not

exceed 10%of
funding

Source: City of Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority; DVI; Willdan, 2021

84 | Page




Other City of Jacksonville Incentive Programs " Capital Investment Tax Credit (CITC)

Overview = High Impact Performance Incentive Grant (HIPI)

Additional City of Jacksonville and Office of Economic Development, State of »  Qualified Target Industry Tax Refund (QTI)

Florida and other federal programs are available to incentive development
=  State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP)
downtown Jacksonville.6

=  State Apartment Incentive Loan Program (SAIL)
City of Jacksonville and Office of Economic Development

Incentives: *  Mortgage Revenue Bonds for Rental Housing

= COJ Industrial Revenue Bonds (IRB) I | -
= nnovation Incentive Program

= COJ Tax Increment District (TID) Infrastructure Development
= Qualified Defense & Space Contractor Tax Refund (QDSC)

= COJ Business Infrastructure Grant/Loan (BIG) . . .
= Sales and Tax Use Exemptions on Machinery and Equipment

= (COJ Large Scale Economic Development Fund
= Sales Tax Exemption on Electricity Used in Manufacturing Process

COJ Small Business Development Initiative (SBDI) .
Federal Development Incentives

Duval County Development Incentives = Opportunity Zones

Many of the City of Jacksonville programs also apply to County-wide or are
=  Work Opportunity Tax Credit (WOTC)

enabled by the County.

=  New Markets Tax Credits
State of Florida Development Incentives

*  Florida Flex grant Programs (FKA: Quick Response Training Program) *  Historic Rehabilitation Tax Credit

= Quick Action Closing Fund =  Low-Income Housing Tax Credit Program (LIHTC)

=  Economic Development Transportation Fund (EDFT)

6 https://investdtjax.com/tools-resources/incentives/

85 | Page




: Other City of Jacksonville, FL Developer Incentives Programs

Program Structural

Characteristics

DIA Commercial
Revitalization Program
(CRP)

DIA Strategic Housing Area
Designation

DIA Multifamily Housing REV
Grant

COJ Recapture Enhanced
Value Grant (REV)

Target Sector
(Office, Retail,
Residential, Hotel)

Office or retail space leases

Residential

Multifamily Residential (workforce
housing and mixed-income affordable)

Targeted industry clusters

Target Area

Downtown Jacksonville

Defined Strategic Housing Areas (SHAs)
within:

Northbank CRA
Southside CRA

Northbank CRA
Southside CRA

Downtown

Form of Incentive
(Cash, TIF, Tax

Real Estate Tax Recovery

DIA designation of SHA enables
eligibility for bonus or additional

Real Estate Tax Recovery (Grant)

Tax Recovery Grant

A (Grant) ) ;
Credit, Loan) incentives
Min/Max Developer Min: Ranges from $5 / sf to Max: 75% of the incremental increase | Min:10 new full-time jobs (wages >
Investment P $35 / sf pending nature and n/a of City/County taxes over 15-year 100% FL avg wage)
term of lease period Min: $3 million
Max: Lesser of:
Max: Up to 75% of City/County
75% of tax liability, and incremental tax increase 50% of increment, up to 10 years
Min/Max Incentive $2.50/ sf (2-year phase n/a TBD by # units total and # of workforce Project 100+ new jobs and $10+
Valuve out) units million capital investment, eligible
Grant term, depending on for more
lease term
Tenant not received CRP o
Ellalbilit for previous space Provide workforce housing, or Maintain jobs
igioility expansion exemption
Requirements (exp ption) n/a Provide mixed-income affordable Target Industry

Not available for move
within downtown

housing

86 | Page




Program Structural
Characteristics

DIA Commercial
Revitalization Program

DIA Strategic Housing Area
Designation

DIA Multifamily Housing REV

COJ Recapture Enhanced
Value Grant (REV)

Not eligible for space with
outstanding Retail
Enhancement Program
grant

If mixed income, must leverage at least
1 other affordable housing financing
method

Link to Incentive

Program Application

https.//dia.coj.net/develop
ment/Commercial-
Incentives/Commercial-
Revitalization-Program-
(CRP)

https://dia.coj.net/development/Resid
ential-Incentives/Strategic-Housing-
Area-Designation

https://dia.coj.net/development/Resid
ential-Incentives/Multi-Family-Housing-
REV-Grant

https://www.coj.net/departments/o
ffice-of-economic-
development/docs/public-
investment/final_pip-06-28-
2016 _11-21-
2019 _update_ada.aspx

Other Notes

Application filed before
lease signed

Shall continue as needed

Modeled after OED REV grant
Clear monitoring and reporting process

Applications above/below 75% of tax
increment are reviewed by DIA
staff/board for a potential resolution

Paid annually after completed

May be used to fund City match to
state programs, if required

Sources: City of Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority, Willdan, 2020.

Other City of Jacksonville Incentive Programs

Overview

As the City of Jacksonville and the DIA continue to adapt and evolve in an
every-changing downtown market, programs are actively reviewed for
continuation. Since the adoption of the 2014 CRA Business Investment and
Development Plan, the DIA reports that four programs are either sunsetting,

dormant or underfunded: DIA Downtown Preservation and Revitalization Trust

Fund; DIA Sales-Leaseback Incentive; DIA — Downtown Residential Rental

($100,000+) projects.

Incentive Program; and the DIA Downtown Down-Payment Assistance Program

(DPA).

Among these four, the unfunded Downtown Preservation and Revitalization
Trust Fund that targets projects requesting less than $100,000, was
conceptually replaced by DIA’s previously detailed Downtown Preservation and

Revitalization Program incentive program in 2020 that emphasizes larger

87 | Page



https://dia.coj.net/development/Commercial-Incentives/Commercial-Revitalization-Program-(CRP)
https://dia.coj.net/development/Commercial-Incentives/Commercial-Revitalization-Program-(CRP)
https://dia.coj.net/development/Commercial-Incentives/Commercial-Revitalization-Program-(CRP)
https://dia.coj.net/development/Commercial-Incentives/Commercial-Revitalization-Program-(CRP)
https://dia.coj.net/development/Commercial-Incentives/Commercial-Revitalization-Program-(CRP)
https://www.coj.net/departments/office-of-economic-development/docs/public-investment/final_pip-06-28-2016_11-21-2019_update_ada.aspx
https://www.coj.net/departments/office-of-economic-development/docs/public-investment/final_pip-06-28-2016_11-21-2019_update_ada.aspx
https://www.coj.net/departments/office-of-economic-development/docs/public-investment/final_pip-06-28-2016_11-21-2019_update_ada.aspx
https://www.coj.net/departments/office-of-economic-development/docs/public-investment/final_pip-06-28-2016_11-21-2019_update_ada.aspx
https://www.coj.net/departments/office-of-economic-development/docs/public-investment/final_pip-06-28-2016_11-21-2019_update_ada.aspx
https://www.coj.net/departments/office-of-economic-development/docs/public-investment/final_pip-06-28-2016_11-21-2019_update_ada.aspx

Table 33: City of Jacksonville, Other Developer Incentives Programs, 2021

Program Structural

Characteristics

DIA Downtown Preservation
and Revitalization Trust Fund

DIA Sales-Leaseback
Incentive

DIA - Downtown
Residential Rental
Incentive Program

DIA Downtown Down-
Payment Assistance
Program (DPA)

Target Sector

Unoccupied, underutilized, and/or

Primary residences (home

Southside CRA

(Office, Retail, deteriorating historic, and qualified Office Primary residence (rental) ownership)
Residential, Hotel) non-historic, buildings W P

Northbank CRA Northbank CRA
Target Area Downtown DIA boundaries Downtown

Southside CRA

Form of Incentive
(Cash, TIF, Tax

Grant (forgiven with claw-back in
event of sale, transfer, or default)

Payment to development build-
to-suite facility or renovated

Subsidy in form of rental
voucher

0% lien mortgage

Incentive Value

eligible costs pending the type of
work, up to $100,000

market rent

Renter SHA bonus = +550

Property Manager: receives
105% of voucher value

Credit, Loan) existing
Min/Max Property manager receives
. . voucher from tenant and o eo '
Developer See program guideline details n/a collects reimbursement Min: 2.5% of purchase price
Investment quarterly in arrears from DIA
Renter Value: $200 / month for
3 years total = $7,200

. o 9 Renter downtown workforce

Min/Max Max: Range of 20% to 75% of DIA leases back space for below bonus = +$50 Max: 10% of purchase price, up

to $20,000

Eligibility
Requirements

Landmark designation
Downtown location

Exterior and interior
restoration/rehab

Code compliance work

n/a

HH incomes < 150% AMI
(566,450 for 1 person HH)

Not lived in downtown in past 2
years

HH incomes < 150% AMI
(566,450 for 1 person HH)

88 | Page




Program Structural

Characteristics

DIA Downtown Preservation
and Revitalization Trust Fund

DIA Sales-Leaseback
Incentive

DIA - Downtown
Residential Rental
Incentive Program

Employed in Northbank or
Southside CRA areas if seeking
the workforce bonus

DIA Downtown Down-
Payment Assistance
Program (DPA)

Link to Incentive
Program
Application

https://dia.coj.net/Doing-Business-
With-Us/Doing-Business-With-
DIA/Downtown-Historic-
Preservation-and-
Revitalization/2020-527-Exhibit-2-
(Revised-HPRTF-Guidelines)-as-
A.aspx

https.//dia.coj.net/development,

Commercial-Incentives/Sale-
Leaseback-Incentive

https.//dia.coj.net/development,

Residential-
Incentives/Downtown-
Residential-Rental-Incentive-

Program

https://dia.coj.net/development,

Residential-Incentives/Down-
Payment-Assistance-Program-
DPA

Other Notes

Paid upon completion of individual
improvements

Forgiven 20% annually over 5 years

DIA sells building to investor
above construction cost, lease
back the space, issues sublease

to employer

Due on sale, transfer,
refinancing, or securing other
debt

Sources: City of Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority; RMA; Willdan, 2020

89 | Page




DIA Incentives Awards (2016-2020)

Measuring the effectiveness of the DIA’s incentives programs requires analysis
of market response to development opportunities by District and by type of

incentive.

It is important to note that the performance of the DIA’s core incentives
programs should be considered in the context of limiting factors. First, the DIA
responds to all incentive program applications submitted. Due to the Covid-19
pandemic, there has been no opportunity to launch a targeted

development/investment campaign at the neighborhood level.

Furthermore, the Storefront Facade Grant, FAB-REP Targeted Retail Activation,
and Sidewalk Enhancement Programs were adopted by the DIA/COJ in July
2020 at the height of the Covid-19 pandemic and development projects have in
large part been put on hold. Accordingly, it is too early to make a definitive

determination of these programs’ performance.

According to data provided by the DIA and illustrated in Figure 54, the REV
Grant Program generated the greatest level of funding activity since 2016. This
program was primarily utilized in the Brooklyn, Southbank and Sports and
Entertainment Districts. Note that the data is reporting for awarded incentives,
some of which are not yet dispersed, so comparison to specific development

activity is not possible.

Non-program funds and the Market Rate Multi-Family REV Grant Program
follow as the second highest award values, but with a wider geographic reach
across Brooklyn, Central Core, LaVilla, Southbank, and the Sports and

Entertainment Districts.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Figure 54: DIA Incentives Activity (2016-2020)

Total Incentives Awarded Since
2016!
$100,000,000
$90,000,000
$80,000,000
$70,000,000
$60,000,000
$50,000,000
$40,000,000
$30,000,000
$20,000,000

$10,000,000 _
N [ ] -

Brooklyn Central Core LaVilla Southbank Sports &
Entertainment

B Commercial Revitalization Grant FAB-REP Forgivable Loan

B HPTF Grant Market Rate Multi-Family REV Grant

B Multi-Family REV Grant B Non-program

QT M Retail Enhancement Program

W REV Grant B Storefront Fagade Grant

1Includes incentives awarded but not yet dispersed; excludes the Historic Preservation &
Revitalization Program adopted in October 2020.

Source: DIA; Willdan, 2021

0| Page



Incentive Performance

Ongoing monitoring of and reporting on established DIA Performance
Measures provides a framework for evaluation of the effectiveness of the DIA’s
incentive programs. All figures below are reported for 2013 and 2020, and then
compared against the 2021 target to allow for consistency in complete data

sets for the most recent data available.

The performance results are categorized as meeting or exceeding performance

targets or requires further monitoring and evaluation.

meets or exceeds performance

targets

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Employment: Downtown employment increased from 48,607 jobs in 2013 to
56,972 in 2020, indicating a net change of 8,363 and substantially exceeding
the 2020 goal of 53,953. Q

Residents: Growth in Downtown residents is on pace to meet the 2021
performance goal, a net increase of 2,407 persons. The current total is 233
residents less than the 2021 target — a figure anticipated to be exceeded

following occupancy of housing units currently under construction. 0

Multifamily Units: as a key goal for the DIA’s mission to catalyze Downtown
development, 1,953 new multifamily units were constructed since 2013, a
figure currently 164 units less than the 2021 target that will be exceeded with

units currently under construction. 0

Business Establishments: Downtown Jacksonville attracted 1,265 new

businesses since 2013 — 1,144 businesses more than the target. Q

Retail Space Vacancy: The decrease in retail vacancy from 37% to 6% far
exceeds the target of 33% vacancy. While the vacancy rate is reportedly low
(and in line with pent up demand), the Downtown continues to experience
product gaps across all subsector targets including apparel, dining, grocery,

pharmacy, and other specialty/neighborhood-serving amenities.

1 | Page



Increased Tax Value: The 2013 total taxable value of $1,277.5 million
increased to $1,864.3 in 2020, resulting in a net increase of $586.8 million. The
2021 performance measure target value is $2,269.9 million, or a net increase
of $992.4 million from the 2013 baseline. As of Q3 2021, the City of
Jacksonville reports total taxable value of $1,912.9 million (approximately
$357.0 million less than the 2021 target value). Pipeline development is
expected to meet or exceed the 2021 taxable value target by 2022. Q

Outdoor Seating Establishments: DVI verified a count of 38 outdoor

dining establishments, exceeding the 2021 target of 25 establishments. Q

Tourism Indicators: data collected by Visit Jax for special events, attendance
at special events, and annual visitors is not available due to the mandatory
guarantine restrictions in place during 2020. These figures are excluded to
allow for consistency in future projections and may be updated/normalized

when the data is available. I

Hotel Occupancy: A clear indicator of the impact of Covid-19 on the
tourism industry is reflected by decline in hotel occupancy from 61% in 2013 to
40% in 2020 (less than the target rate of 67% that would indicate demand for

new hotel product). /!

Inactive COJ Assets (Acres): A positive indicator of the effectiveness of
the DIA’s redevelopment policies is the reduction of 55 acres of inactive COJ

land assets from 153 acres to 98 acres (only three acres less than the target of

95 acres). 0

The following table provides the detailed data and sources supporting these

findings.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Figure 55: Example of Pipeline Development - Laura Street Trio
Developer Rendering, 2021

92 | Page



Table 34: DIA Incentive Program Assessment — Performance Measures Against Goals (2014 to 2020)

e s 2013 Baseline 2021 Target 2020 Update 2013-2020 550 pesyits 2020 Data Source
Measures Performance Net Change
1 Employment 48,607 53,953 56,972 8,365 0 ESRI
2 Residents 3,730 6,370 6,137 2,407 Q T Vision State of
o . . DT Vision State of
3 Multifamily Units 1,898 4,015 3,851 1,953 Q vsion State o
4  Business Establishments 1,100 1,221 2,365 1,265 9 ESR
5 Retail Space Vacancy 37% 33% 6% -31% 0 CoStar
6 Increased Tax Value $1,277,542,543 | $2,269,894,145 | 1,864,323,412 | $586,780,869 Q DIA/COJ
Ovutdoor Seating
7 . 17 25 38 21 DT Vision
Establishments 0
data not
i 2 Visit JAX
8  Special Events 611 730 o ble n/a /N isi
Attendance at Special data not
| Visit JAX
9 Eventss 1,254,550 1,601,652 bl n/a /N isi
10 Annual Visitors* 9,186,487 9,704,180 deta not n/a /N Visit JAX
11 Hotel Occupancy 61% 67% 40% -21% /N STR/Visit JAX
DIA/Downtown City
12 Inactive COJ Assets (Acres) 153 95 98 -55 0 Owned Parcels
Database

* Includes Townhomes.

24 Data not collected due to impact of mandated Covid-19 pandemic quarantine/social distancing guidelines on special events.

Source: DIA; City of Jacksonville; DVI; Visit Jax; CoStar; STR; Willdan, 2021

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

93| Page



VIII. DOWNTOWN JACKSONVILLE
MARKET FEASIBILITY CONCLUSIONS

As Downtown Jacksonville emerges from the Covid-19 pandemic, there is an
opportunity for innovation and expanded public private partnerships. Building
partnerships with the stakeholders and groups that impact growth, including
investor/developers, businesses of all sizes, historic preservationists,
organizations advancing technology, and natural resource advocates will

continue to serve the area in forward thinking ways.

After decades of planning, Jacksonville has achieved the momentum necessary
to advance increased access for the public to the St. Johns River to ensure it is
physically and visually accessible. Investment and redevelopment initiatives
leveraging this natural asset are cornerstones of opportunity and catalytic

revitalization for the Downtown Jacksonville districts.

However, the underlying economic drivers related to the built environment
that impact the feasibility of implementing plans and projects in Downtown
Jacksonville are complex. According to real estate market data collection
interviews, recent headlines announcing pending approvals and incentives for
multiple mixed-use projects are a positive signal to developers looking to invest

in Downtown Jacksonville.

Care must be taken to manage the message going forward to stress the assets,
capital, and political consensus that Downtown Jacksonville has to offer to the

development community.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Current incentives for smaller projects, using Tax Increment District funds, are
adequate and used frequently, a positive sign for those programs. The
subjectivity of larger projects, often requiring approval by Jacksonville City
Council and funding through the City’s General Fund, require additional

approvals and associated scrutiny by elected officials, and the public in general.

“Celebrate the river, through design, access,
connectivity and placemaking.”

- Lori Boyer, CEO, Jacksonville Downtown Investment
Authority

The Downtown Investment Authority continues to
expand investment and development activity by
refocusing the incentive programs to attract an
optimal mix of multifamily residential, retail, office,
and diverse hospitality according to the scale and
character of each District.

All projects are envisioned to have access to
ample public space and the S§t. John's River, both
visually and physically.

This approach to targeting a variety of mixed-use
projects embraces art and culture, spiritual and
secular activities, sports and entertainment,
technology, greenspace, and associated activities
that promote urban health and wellness.

These are the ingredients for livability, creativity,
and inclusive growth as a city.

94 | Page



Underwriting standards must be well-defined, with the final decision the result
of careful vetting and strict adherence to established guidelines to

demonstrate the project supports CRA goals and performance measures.

The most significant barrier to new multifamily development is the rising cost
of construction. High labor costs, increasing fuel costs, and rapidly rising
material costs are fundamental issues impacting development economics.
Regardless of the opportunities in Downtown Jacksonville, competition from
suburban areas and other markets will not disappear when yields are strong,

land is more available, and total capital requirements are often much lower.

Despite success in the growth of the residential population in Downtown
Jacksonville, the lack of grocery and pharmacy options within walking distance,
and low population density may limit continued growth going forward.
Available land that is affordable for development and regulations that slow
development timelines have also been of concern for the Downtown

Jacksonville development community.

Education facilities for primary school children remains a need in Downtown
Jacksonville, and there are some that view apartment living in urban areas less
favorably for children and families due to misperceptions of higher crime rates

in these areas.

These are common, but solvable, development barriers encountered across
the country and in the reviewed comparable cities. Many are already
recognized within the current array of incentive opportunities or found in

discussions of proposed incentive programs.

Population density, national chain site selection requirements (income,
educational attainment), and lack of opportunity for clustering brands are all

factors that impact the retail market.

However, to understand retail in Downtown Jacksonville, the challenges
affecting the industry must be understood. They include the increasing cost of
channel development and messaging customers, the widening application of
ecommerce, and efficiency challenges inherent to bricks-and-mortar retail
locations — challenges that existed prior to, and then significantly exacerbated

by, the Covid pandemic.

One of the constraints also facing retailers in Downtown Jacksonville today is a
lack of critical mass necessary to promote the customer experience. Providing
the quantity of options akin to St. Johns Town Center is difficult in a downtown
setting, where rent levels and market exposure rates do not support
operational viability, and the fragmented nature of ownership increase the

challenges of developing a cohesive strategy.

Availability of capital is an increasing challenge for retail development as failure
rates have risen along with ecommerce disruption. The pandemic and the
inherently challenging business model for storefront retail have only

heightened the level of scrutiny by the leading markets.

The challenging combination of Class BC office obsolescence, high vacancy
rates, parking costs, competitive supply closer to the Southside office parks and

the beaches area, and vagrancy are obstacles for downtown office attraction.

Page



These constraints are typical in central business districts and, as stated
previously, redevelopment of older buildings is complicated and expensive.
Continued efforts to incentivize historic renovations such as several that are

under consideration or have been funded recently are highly effective. The

Barnett Bank building and the proposed Laura Street Trio projects are excellent

examples of how such programs contribute to revitalization of urban settings.

Parking and transportation issues are significant considerations that must be
addressed for office development to occur. The Florida Blue Parking Garage is
an example of smart planning with daytime use restricted to office workers,
while after 6 p.m. and on weekends, the garage is open to the public. Legal
obstacles can also hinder development, including easements and covenants
that burden the properties. The Downtown Overlay of Jacksonville provides

flexibility beyond what is found in many other metropolitan areas.

The leading constraints for new hotel development are currently historical
occupancy rates below 67%, the location and size of Jacksonville’s convention
center, and lack of retail/dining/entertainment to amenitized the hotel

experience. Uncertainty and risk are exacerbated by the Covid-19 pandemic.

Business travel, conventions, and tourism drive hospitality development in
downtowns. Covid-19 significantly impacted the tourism sector and full
recovery will be challenged by ongoing variants and related travel restrictions

(especially within the international travel sector).

Rising constructions costs and labor shortages are also pivotal in new

development. Finding efficient and cost-effective ways to execute

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

development is a top priority in the hotel field. Other constraints that are part
of the industry’s challenges include changing consumer demands. Data
security, credit card fraud, compliance, and consumer protection laws make it
difficult for hotel organizations to adapt quickly which has added to the

problems hoteliers face today.

Efforts to revitalize the FAB-REP districts within the Downtown core and the
Sports and Entertainment District will generate more visitors and activity to

Downtown Jacksonville.

The historic redevelopments of the Laura Street Trio into a 145 room Marriott
Autograph hotel and the Ambassador Hotel conversion into a 120-room hotel
with a nationally recognized flag is indicative of the interest in Jacksonville and

the confidence of the investment community.

A new Marriott Residence Inn is under construction in Brooklyn. The 136-
room, seven-story hotel will be built on 1.8 acres and slated for completion in

August 2021.

To compete for hotel market visitors,
development trends today point to
an overarching finding that unique
hotel desigh and programming are

required to create an authentic
“experience” for their guests.

96 | Page



Discussion and plans for a Four Seasons Hotel and Residences on the Shipyards
and Kids Kampus property continues, with the marina in close proximity. The
hotel proximity to cultural and sports venues is critical according to the

developer of The Four Seasons project.

Market Opportunities

Downtown Jacksonville’s economy benefits from a critical mass of industries,
especially in the financial technology and medical services/providers sector —
industries generally less impacted by the Covid pandemic. Out of state workers
considering relocating to a more favorable environment with a high quality of
life that provides employment opportunities are looking at Jacksonville
favorably. The City should continue to leverage and build upon Jacksonville’s
community assets and expand its national brand recognition as detailed in the

“best of” rankings of being a welcoming, diverse, and inclusive community.

While the pandemic has caused the commercial real estate community to take
a hard look at community transit networks, transit-oriented development
projects are proven to provide positive impacts and strengthen communities.
Accessible workspaces are key to the expansion of business. The regional
transportation center and the innovation corridor provide Downtown

Jacksonville with improved transportation options, mobility and walkability.

Redevelopment is the most difficult form of real estate development. It
requires patience and, at times, funding resources to create a successful
project. Many redevelopment projects that are underway and planned in the
Downtown Jacksonville Central Core, Cathedral, LaVilla and Church Districts will

need incentives to be successful, supported by a full and thorough analysis to

understand any financial gaps that exist and incentives that may provide a
foundation for success. While these smaller projects will deliver lower numbers
of units compared to those planned in the Brooklyn and Southbank, each will
contribute a unique element within the Jacksonville residential landscape,
helping promote a diverse, welcoming city that can effectively house its

workforce.

Authenticity and localism are important to consumers and brands, and
concepts need to resonate with the local community. Placemaking and
storytelling create this experience, while design, music, scent, lighting and
theater/action are all components of a successful district. Downtown walk
scores are excellent and transit scores are considered good and will contribute

to the downtown experience.

The fundamentals of economic activity including quality of the metropolitan
transportation and infrastructure systems, education and workforce
development, research and technology, the physical and social environment,

and financing are all strong in Downtown Jacksonville.

One of the key ingredients for a diverse downtown is placemaking, drawing
people to downtown for reasons other than employment. Professional sports,

and events, boutique shops and unique restaurants provide these ingredients.

Page



The St. Johns River is the iconic downtown’s feature, and continued activation
of the river will attract the full spectrum of available market segments to the
area. While downtown residents are typically professional singles, or empty
nesters, the family unit is a sector of the market that needs strengthening.
Getting people to experience the downtown through sports and
entertainment, cultural and academic events, markets, and eateries all provide

the opportunity for authentic experiences and a sense of place

As discussed in the Jacksonville DIA Peer Cities Comparison Study 2021
(provided in Appendix IV (Part Il of Il) of this report), Kansas City’s Power and
Light District is an example of a new entertainment destination that
transformed the city’s downtown. This conglomeration of restaurants, taverns,
and nightspots is co-located with a multi-purpose sports and event arena

anchor.

The Emerald Trail Master Plan illustrates a 30-mile network of trails, both
pedestrian and bicycle that connect Downtown to historic neighborhoods,
schools, colleges, and parks. This project will have considerable impact on

Downtown and provide connectivity and access throughout the area.

Jacksonville has secured the distinction of being in the Top 5 nationwide of

inbound residential move-ins during the Covid-19 pandemic.

The selection of apartments, townhomes and condominiums is wide, and the
recently renovated residences are unique, and market appropriate. From
Home Street Lofts on Southbank, the converted Seminary, which is now 12

luxury loft style units, to the Broadstone River House, there is urban living for

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Key Retail Recommendations

= Targeted incentives by District and direct
incentives to locate retail in proximity to
hotels and residential areas

= Support for walkable urban format
“necessity retail” (specialty
grocery/pharmacy)

= Strategic retail/dining/entertainment with
outdoor seating in major projects

= Made in Jax/Shop Local Apparel

all tastes. On the Northbank, the 18 story Barnett Building has been fully
restored providing 107 loft-style apartments overlooking Downtown and in
close proximity to the River. Shipping containers have been used in a new
project in the Cathedral District that provides affordable housing for residents,
in a configuration that provides significant upside for the developer, while

serving the needs of future residents.

With 3,600 units in 23 multifamily properties currently, there is capacity for the
development of additional units. Average rents are close to achieving the $2
per square foot number, while new properties are exceeding that number
significantly, which is key for developers. At the time this research was

conducted, there were 978 units under construction, and more than 3,000

98| Page



proposed. The daytime population of 67,000 employees overall demand for
multifamily housing across Jacksonville is indicative of the market for new

residential development.

As developers continue to develop the prime available sites Downtown,
interest should shift towards the Sports and Entertainment District, Southbank,
LaVilla, Cathedral and Church if traditional trends of development occur. These
districts have larger vacant land areas at lower cost. Importantly, the sizes of
these parcels are better suited for mixed-use concepts that can be more
immediately impactful. Recognition of these opportunities is an important
element of any broader strategy to energize specific areas or districts and
presents strategic direction to focus incentives in areas where market forces

have yet to reach sustainable levels for development activity.

Land development policies, including zoning and development standards to
allow for more creative and mixed uses of properties are beneficial for
retailers. Placemaking is the buzz word in retail today, as more consumers look
for the experience that occurs when shopping. Downtown’s vision through
public improvements, integrated open space and multimodal transportation

infrastructure are all positive for retailers.

Opportunity Zones provide an entirely new source of capital which may help

drive redevelopment, especially in the older, higher-risk areas.

Sophisticated technologies available today, a more personalized approach for
engaging customers and adapting to the rapid changes in the market are all

opportunities for retail in Downtown Jacksonville.

The targeted food and beverage retail enhancement program (FAB-REP) seeks
to bring a cluster of restaurants and bars within two distinct walkable corridors.
This program provides an excellent vehicle for focusing local restaurant
attraction. However, this strategy must include development of daytime
population that are critical market segments for retail establishments and
restaurants. Activities that activate the street, especially the targeted corridors
during off-peak times, will develop foot traffic and interest that drive additional

demand to nearby businesses.

The pandemic has accelerated new industry trends such as outdoor dining,
virtual clothing selections, and click-and-collect shopping, that were already
underway before the crisis. Now, there’s even greater integration between
digital and physical channels and more investment in infrastructure and
operations, enabling retailers to provide greater flexibility and convenience to
the consumer. Smaller prototypes and off-site distribution will provide
downtown with opportunity for shops and eateries to locate in smaller spaces,

with off premise parking.

The Florida climate affords retailers the opportunity to provide outside service
to patrons, using environmentally adaptive systems. These heating and cooling
systems are expensive, but necessary for restaurants today. Consideration may
need to be given to these improvements as opportunities for financial
assistance. Land use regulations that encourage sidewalk cafes are useful as

well.

Page



The following is a list of desired retail and other businesses identified by the
2014 Business Investment and Development Strategy. The retail market supply
analysis indicates that while Downtown Jacksonville’s retail inventory has
improved, the retail subsectors of apparel, restaurants with outdoor dining,
grocery and pharmacy are still in high demand Downtown as both convenience
factors and as ancillary use-mix support for major projects and they should be

strategically prioritized to further progress toward established goals.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Table 35: 2014 DIA BID Plan: Desired Retail Businesses

2014 DIA BID Plan: Desired Retail Businesses

Business incubators

Information technology offices

Shoe stores
Hobby stores, craft store and supplies
Pet stores and supplies
Restaurants
Gift Stores
Stationery stores
Small appliances
Sporting goods
Jewelry stores

Specialty retail apparel such as bridal,
formal gown, tuxedo, costume. (does
not include rental)

Office supply stores

Education/academia

Apparel stores including accessories
(purses, scarves, hats)

Toy stores
Art supplies, framing stores
Specialty food stores/delicatessens
Coffee/Tea shops
Book stores
Kitchen/home accessories
Electronics
Entertainment venues
Florists

Art Galleries

Pharmacies

Source: DIA CRA Business Investment and Development Plan (2014)

100 | Page



Jacksonville is well positioned to capture talent migrating to markets with
lower costs, better weather climates and more favorable policy environments.
The strong work culture and highly skilled employee base are positive assets.
Three Fortune 500 Corporate Headquarters, and more than 462,000 sq. ft. of
planned office space are currently in work. Parking solutions that benefit
corporations and the public benefit recruitment efforts and provide assurance
to corporations that Jacksonville is positioned to offer the corporate world an
environment that is productive and welcoming, as well as a lifestyle that

appeals to the workforce of today.

Office development continues to be anchor driven, and continued efforts to
attract corporate headquarters, medical and educational institutions are hitting
the mark for Downtown Jacksonville. Key tenants must be committed before
financing is in place for major new office developments. Efforts to create a city
center, that is active and walkable will benefit the downtown landscape and

provide another plus for companies seeking a new location.

However, we cannot overlook the change in corporate headquarters as the
workplace evolves post pandemic. Companies will use less office space, while
at the same time the investment in the physical space will be significant to
create flexible working arrangements, and amenities such as an active
downtown that affords a wide range of food, entertainment and services will

be more important than ever when choosing a corporate location.

Modern air filtration systems, smart elevators, keyless entry and other
advanced tech solutions, in addition to providing constant sanitation will be the

hallmarks of a successful office building.

Strategies to attract new businesses include subsidized parking, job training,
backfilling vacant office, increased safety, and target incentives to Downtown.
Transportation improvements that include streetlights to encourage
pedestrians and cyclists, as well as improved mass transit are ongoing
programs that will need to continue to be prioritized if Downtown wants to

continue to attract new office buildings.

Research and data collection interviews with hotel industry professionals
indicate a balance of Downtown room supply and typical demand levels (i.e.,

non-Covid) that maintain market average daily rates (ADRs).

There is clear consensus within the local market that long-term opportunity
exists to generate more visitation/demand for room nights from catalytic

projects and advance the convention center concept.

Marriott International has entered the market with its new Residence Inn
location in the Brooklyn District and with plans for an Autograph brand hotel in
the Central Core District. While the company states that the market is
oversupplied in the larger full-service segment (e.g., Omni and Hyatt), they
have confidence that the diversity of their brands and customer’s loyalty
program are sufficient to enter the market successfully. Typically, Marriott’s
interest is an indicator of market strength, as the company does not typically

develop hotels speculatively.

Page



Yet it is important to note that Marriot’s (or any company’s) interest as a
corporate owner is different than as the franchisor, their degree of confidence
can be measured, at least somewhat, by their level of capital commitment. For
that reason, it is advised that feasibility be independently assessed with the
idea of creating a diversity of hospitality options and funded by the investors
should there be a request for public financial support, subsidies, or
abatements. Absent any request, the City may consider options to share in that
cost of market studies. In either case, the City should control the selection of

the feasibility consultant when possible.

Long-term opportunity to generate hotel demand include catalytic projects
that rely on visitor events, such as those planned for the Sports and
Entertainment District and nearer the convention center. The location of the
Prime F. Osbourne Convention Center provides a challenge for stimulating
hotel development, especially when there are sites available for hotels that
provide river views, and downtown amenities. Previous studies regarding a
new convention center have not resulted in recommendations for the
construction of a new center in closer proximity to the central core.
Connectivity to the convention center will be an important consideration and

challenge for Downtown.

Targeted District Market Opportunities

Brooklyn benefits from its neighboring proximity to the Central Core with mixed use
projects that provide housing and services for residents. This rich historic area is a popular
location for those seeking an urban lifestyle. Road improvements including Park Street

Road Diet have helped influence new development including major financial tech leader

FIS building a new 12-story, 300,000 square foot headquarters to support its growth. FIS
will support its growth by consolidating its current headquarters and local offices with
plans to hire an additional 500 employees by 2029, bringing its workforce to
approximately 1,800 employees. There is also a new Marriott Residence Inn underway.

The hotel plans include 136 rooms and seven stories.

Unity Plaza serves as a centerpiece and community gathering place, offering
entertainment and activities to attract both residents and visitors. The creation of this
Plaza using innovative stormwater management techniques is an example of smart urban

design.

The new Fidelity National Information Services 12-story headquarters is under
construction at 347 Riverside Avenue. And with other headquarters including Black Knight
Financial, Florida Blue, Haskell and TIAA Brooklyn remains poised for continued growth

and success.

Brooklyn Station is anchored by The Fresh Market and the center currently has only one
vacancy. This property was developed by Regency Centers, a pioneer in unique
placemaking designs with smart merchandising. Marketing the area as high income, well-
educated and with a strong daytime population, this center offers dining and specialty

services for the community.

Brooklyn has an historic base and continues to grow with mixed use developments
bringing residential living back to this district. The new Fidelity National Information
Services 12-story headquarters is under construction at 347 Riverside Avenue. And with
other headquarters including Black Knight Financial, Florida Blue, and Haskell, Brooklyn
remains poised for continued growth and success. Brooklyn continues to grow with mixed
use developments, office retail, and residential development and is continued to be
fueled by upper income residents. The continued efforts to develop the riverfront

property are most advantageous to the Brooklyn District.

Page



Because of the success of development in this district, and CIP funding to improve public
infrastructure, incentives to stimulate future development activity are expected to

diminish in this district.

Cathedral District connects the Central Core to the Sports and Entertainment District and
is anchored by five historic churches and encompasses 36 blocks. Portions of this area are
designated an Opportunity Zone. In 2016, The Cathedral District Jax-Inc. (CD-J) was

organized to foster growth and revitalization.

The creation of a nonprofit, Cathedral District Jax-Inc. led to a Master Plan for the area to
designed to provide affordable housing and services. This is a unique, walkable

neighborhood with a mixture of residences, churches and neighborhood services.

Ashley Street Shipping Container Apartments has opened and includes 18 multifamily
units on a 0.13 acre. This unique product type promises to provide affordable housing
and unique style in this district. Lofts at Cathedral is also planned in the Cathedral District
by Vestcor, a multifamily, affordable housing developer responsible for several “Lofts”

branded projects in the Downtown Jacksonville area.

With a portion of the district designated an Opportunity Zone, this area presents unique
opportunities for development, and the Emerald Trail following Hogan’s Creek through

the district will be very attractive for residential developers.

A new senior living project known as Ashley Square, a six-story building including two
parking decks is moving forward. With 120 units the project is aimed at seniors with

limited incomes.

However, the issue in Cathedral District continues to be the numerous surface parking
lots covering approximately 50% of the land in the District. For neighborhood
redevelopment and revitalization to occur, parking solutions must be a high priority. A

lack of retail in this District is by far the most heard complaint from residents. As

developers look at this area for mixed-use projects, commercial development to support
these new residents will soon be forthcoming if the parking lots are developed into uses

that support the District.

Market research did not identify major opportunity sites or market structures
that suggest near term opportunities other than Ford on Bay and infill
strategies. It is recommended that the Central Core should continue to tailor
incentives to policy objectives to realize the major projects already identified as
key opportunities and to provide a variety of retail and services to meet the

needs of the local workforce and growth realized in residential occupancy.

The Central Core appears poised to benefit from the active development in
surrounding areas, notably Southbank and Brooklyn, but has struggled to
leverage their success. Stakeholder interviews suggest several key challenges,
including perceived parking availability and cost, a significant inventory of
historic/obsolescent buildings, and a lack of a key tenant or use that have a
catalytic effect. The most obvious candidate for this would be Ford on Bay, but
it will be important to structure and design development there in a way that
strengthens the overall market (through amenities, design examples, positive
“buzz”, etc.) rather than just focusing on highest and best use and/or market

feasibility for the site in isolation.

As VyStar continues to expand and recently became the 13 largest credit
union in the country, the impact of this headquarters on downtown continues
to be felt. VyStar campus will have two-thirds of workforce back downtown by
August. They sponsored Jax Fiver Jams Concert Series in April, outside at
Riverfront Plaza. These are the kinds of developments and events that will

Page



create interest and momentum in the Central Core for employees, residents,

and visitors.

The planned transit improvements, especially the urban circulator, will increase
connectivity to the surrounding districts and increase potential viability of
office uses for potential commuters. This would require a shift in commuting
patterns for Jacksonville but is possible in the medium to long term. The DIA
can support this through structuring of incentives toward retail development,

residential opportunities, job creation, and transit use along these corridors.

Key to opportunities in the Central Core will be finding a way to ease the
perceived parking issues and find a way to leverage the existing urban fabric.
Existing buildings are typically both a challenge and an opportunity, as they can
be more difficult to adapt to modern uses than building new but at the same
time have facades and features that are not financially feasible (and in some
cases) cannot be constructed under current building codes and other
constraints. There appears to be a significant inventory of buildings in the
central core that have been purchased on a speculative basis but are currently

uneconomic to redevelop.

In medium term the key in the Central Core will be to enhance incentives for
redevelopment of existing buildings to make their use competitive with new
construction in the Central Core and in other areas. The economic recovery
from Covid, along with the return of key users such as Vystar, Wells Fargo,
Bank of America, TIAA Bank, Citizen’s Insurance, and others represents an
opportunity to leverage the success of recent additions to the Food and

beverage sector.

In market terms, average rents have been weak in the Central Core while land
prices are among the highest. Recent additions to the market are seeing
significant improvements in rents. Building vacancy waiting for investment is a
significant obstacle to revitalization of the area. Stakeholder interviews indicate
that a number of property owners have purchased buildings on a speculative
basis and in many cases may be leaving them vacant in anticipation of
redevelopment opportunities. The DPRP created by the DIA in 2020 will likely
prove successful in helping bring many of these properties back to productive

use.

Finally, Berkman Plaza Il is an important feature of the Central Core, because
although it is not within the district it is right on the border and in some ways
serves as a gateway to the area entering from the east along the river. The site
is a significant constraint as its abandoned and dilapidated appearance creates
a negative impression of the potential of downtown. Elimination of the
property in conjunction with proposed redevelopment of the Shipyard’s site
will bridge activity between the Central Core and the Sports and Entertainment

District.

Core development is stated as the key to a thriving downtown, and developers
are busy putting this premise to work in the Church District, along the border
with the Central Core. This area has several adaptive reuse projects underway,
with historic preservation, food and beverage operations, and urban walkability

at the forefront of the development direction.

Page



Church contains several historic buildings and one of the largest infill sites
available in the Southeast. A local development team has purchased a large
block of the property, with plans for multiple new residences. With the high-
profile riverfront projects that are garnering national attention, the Baptist
Church property stands to benefit from the interest in Downtown Jacksonville

as a whole.

With nine contiguous blocks available, (the multi-block First Baptist Church),
the Church District provides Downtown Jacksonville with an exciting
opportunity for revitalization. A portion of the property including two buildings
was sold with plans for mixed use development to occur on the site. The
buyers have indicated they plan to take advantage of the existing infrastructure
in the area and build 200 market-rate apartments, providing urban-core living.
To balance the development activity occurring along the riverfront on both the
north and south banks, the Church District provide opportunities for incentives
to generate other residential opportunities in close proximity to the Central

Core.

The historic 224-acre neighborhood of LaVilla was the center of African
American life and culture in Jacksonville, with historic venues including the Ritz
Theatre and many clubs that showcased black entertainers. It has been
described as the Harlem of the South. The Heritage Trail and improvements to
Water Street have been designed to connect LaVilla to the riverfront and

provide improved transportation options for the residents.

LaVilla was the railroad hub of the city, with several rail lines meeting at Union
Station, now the Prime F. Osborn Il Convention Center. The properties
surrounding the Jacksonville Regional Transit Center (JRTC) have great access
and visibility and are catalytic for this area. This is a major transit hub
connecting LaVilla with the Skyway, the First Coast Flyer BRT Purple Line, the
intercity bus hub facility, and a major Greyhound bus station. This activity
provides opportunities for Transit Oriented Development (TOD) beyond any

other location in Downtown Jacksonville.

LaVilla has seen the completion of four residential projects which provide
options for citizens to live in the downtown area, in affordable residences.
These are the Houston Street manor, Lofts at LaVilla, Lofts at Monroe, and
Lofts at Jefferson Station. Another new project that bodes well for employment
and growth within LaVilla is the proposed Jacksonville Energy Authority (JEA)
secondary headquarters. This proposed 40,000 square foot building will house
the authority’s emergency operations center and will create additional job
opportunities furthering demand for residential options and supportive retail

and services within LaVilla.

In accord with the LaVilla Neighborhood Development Strategy, completed in
2019, continued investment into infrastructure and green space, such as Lift
Ev'ry Voice and Sing Park and the 91-unit LaVilla Townhomes, will provide
LaVilla with more placemaking opportunities. LaVilla’s proximity to the Central
Core, the FSCJ campus, and UF Health campus also provide high quality
opportunities for living and working in this district. The neighboring district of
Brooklyn has high occupancies, offering potential for LaVilla to expand some

office as well, particularly in the JRTC area.

Page



Southbank has seen significant mid-rise and high-rise residential development,
leveraging the waterfront and views of downtown. It is expected that
residential opportunities will continue, as land prices away from the river
remain low and rents and demand remain high relative to the rest of the City.
These residential opportunities should not require significant public investment

where rents remain high and land prices remain low.

The River’s Edge development has a vision of sustainable design to encourage a
healthy lifestyle and diversity. This development on the 30-acre former JEA site
is proposed to include 950 residential units, 147 hotel rooms, 200,000 sg. ft. of

office space, 134,000 sq. ft. of retail space and a marina and public park.

The former River City Brewing site project is moving forward with plans for a
327-unit multifamily project with a restaurant and bar. Completion of the

project is expected in 2025.

A feasible development opportunity that appears predominately from the
market data is for retail, with relatively low vacancies in existing retail stock,
and high rents suggesting at least a short-term shortage. This is consistent with
the recent influx of residents in the district and should be further strengthened

by residential development in the pipeline.

The Sports and Entertainment District has the potential to change the

landscape in Jacksonville. By developing a downtown destination park which

includes eating establishments, entertainment, trails, kayak rentals, marine
tours, plazas, fountains, events, and a marina, the City can continue to leverage

its most precious resource, the St. Johns River.

Several of the peer cities studied exhibit tremendous success by the
development of a large park area open to the public as demonstrated by the
development attributed to these improvements and the resulting tax revenue

generated.

The fact that this area is home to a major league football team with significant

expansion plans is an important part of the fabric of this district.

Consumers’ identities and social capital are now focused on what they do,
what they experience and what they share on social media, rather than what
they own. These findings are relative especially to the Sports and

Entertainment District. Every interaction creates a personal reaction.

The Sports and Entertainment District is approximately 80 acres of riverfront
property, primarily surrounding TIAA Bank Field, an NFL Football Stadium,
Jacksonville’s Baseball Grounds, a Triple-A minor league baseball stadium, and
two concert venues including the 15,000 seat Veteran’s Memorial Arena and
the 5,500 seat Daily’s Place. This area holds the greatest opportunity for large-

scale redevelopment in the Downtown.

Page



The DIA and the City of Jacksonville are actively engaged in public-private
investment and planning for the Shipyards and Kids Kampus parcel. As of
September 2021, this major $300 million development project is proposed to
include an international brand luxury hotel and residences along the riverfront
adjacent to TIAA Bank Field and Daily’s Place. Subsequent development phases
are proposed to create an adjacent office building and world class medical

tourism facility.

This development activity will also include the restoration of Metropolitan
(“Met”) Park, a marina and multifunctional building housing a ship store,

dockmaster’s office and facilities.

Details regarding incentives include the City providing $114 million in the form
of donated land, spending on reconstructing the city-owned public marina,
relocation of city-owned buildings, and providing cash incentives for the
developer. The incentives are designed to be a mixture of completion grants

and property tax rebates paid out over a period of time.

The Riverwalk extension will benefit the Sports and Entertainment District,
providing connectivity to the downtown central core. Relocation of the
Museum of Science and History (MOSH) to the Northbank, immediately east of

the Hogans Creek basin is under consideration.

At this time there are no multifamily properties in the Sports and
Entertainment District, however there are a significant number of units in

various stages of development planning.

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Figure 56: Shipyards and Kids Kampus Redevelopment Concept

Source: DIA, 2021

Changing values that point to experiences as paramount are reflected in the
leisure sector attracting one and a half times more discretionary spend than
retail and growing twice as fast. As discussed previously in the retail findings of
this study, location-based entertainment is a diverse and dynamic sector that
can be categorized into five key subsectors—arts and entertainment, play and
activity-based leisure, health and fitness, food and beverage, and

heritage/visitor attractions.

A fully immersive sensory-led experience will emerge from placemaking efforts
that encourage community participation and interaction. According to
Euromonitor International Lifestyles Survey 2017, 46% of Americans prefer to
spend money on experiences over 15% who prefer to spend on things. Thus,

the effect on retail within the Sports and Entertainment district is significant.

For instance, the Veterans Memorial Wall and 121 Financial Park draw visitors
to the area who may not otherwise have ventured into this part of downtown.

107 | Page



With the Baseball Grounds continuing to draw people with its 11,000-seat
ballpark and art in public places sculpture and TIAA Bank Field, Metro Park,
Veteran’s Memorial Arena, Daily’s Place, and the Amphitheater all providing
venues for professional sports and concerts, specialty retail and eating
establishments will continue to grow and prosper. Most recently the Miami

Marlins have selected Jacksonville for the team’s alternate training site.

The Sports and Entertainment District offers the least amount of office space in
downtown Jacksonville according to CoStar reports, demonstrating further the
need for new development to fill the requirements of service and professional

businesses that operate within the Sports and Entertainment District.

The approval of Shipyards and Kids Kampus projects will spark activation of this
priority redevelopment area, serving as a catalyst for future development of
surrounding parcels. Opportunities for development of residential, office, and
retail exist on the east side of TIAA Bank filed and represent the opportunity for

future mixed-use development adjacent to the Working Waterfront District.

On the eastern edge of Downtown sits the Working Waterfront. Home to the
North Florida Shipyards, a ship repair and conversion business in operation
since 1977. Currently no retail uses exist in the Working Waterfront. Skilled
craftsmen are employed at North Florida Shipyards, craftsmen who are

specialized in their field of maritime fabrication, repair, and conversion.

Working waterfronts are lands, infrastructure and waterways used for water-

dependent activities. The protection of these waterfronts is a major policy

initiative in the state of Florida due to the physical importance historical

character, and maritime commerce of these waterfronts.

JAXPORT recorded 1.28 million 20-foot equivalent units (TEU) passing through
the port in 2020. Jacksonville is still Florida's largest container port. Already the
nation's second largest vehicle port, Jacksonville will add over 100 acres of
process space to increase vehicle capacity by 25%. JAXPORT has fully funded a
three-mile channel deepening and widening effort, out of a total 11-mile
project, to bring more traffic to the Blount Island Terminal. According to the
Port’s annual fiscal report, it provides an annual economic impact of over $31

billion to the state of Florida.

Although the Port is several miles east of the Working Waterfront, the continued
expanding trade experienced by the Port should continue to benefit the Working

Waterfront with ancillary support services.

Additional development in this district is determined to focus on commercial
activities that may generate jobs, while any redevelopment efforts for
residential, office, or entertainment would require significant capital probable
environmental remediation which makes feasibility of such activity low in the

near future.

Conclusion

This market and feasibility study provides detailed data, research and analysis
of current trends and projections to inform the DIA’s deliberations on the
policies and programs that will direct development and investment activity for

the next five years.

Page



As part of this exploration, the analysis formulated an objective snapshot of the
DIA’s performance against goals and objectives of the CRA programs directing
incentives funding over the last five years. Thoughtful review of these
trendlines in the context of Covid-19 also allowed for identification of factors
that were not as impacted as others by the mandated quarantine and stay-at-

home orders.

Taken together, the DIA is making positive progress toward goals, particularly
in the area of residential development. This new baseline for incentive
programs will allow for more targeted offerings by product type and geography

going forward as needed to achieve stated objectives.

Clearly, it is too early to comment on the performance of new programs
adopted in July and October 2020. However, lessons learned indicate that
enhanced monitoring and reporting on incentive performance measures will
enable the DIA to use the data to link incentives to not just citywide goals and
objectives but to community and economic development targets at the local

neighborhood (District) level.

The peer cities comparison research suggests that incentives performance
measures are evolving from traditional metrics that focus on jobs creation
targets. Successful and sophisticated Downtown authorities are leveraging
incentives to achieve multilayered social, environmental, and public realm
objectives by linking public dollars to jobs training, walkability, wellness,
affordable housing, and maximizing the clustering of restaurants in proximity to

hotels.

It is recommended that DIA continue to focus on tracking outcomes, benefits,
and changes in Downtown in relation to the BID Strategy. Continuing to track
such indicators will achieve a sustained source of consistent data to allow for a
deeper understanding of the relationship between incentives policies and

development and investment activity in Downtown Jacksonville.

The DIA should continue to make incentives flexible and nimble to meet the
needs of catalytic projects with complex deal structuring. The DIA should also
explore the opportunity to use targeted developer incentives to cross-subsidize
mixed-use projects to achieve the optimal mix of uses with the Downtown’s
remaining available land — increasingly scarce and valuable. However, an
evolving set of incentives guidelines will come into play as the market matures,
new concepts emerge, projects materialize, and land values rise. The DIA’s role
as Downtown development facilitator will likewise evolve to require greater
emphasis on curation of specific target uses at the District/neighborhood level

on a project-by-project basis.

Over time, the DIA will foster the creation of more Downtown destinations,
experiential retail, and specialty/neighborhood-serving “gems” through the
continuing exceptional administration of the start-up subsidies and tax

incentives needed to fund investment gaps.

Page



APPENDIX |: REAL ESTATE & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CONSULTING SUPPORT

W WILLDAN

CONTACT INFORMATION

Prime Contractor

Willdan Financial & Economic Consulting

Services
200 S Orange Ave #1550, Orlando, FL 32801
Phone: (202) 510-0511

James Edison, Managing Principal, jedison@willdan.com
Molly McKay. Principal & DIA Market Feasibility Study Project
Manager, mmckay@willdan.com

Carlos Villarreal, Demographic & GIS Analyst,
cvillarreal@willdan.com

Subconsultants

Redevelopment Management Associates
2302 E Atlantic Blvd, Pompano Beach, FL 33062
Phone: (954) 695-0754

Lynn Dehlinger, Director of Economic Development, lynn@rma.us
Adriane Esteban, Senior Project Manager, adriane@rma.us

DKT Consultants

3120 Atlantic Boulevard Jacksonville, Florida 32207
Phone: (904) 472-7528

Deborah K. Thompson, Owner & Local Small & Minority Owned
Business Licison, deborah@dktconsultants.com

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

A<

REINVENTING YOUR CITY

DEBORAH K. THOMPSON, CONSULTANTS
Construction ¢ Housing ¢ Transportation

AppendixI-1: | Page


mailto:202)%20510-0511%0Bmmckay@willdan.com
mailto:cvillarreal@willdan.com
mailto:lynn@rma.us
mailto:adriane@rma.us

APPENDIX II: AMERICAN COMMUNITY SURVEY DATA, BY CENSUS BLOCK GROUP OR
CENSUS TRACT
Population - 2014

Census Tract / Block Total Median  Under Age Age 65 &
Group Population Male Female Age 18 Age 18to 64  Older

Tract 8, Block Group 1 1,509 810 699 37.2 266 1,110 133
Tract 8, Block Group 2 683 340 343 54.2 8 385 290
Tract 10, Block Group 1 649 303 346 45.1 21 459 99
Tract 10, Block Group 2! 3,133 2,619 514 33.0 108 2,990 35
Tract 10, Block Group 3 694 276 418 69.1 7 249 438
Tract 171, Block Group 1 1,867 712 1,155 55.1 150 935 782
Tract 172, Block Group 1 1,896 1,005 891 41.6 257 1,404 235
Tract 174, Block Group 2 159 111 48 25.0 26 133 -

"' This block group includes the Duv al County Jail.
Sources: 2014 ACS 5-Year Estimates Detailed Tables, BO1001 and BO1002.

Page



Population - 2019

Census Tract / Block Total Median Under Age Age 65 &
Group Population Male Female Age 18 Age 18to 64  Older
Tract 8, Block Group 1 2,027 9216 1,111 36.0 315 1,419 293
Tract 8, Block Group 2 759 335 424 43.2 21 541 197
Tract 10, Block Group 1 487 282 205 50.7 22 359 106
Tract 10, Block Group 2! 2,934 2,203 731 34.6 44 2,799 21
Tract 10, Block Group 3 786 419 367 71.1 - 245 541
Tract 171, Block Group 1 2,295 741 1,554 39.5 175 1,390 730
Tract 172, Block Group 1 2,165 1,100 1,065 37.8 330 1,407 428
Tract 174, Block Group 2 204 68 136 16.9 103 101 -
"' This block group includes the Duv al County Jail.
Sources: 2019 ACS 5-Year Estimates Detailed Tables, BO1001 and BO1002.
Population by Race & Ethnicity - 2014

Two or Hispanic
Census Tract / Block Total American Pacific More or Latino
Group Population White Black Indian Asian Islander Other Race Races Origin'
Tract 8, Block Group 1 1,509 1,264 161 - 6 - 50 28 71
Tract 8, Block Group 2 683 641 27 - - - - 15 57
Tract 10, Block Group 1 649 15 621 - - - - 13 -
Tract 10, Block Group 22 3,133 1,055 1,978 - 8 - 64 28 147
Tract 10, Block Group 3 694 250 342 - 73 - 16 13 45
Tract 171, Block Group 1 1,867 1,561 284 - - - 22 - 112
Tract 172, Block Group 1 1,896 768 949 - 65 - 99 15 282
Tract 174, Block Group 2 159 41 95 - - - - 23 10

' Hispanic or Latino origin population is a subset of all other categories in this table.

2This block group includes the Duv al County Jail.

Sources: 2014 ACS 5-Year Estimates Detailed Tables, BO2001 and B0O3003.

Page



Population by Race & Ethnicity - 2019

Two or Hispanic

Census Tract / Block Total American Pacific More or Latino
Group Population White Black Indian Asian Islander Other Race Races Originl
Tract 8, Block Group 1 2,027 1,697 169 - 78 83 - 136
Tract 8, Block Group 2 759 715 18 - - 26 - 102
Tract 10, Block Group 1 487 61 426 - - - - 20
Tract 10, Block Group 22 2,934 948 1,841 18 23 63 41 163
Tract 10, Block Group 3 786 350 375 - 36 8 17 21
Tract 171, Block Group 1 2,295 1,942 306 - 38 9 - 160
Tract 172, Block Group 1 2,165 849 1,063 - 148 - 105 55
Tract 174, Block Group 2 204 5 183 - - 16 - 16
' Hispanic or Latino origin population is a subset of all other categories in this table.
2This block group includes the Duv al County Jail.
Sources: 2019 ACS 5-Year Estimates Detailed Tables, BO2001 and BO3003.
Household Composition - 2014

Percentage of Average
Census Tract / Block Total Family Total Household Average
Group Households Households Households Size Family Size'
Tract 8, Block Group 1 963 247 25.6% 1.57 2.73
Tract 8, Block Group 2 554 75 13.5% 1.23 2.73
Tract 10, Block Group 1 343 95 27.7% 1.71 2.86
Tract 10, Block Group 22 42 - 0.0% - 2.86
Tract 10, Block Group 3 548 44 8.0% 1.09 2.86
Tract 171, Block Group 1 1,381 241 17.5% 1.29 2.49
Tract 172, Block Group 1 999 179 17.9% 1.48 3.06
Tract 174, Block Group 2 64 43 67.2% 2.48 3.61

' Av erage family size data only av ailable at the Census Tract lev el.

2This block group includes the Duv al County Jail.

Sources: 2014 ACS 5-Year Estimates Detailed Tables, B11016, B25010 and S1101.

Page



Household Composition - 2019

Percentage of Average
Census Tract / Block Total Family Total Household Average
Group Households Households Households Size Family Size'
Tract 8, Block Group 1 1,115 510 45.7% 1.82 2.39
Tract 8, Block Group 2 584 93 15.9% 1.30 2.39
Tract 10, Block Group 1 216 69 31.9% 2.05 3.00
Tract 10, Block Group 22 22 11 50.0% 2.18 3.00
Tract 10, Block Group 3 515 111 21.6% 1.29 3.00
Tract 171, Block Group 1 1,554 283 18.2% 1.42 2.55
Tract 172, Block Group 1 1,190 287 24.1% 1.51 2.67
Tract 174, Block Group 2 1,115 510 45.7% 1.82 3.65
' Av erage family size data only av ailable at the Census Tract lev el.
2This block group includes the Duv al County Jail.
Sources: 2019 ACS 5-Year Estimates Detailed Tables, B11016, B25010 and S1101.
Income - 2014
Median HH  Married

Median HH Median HH Median HH Income Couples
Census Tract Income Income White Income Black Senior Families
Tract 8 41,838 47,434 21,449 27,989 81,968
Tract 10 10,789 14,500 9,975 13,006 21,797
Tract 171 36,932 38,681 18,949 19,365 60,855
Tract 172 28,125 43,281 13,448 14,706 46,635
Tract 174 17,014 13,875 21,518 15,882 26,578

Note: Income data by race and age only av ailable at the Census Tract lev el. 2014 Inflation adjusted dollars.

"'This tfract includes the Duv al County Jail.

Sources: 2014 ACS 5-Year Estimates Detailed Tables, B12001, B19001A, B19001B, B19049, B19113.

Page



Income - 2019

Median HH  Married
Median HH Median HH Median HH Income Couples

Census Tract Income Income White Income Black Senior Families

Tract 8 62,298 63,504 44,353 39,130 79.071
Tract 10 13,739 11,543 15,345 13,818 40,547
Tract 1712 54,340 54,671 - 26,111 89,980
Tract 1722 42,702 53,897 23,182 - 46,406
Tract 174° 27,521 - 28,284 22,917 28,036

Note: Income data by race and age only av ailable at the Census Tract lev el. 2019 Inflation adjusted dollars.
' This tract includes the Duv al County Jail.

2 ACS did not provide estimates for median household income for white households in Tract 174, black
households in Tract 171 and senior households in Tract 172.

Sources: 2019 ACS 5-Year Estimates Detailed Tables, B19001, B19001A, B19001B, B19049, B19113.

Housing Tenure - 2014

Total Renter Total Percentage
Census Tract / Block Occupied Percentage of Occupied Vacant of Total
Group Total Units Units Total Units Units Units Units
Tract 8, Block Group 1 1,491 963 64.6% 797 528 35.4%
Tract 8, Block Group 2 647 554 85.6% 471 93 14.4%
Tract 10, Block Group 1 362 343 94.8% 297 19 5.2%
Tract 10, Block Group 2! 134 42 31.3% 36 92 68.7%
Tract 10, Block Group 3 562 548 97.5% 548 14 2.5%
Tract 171, Block Group 1 1,553 1,381 88.9% 1,245 172 11.1%
Tract 172, Block Group 1 1,335 999 74.8% 845 336 25.2%
Tract 174, Block Group 2 127 64 50.4% 46 63 49.6%

"' This block group includes the Duv al County Jail.
Sources: 2014 ACS 5-Year Estimates Detailed Tables, B25002 and B25003.

Page



Housing Tenure - 2019

Total Renter Total Percentage
Census Tract / Block Occupied Percentage of Occupied Vacant of Total
Group Total Units Units Total Units Units Units Units
Tract 8, Block Group 1 1,397 1,115 79.8% 824 282 20.2%
Tract 8, Block Group 2 665 584 87.8% 493 81 12.2%
Tract 10, Block Group 1 231 216 93.5% 148 15 6.5%
Tract 10, Block Group 2! 69 22 31.9% 11 47 68.1%
Tract 10, Block Group 3 575 515 89.6% 515 60 10.4%
Tract 171, Block Group 1 1,653 1,554 94.0% 1,388 99 6.0%
Tract 172, Block Group 1 1,427 1,190 83.4% 1,035 237 16.6%
Tract 174, Block Group 2 120 56 46.7% 56 64 53.3%

"' This block group includes the Duv al County Jail.

Sources: 2019 ACS 5-Year Estimates Detailed Tables, B25002 and B25003.

Page



APPENDIX Ill: JACKSONVILLE INCENTIVES ANALYSIS

Qualified Target Industries for Incentives

The following target industries are utilized for the COJ REV Grants, among other programs and incentives across the city.

Cleantech
Biomass & Biofuels Processing

Energy Equipment Manufacturing
Energy Storage Technologies
Photovoltaic

Environmental Consulting

Sustainable Building Products

Life Sciences
Biotechnology

Pharmaceuticals
Medical Devices (laboratory and surgical

instruments, diagnostic testing)

Infotech
Modeling, Simulation and Training

Optics and Photonics
Digital Media
Software

Electronics

Telecommunications

Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study

Aviation/Aerospace
Aircraft and Aircraft Parts Manufacturing

Maintenance Repair and Overhaul of
Aircrafts

Navigation Instrument Manufacturing
Flight Simulator Training

Space Vehicles and Guided Missile
Manufacturing

Satellite Communications

Space Technologies

Launch Operations

Homeland Security/Defense
Optical Instrument Equipment

Navigation Aids Equipment
Ammunition Equipment
Electronics Equipment

Military Vehicles

Shipbuilding and Repair
Computer Systems Technology

Simulation and Training Technology

Financial/Professional Services
Banking

Insurance

Securities and Investments
Corporate Headquarters
Engineering

Legal

Accounting

Consulting

Cloud IT
Marine Sciences
Materials Science

Nanotechnology

Food and Beverage
Automotive and Marine
Plastics and Rubber

Machine Tooling

Appendix-8: | Page



APPENDIX IV. JACKSONVILLE PEER CITIES COMPARISON ANALYSIS (DOWNTOWN
JACKSONVILLE MARKET FEASIBILITY STUDY — PART 2 OF 2)

The Jacksonville Peer Cities Comparison Analysis

(Downtown Jacksonville Market Feasibility Study — PART 2 OF 2)
is available under separate cover.

Please refer to the DIA website’s Reports & Studies:

hitps://investdtjax.com/tools-resources/reports-studies/



	MEMBERS:
	R 2021-09-01 Courthouse Disposition Terms w Exhibits_DRAFT.pdf
	Scoring Criteria 9.2 REPD.pdf
	Sheet1


	20210915 DIA Board Meeting Agenda.pdf
	MEMBERS:

	20210915 DIA Board Meeting Agenda_Revised.pdf
	MEMBERS:




